
Repro India Limited | 1

Notice of the Annual General Meeting

The Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of Repro India Limited, will 
be held as per the following schedule to transact the business as 
detailed below:
Day and Date	 : 	 Saturday, September 22, 2012
Time			  : 	 11.30 a.m.
Venue		  : 	� “The Club”, Colonial Hall, 197, D.N.Nagar 

Road, Near D.N.Nagar Police Station, 
Andheri(W), Mumbai 400 053

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Profit and Loss Account for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2012, the Balance Sheet as at 
that date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon

2.	 To declare dividend on equity shares.
3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. P. Krishnamurthy, Director 

of the Company who retires by rotation at the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

4.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mukesh Dhruve , Director 
of the Company who retires by rotation at the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

5.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pramod Khera, Director of 
the Company who retires by rotation at the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

6.	 To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT M/s S. R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Firm Registration No. 301003E be and are hereby 
re-appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company on such 
remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
7.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269 and 309 read with Schedule XIII and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including 
any statutory modifications (s) or re-enactment thereof, for 
the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals, if 
and as may be required, including of the Central Government, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
appointment of Mr. Pramod Khera, as a Whole Time Director 
designated as Executive Director of the Company, for a period 
of 3 years with effect from May 18, 2012 on the following 
terms and conditions as to his remuneration, as recommended 
by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, subject to 

the same not exceeding the limits specified in section 309 
and Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, including any 
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force or as may hereafter be made by the Central 
Government in that behalf from time to time.

(I)	 Remuneration:
	 a)	 Salary: Not exceeding ` 7,00,000 per month in the scale 

of ` 7,00,000 – 1,00,000 – 9,00,000
	 b)	 Commission: At such a rate as may be determined by 

the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, and not exceeding 5% of the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year of the Company.

	 c)	 Perquisites:
		  1.	 Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of actual 

medical expenses incurred in India and/or abroad 
including hospitalization, nursing home and surgical 
expenses for self and family subject to a ceiling of 
three month’s last drawn salary per year.

		  2.	 Leave Travel Concession: Reimbursement of all 
the expenses (like travel fare, lodging, boarding, 
conveyance and other expenses) incurred for self 
and family during the leave travel holiday periods, 
whenever undertaken, whether in India or abroad in 
accordance with the rules of the Company.

		  3.	 Club Fees: Subscription of or reimbursement of 
membership fees of two clubs in India or abroad 
including admission and life membership fees.

		  4.	 Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance: Medical Insurance and Personal 
Accident Insurance Policy for an amount, the annual 
premium of which shall not exceed ` 50,000 per 
annum.

		  5.	 Life/Term Insurance: The Company shall pay personal 
life/term insurance premium subject to a limit as may 
be decided by the Board from time to time.

		  6.	 The Company’s Contribution to provident fund, 
superannuation fund or annuity fund.

		  7.	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a 
month’s salary for each completed year of service.

		  8.	 Encashment of leave for every year of completed 
service at the end of the tenure.

		  9.	 Other perquisites: Subject to the overall ceiling 
on remuneration mentioned herein below, he shall 
be entitled to any other allowances, benefits and 
perquisites as the Board of Directors may on the 
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee 
thereof may from time to time decide.

			   Explanation:
			   Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax 

Rules, wherever applicable and in the absence of 
any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at 
actual cost
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			   For the purposes of Perquisites stated above, 
“Family” means the spouse, dependent children and 
dependent parents of the Whole Time Director.

	 d)	 Amenities:
		  Car and Telephone: The Company shall provide car for 

use on Company’s business and telephone, internet 
broadband, at the residence, personal long distance calls 
on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be 
billed by the Company. Mr. Pramod Khera is also entitled 
to reimbursement of all actual expenses, including 
entertainment and travelling incurred in the course of the 
Company’s business.

(II)	 Overall Remuneration:
	 The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any 

financial year shall not exceed the overall ceiling laid down 
in Sections 198,309 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with Schedule XIII of the said act 
as may be applicable for the time being in force.

(III)	 Minimum Remuneration:
	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy 

of profits in any of the financial years during the tenure of Mr. 
Pramod Khera as an Executive Director of the Company, he shall 
be entitled to receive and be paid the substantive remuneration 
mentioned in 1 above, but excluding Commission, as minimum 
remuneration and such remuneration shall be governed by the 
limits prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule XIII of 
the Companies Act, 1956 as may for the time being in force, 
subject to the approval of the Central Government, if and as 
may be required.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (“the Board” which 
term shall be deemed to include the Remuneration Committee 
constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Pramod Khera shall ipso facto, 
automatically cease to be Director on the Board of Directors 
of the Company in the event his appointment as an Executive 
Director is terminated by the Board of Directors.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors may in its 
discretion pay to the Whole Time Director any remuneration 
lower than the maximum remuneration hereinbefore stipulated 
and revise the same from time to time, within the maximum 
limits stipulated by this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an agreement of employment 
with Mr. Pramod Khera be entered into and such agreement be 
and is hereby authorized to be signed by any two directors, for 
and on behalf of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the 
Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized 
severally to file all forms with the Registrar of Companies and 
other statutory authorities as are necessary and appropriate to 
give effect to this resolution.”

8.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269 and 309 read with Schedule XIII and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including 

any statutory modifications (s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
time being in force) and subject to such other approvals, if and 
as may be required, including of Central Government, consent 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the reappointment 
of Mr. Vinod Vohra, as Chairman of the Company, for a period of 
3 years with effect from March 1, 2013 on the following terms 
and conditions as to his remuneration, as recommended by the 
Remuneration Committee of the Company, subject to the same 
not exceeding the limits specified in section 309 and Schedule 
XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force or as may hereafter be made by the Central Government 
in that behalf from time to time.

(I)	 Remuneration:
	 a)	 Salary: Not exceeding ` 7,00,000 per month in the scale 

of ` 7,00,000 – 1,00,000 – 9,00,000
	 b)	 Commission: At such a rate as may be determined by 

the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, and not exceeding 5% of the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year of the Company.

	 c)	 Perquisites:
		  1.	 Housing:
			   i	� Furnished residential accommodation or HRA 

at the rate as may be determined by the Board.
			   ii 	� Expenses pertaining to gas, electricity, water 

and other utilities will be borne/ reimbursed by 
the Company.

			   iii	� The Company shall provide equipments and 
appliances, furniture and fixture and furnishing 
at the residence at the entire cost of the 
Company.

		  2.	 Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of actual 
medical expenses incurred in India and/or abroad 
including hospitalization, nursing home and surgical 
expenses for self and family subject to a ceiling of 
three month’s last drawn salary per year.

		  3.	 Leave Travel Concession: Reimbursement of all 
the expenses (like travel fare, lodging, boarding, 
conveyance and other expenses) incurred for self 
and family during the leave travel holiday periods, 
whenever undertaken, whether in India or abroad in 
accordance with the rules of the Company.

		  4.	 Club Fees: Subscription of or reimbursement of 
membership fees of two clubs in India or abroad 
including admission and life membership fees.

		  5.	 Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance: Medical Insurance and Personal 
Accident Insurance Policy for an amount, the annual 
premium of which shall not exceed ` 50,000 per 
annum.

		  6.	 Life/Term Insurance: The Company shall pay personal 
life/term insurance premium subject to a limit as may 
be decided by the Board from time to time.

		  7.	 The Company’s Contribution to provident fund, 
superannuation fund or annuity fund.

		  8.	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a 
month’s salary for each completed year of service.

		  9.	 Encashment of leave for every year of completed 
service at the end of the tenure.
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		  10.	 Other perquisites: Subject to the overall ceiling 
on remuneration mentioned herein below, he shall 
be entitled to any other allowances, benefits and 
perquisites as the Board of Directors may on the 
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee 
thereof may from time to time decide.

			   Explanation:
			   Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax 

Rules, wherever applicable and in the absence of 
any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at 
actual cost

			   For the purposes of Perquisites stated above, 
“Family” means the spouse, dependent children and 
dependent parents of the Chairman.

	 d.	 Amenities:
		  Car and Telephone: The Company shall provide car for 

use on Company’s business and telephone , internet 
broadband at the residence, personal long distance calls 
on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall 
be billed by the Company. The Chairman is also entitled 
to reimbursement of all actual expenses, including 
entertainment and travelling incurred in the course of the 
Company’s business.

(II)	 Overall Remuneration:
	 The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any 

financial year shall not exceed the overall ceiling laid down 
in Sections 198,309 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with Schedule XIII of the said act 
as may be applicable for the time being in force.

(III)	 Minimum Remuneration:
	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy 

of profits in any of the financial years during the tenure of  
Mr. Vinod Vohra as the Chairman of the Company, he shall be 
entitled to receive and be paid the substantive remuneration 
mentioned in 1 above, but excluding Commission, as minimum 
remuneration and such remuneration shall be governed by the 
limits prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule XIII (as 
amended) of the Companies Act, 1956 as may for the time being 
in force, subject to the approval of the Central Government, if 
and as may be required.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (“the Board” which 
term shall be deemed to include the Remuneration Committee 
constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors may in 
its discretion pay to the Chairman any remuneration lower 
than the maximum remuneration hereinbefore stipulated and 
revise the same from time to time, within the maximum limits 
stipulated by this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an agreement of employment 
with Mr. Vinod Vohra be entered into and such agreement be 
and is hereby authorized to be signed by any two directors, for 
and on behalf of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the 
Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized 
severally to file all forms with the Registrar of Companies and 
other statutory authorities as are necessary and appropriate to 
give effect to this resolution.”

9.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269 and 309 read with Schedule XIII and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including 
any statutory modifications (s) or re-enactment thereof, for 
the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals, 
if and as may be required, including of Central Government, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
reappointment of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra , as a Managing Director 
of the Company, for a period of 3 years with effect from 
March 1, 2013 on the following terms and conditions as to 
his remuneration, as recommended by the Remuneration 
Committee of the Company, subject to the same not exceeding 
the limits specified in section 309 and Schedule XIII to the 
Companies Act, 1956, including any statutory modifications 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force or as may 
hereafter be made by the Central Government in that behalf 
from time to time.

(I)	 Remuneration:
	 a)	 Salary: Not exceeding ` 7,00,000 per month in the scale 

of ` 7,00,000 – 1,00,000 – 9,00,000
	 b)	 Commission: At such a rate as may be determined by 

the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, and not exceeding 5% of the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year of the Company.

	 c)	 Perquisites:
		  1.	 Housing:
			   i	 Furnished residential accommodation or HRA 

at the rate as may be determined by the Board.
			   ii 	 Expenses pertaining to gas, electricity, water 

and other utilities will be borne/ reimbursed by 
the Company.

			   iii	 The Company shall provide equipments and 
appliances, furniture and fixture and furnishing 
at the residence at the entire cost of the 
Company.

		  2.	 Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of actual 
medical expenses incurred in India and/or abroad 
including hospitalization, nursing home and surgical 
expenses for self and family subject to a ceiling of 
three month’s last drawn salary per year

		  3.	 Leave Travel Concession: Reimbursement of all 
the expenses (like travel fare, lodging, boarding, 
conveyance and other expenses) incurred for self 
and family during the leave travel holiday periods, 
whenever undertaken, whether in India or abroad in 
accordance with the rules of the Company.

		  4.	 Club Fees: Subscription of or reimbursement of 
membership fees of two clubs in India or abroad 
including admission and life membership fees.

		  5.	 Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance: Medical Insurance and Personal 
Accident Insurance Policy for an amount, the annual 
premium of which shall not exceed ` 50,000 per 
annum.

		  6.	 Life/Term Insurance: The Company shall pay personal 
life/term insurance premium subject to a limit as may 
be decided by the Board from time to time.
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		  7.	 The Company’s Contribution to provident fund, 
superannuation fund or annuity fund.

		  8.	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a 
month’s salary for each completed year of service.

		  9.	 Encashment of leave for every year of completed 
service at the end of the tenure.

		  10.	 Other perquisites: Subject to the overall ceiling 
on remuneration mentioned herein below, he shall 
be entitled to any other allowances, benefits and 
perquisites as the Board of Directors may on the 
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee 
thereof may from time to time decide.

			   Explanation:
			   Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax 

Rules, wherever applicable and in the absence of 
any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at 
actual cost

			   For the purposes of Perquisites stated above, 
“Family” means the spouse, dependent children and 
dependent parents of the Managing Director.

	 d.	 Amenities:
		  Car and Telephone: The Company shall provide car for 

use on Company’s business and telephone, internet 
broadband at the residence, personal long distance calls 
on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be 
billed by the Company. The Managing Director is also 
entitled to reimbursement of all actual expenses, including 
entertainment and travelling incurred in the course of the 
Company’s business.

(II)	 Overall Remuneration:
	 The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any 

financial year shall not exceed the overall ceiling laid down 
in Sections 198,309 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with Schedule XIII of the said act 
as may be applicable for the time being in force.

(III)	 Minimum Remuneration:
	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy 

of profits in any of the financial years during the tenure of 
Managing Director of the Company, he shall be entitled to 
receive and be paid the substantive remuneration mentioned in 
1 above, but excluding Commission, as minimum remuneration 
and such remuneration shall be governed by the limits 
prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule XIII of the 
Companies Act, 1956 as may for the time being in force, 
subject to the approval of the Central Government, if and as 
may be required.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (“the Board” which 
term shall be deemed to include the Remuneration Committee 
constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors may in 
its discretion pay to the Managing Director any remuneration 
lower than the maximum remuneration hereinbefore stipulated 
and revise the same from time to time, within the maximum 
limits stipulated by this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an agreement of employment with 
the Managing Director be entered into and such agreement be 
and is hereby authorized to be signed by any two directors, for 
and on behalf of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the 
Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized 
severally to file all forms with the Registrar of Companies and 
other statutory authorities as are necessary and appropriate to 
give effect to this resolution.”

10.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

	 RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269 and 309 read with Schedule XIII and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including 
any statutory modifications (s) or re-enactment thereof, for 
the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals, 
if and as may be required, including of Central Government, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re 
appointment of Mr. Mukesh Dhruve , as a Whole Time Director 
designated as Executive Director of the Company, for a period 
of 3 years with effect from March 1, 2013 on the following 
terms and conditions as to his remuneration, as recommended 
by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, subject to 
the same not exceeding the limits specified in section 309 
and Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, including any 
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force or as may hereafter be made by the Central 
Government in that behalf from time to time.

(I)	 Remuneration:
	 a)	 Salary: Not exceeding ` 7,00,000 per month in the scale 

of ` 7,00,000 – 1,00,000 – 9,00,000
	 b)	 Commission: At such a rate as may be determined by 

the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, and not exceeding 5% of the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year of the Company.

	 c)	 Perquisites
		  1.	 Housing:
			   i 	 Furnished residential accommodation or  HRA 

at the rate as may be determined by the Board.
			   ii	 Expenses pertaining to gas, electricity, water 

and other utilities will be borne/ reimbursed by 
the Company.

			   iii	 The Company shall provide equipments and 
appliances, furniture and fixture and furnishing 
at the residence at the entire cost of the 
Company.

		  2.	 Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of actual 
medical expenses incurred in India and/or abroad 
including hospitalization, nursing home and surgical 
expenses for self and family subject to a ceiling of 
three month’s last drawn salary per year.

		  3.	 Leave Travel Concession: Reimbursement of all 
the expenses (like travel fare, lodging, boarding, 
conveyance and other expenses) incurred for self 
and family during the leave travel holiday periods, 
whenever undertaken, whether in India or abroad in 
accordance with the rules of the Company.

		  4.	 Club Fees: Subscription of or reimbursement of 
membership fees of two clubs in India or abroad 
including admission and life membership fees.

		  5.	 Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance: Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance Policy for an amount, the annual premium 
of which shall not exceed ` 50,000 per annum.
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		  6.	 Life/Term Insurance: The Company shall pay 
personal life/term insurance premium subject to a 
limit as may be decided by the Board from time to 
time.

		  7.	 The Company’s Contribution to provident fund, 
superannuation fund or annuity fund.

		  8.	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a 
month’s salary for each completed year of service.

		  9.	 Encashment of leave for every year of completed 
service at the end of the tenure.

		  10.	 Other perquisites: Subject to the overall ceiling 
on remuneration mentioned herein below, he shall 
be entitled to any other allowances, benefits and 
perquisites as the Board of Directors may on the 
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee 
thereof may from time to time decide.

			   Explanation:
			   Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax 

Rules, wherever applicable and in the absence of 
any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at 
actual cost.

			   For the purposes of Perquisites stated above, 
“Family” means the spouse, dependent children and 
dependent parents of the Whole Time Director.

	 d.	 Amenities:
		  Car and Telephone: The Company shall provide car for 

use on Company’s business and telephone, internet 
broadband at the residence, personal long distance calls 
on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be 
billed by the Company. The Whole Time Director is also 
entitled to reimbursement of all actual expenses, including 
entertainment and travelling incurred in the course of the 
Company’s business.

(II)	 Overall Remuneration:
	 The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any 

financial year shall not exceed the overall ceiling laid down 
in Sections 198,309 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with Schedule XIII of the said act 
as may be applicable for the time being in force.

(III)	 Minimum Remuneration:
	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy 

of profits in any of the financial years during the tenure of Whole 
Time Director of the Company, he shall be entitled to receive and 
be paid the substantive remuneration mentioned in 1 above, 
but excluding Commission, as minimum remuneration and 
such remuneration shall be governed by the limits prescribed 
under Section II of Part II of Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 
1956 as may for the time being in force, subject to the approval 
of the Central Government, if and as may be required.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (“the Board” which 
term shall be deemed to include the Remuneration Committee 
constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors may in its 
discretion pay to the Whole Time Director any remuneration 
lower than the maximum remuneration hereinbefore stipulated 
and revise the same from time to time, within the maximum 
limits stipulated by this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an agreement of employment with 
the Whole Time Director be entered into and such agreement 
be and is hereby authorized to be signed by any two directors, 
for and on behalf of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the 
Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized 
severally to file all forms with the Registrar of Companies and 
other statutory authorities as are necessary and appropriate to 
give effect to this resolution.”

11.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269 and 309 read with Schedule XIII and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including 
any statutory modifications (s) or re-enactment thereof, for 
the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals, 
if and as may be required, including of Central Government, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re 
appointment of Mr. Rajeev Vohra , as a Whole Time Director 
designated as Executive Director of the Company, for a period 
of 3 years with effect from March 1, 2013 on the following 
terms and conditions as to his remuneration, as recommended 
by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, subject to 
the same not exceeding the limits specified in Section 309 
and Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, including any 
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force or as may hereafter be made by the Central 
Government in that behalf from time to time.

(I)	 Remuneration:
	 a)	 Salary: Not exceeding ` 7,00,000 per month in the scale 

of ` 7,00,000 – 1,00,000 – 9,00,000
	 b)	 Commission: At such a rate as may be determined by 

the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, and not exceeding 5% of the net profits of the 
Company for each financial year of the Company.

	 c)	 Perquisites:
		  1. 	 Housing:
			   i	 Furnished residential accommodation or HRA 

at the rate as may be determined by the Board.
			   ii	 Expenses pertaining to gas, electricity, water 

and other utilities will be borne/ reimbursed by 
the Company.

			   iii	 The Company shall provide equipments and 
appliances, furniture and fixture and furnishing 
at the residence at the entire cost of the 
Company.

		  2.	 Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of actual 
medical expenses incurred in India and/or abroad 
including hospitalization, nursing home and surgical 
expenses for self and family subject to a ceiling of 
three month’s last drawn salary per year.

		  3.	 Leave Travel Concession: Reimbursement of all 
the expenses (like travel fare, lodging, boarding, 
conveyance and other expenses) incurred for self 
and family during the leave travel holiday periods, 
whenever undertaken, whether in India or abroad in 
accordance with the rules of the Company.
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		  4.	 Club Fees: Subscription of or reimbursement of 
membership fees of two clubs in India or abroad 
including admission and life membership fees.

		  5.	 Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance: Medical Insurance and Personal Accident 
Insurance Policy for an amount, the annual premium 
of which shall not exceed ` 50,000 per annum.

		  6.	 Life/Term Insurance: The Company shall pay 
personal life/term insurance premium subject to a 
limit as may be decided by the Board from time to 
time.

		  7.	 The Company’s contribution to provident fund, 
superannuation fund or annuity fund. 

		  8.	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a 
month’s salary for each completed year of service.

		  9.	 Encashment of leave for every year of completed 
service at the end of the tenure.

		  10.	 Other perquisites: Subject to the overall ceiling 
on remuneration mentioned herein below, he shall 
be entitled to any other allowances, benefits and 
perquisites as the Board of Directors may on the 
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee 
thereof may from time to time decide.

			   Explanation:
			   Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax 

Rules, wherever applicable and in the absence of 
any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at 
actual cost

			   For the purposes of Perquisites stated above, 
“Family” means the spouse, dependent children and 
dependent parents of the Whole Time Director.

	 d.	 Amenities:
		  Car and Telephone: The Company shall provide car for 

use on Company’s business and telephone, internet 
broadband at the residence, personal long distance calls 
on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be 
billed by the Company. The Whole Time Director is also 
entitled to reimbursement of all actual expenses, including 
entertainment and travelling incurred in the course of the 
Company’s business.

(II)	 Overall Remuneration:
	 The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any 

financial year shall not exceed the overall ceiling laid down 
in Sections 198,309 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read with Schedule XIII of the said act 
as may be applicable for the time being in force.

(III)	 Minimum Remuneration:
	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy 

of profits in any of the financial years during the financial years 
during the tenure of Whole Time Director of the Company, he shall 
be entitled to receive and be paid the substantive remuneration 
mentioned in 1 above, but excluding Commission, as minimum 
remuneration and such remuneration shall be governed by the 
limits prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule XIII of 
the Companies Act, 1956 as may for the time being in force, 
subject to the approval of the Central Government, if and as 
may be required.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (“the Board” which 
term shall be deemed to include the Remuneration Committee 
constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors may in its 
discretion pay to the Whole Time Director any remuneration 
lower than the maximum remuneration hereinbefore stipulated 
and revise the same from time to time, within the maximum 
limits stipulated by this resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an agreement of employment with 
the Whole Time Director be entered into and such agreement 
be and is hereby authorized to be signed by any two directors, 
for and on behalf of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the 
Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized 
severally to file all forms with the Registrar of Companies and 
other statutory authorities as are necessary and appropriate to 
give effect to this resolution.

By Order of the Board
For Repro India Limted

Madhavi Kulkarni
Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2012

Registered Office:
Marathe Udyog Bhavan,
2nd Floor, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025
Email – investor@reproindialtd.com

Notes:
1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general 

meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll 
instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member 
of the Company. The instrument appointing proxy should, 
however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company 
not less than forty eight hours before the commencement of 
the annual general meeting.

2.	 As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the members 
who are individuals holding shares of the Company can appoint 
their nominees. The nomination Form 2B prescribed by the 
Government can be obtained from the Company’s Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent.

3.	 Corporate members intending to send their authorised 
representatives to attend the annual general meeting are 
requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their 
behalf at the annual general meeting.

4.	 Members / Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending 
the meeting

5.	 Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along 
with their copy of the Annual Report to the meeting.

6.	 Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested 
to `write their Client ID and DP ID Numbers and those who 
hold shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio 
Number in the Attendance slip for attending the Meeting.
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7.	 In case of joint holders attending the annual general meeting, 
only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 
be entitled to vote.

8.	 Only bonafide members of the Company whose names appear 
on the Register of Members/Proxy-holders, in possession of 
valid attendance slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to 
attend the Annual General Meeting. The Company reserves its 
right to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict 
non-members from attending the annual general meeting.

9.	 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice 
are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
on all working days, except Saturdays and Sundays, between 
11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the meeting.

10.	 The dividend declared at the annual general meeting will be 
paid to those members whose names are on the Register of 
Members of the Company as at the opening hours of September 
15, 2012. The Register of Members of the Company will remain 
closed from September 15, 2012 to September 22, 2012 (both 
days inclusive) under Section 154 of the Companies Act, 1956 
for the purpose of payment of Dividend.

11.	 Dividend on equity shares as recommended by the Board for 
the year ended March 31, 2012, when declared at the annual 
general meeting, will be paid on or before October 21, 2012:

	 (i)	 to those members whose names appear on the Company’s 
register of members, after giving effect to all valid share 
transfers in physical form lodged with the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz. Link Intime 
India Pvt Limited at C/13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, 
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup(W), Mumbai 400 078 on or before 
September 14, 2012 and.

	 (ii)	 In respect of shares held in electronic form, to those 
members whose names appear in the statements of 
beneficial ownership furnished by National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as at the opening hours of 
September 15, 2012.

12.	 The Certificate from the Auditors of the Company for Repro India 
Ltd (Employees Stock Option Scheme) 2006 (REPRO ESOS 
2006) and Repro India Ltd (Employees Stock Option Scheme) 
2010 (REPRO ESOS 2010) will be available for inspection at the 
annual general meeting.

13.	 In terms of Sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 
1956 the amount of dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid for 
a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the unpaid 
dividend account is required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education an Protection Fund (IEPF). Accordingly, in the year 
2012-13, the Company would be transferring the unclaimed 
or unpaid Final Dividend for the financial year ended March 
31,2005 to the IEPF on or before October 10, 2012. Members 
are requested to ensure that they claim the dividend from the 
Company before transfer of the said amounts to the IEPF .

14.	 Members holding shares in electronic form may note that 
bank particulars registered against their respective depository 
accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. 
The Company or its Registrars and Transfer Agents cannot act 
on any request received directly from the members holding 
shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars 
or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the 
Depository Participant of the members.

15.	 Members holding share in electronic form are requested to 
intimate immediately any change in their address or bank 
mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to advise any change of address 
immediately to the Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agents, 
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

16.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated 
the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to 
their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN details to the Company/Registrars 
and Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Private Limited.

17.	 Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform the 
Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Link Intime India 
Pvt. Limited, immediately of:

	 (a)	 the change in the residential status on return to India for 
permanent settlement.

	 (b)	 the particulars of the bank account maintained in India 
with complete name, branch, account type, account 
number and address of the Bank with Pin Code Number , 
if not furnished earlier.

18.	 Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning 
accounts and operations of the Company are requested to 
address their questions in writing to the Company at least 7 
days before the date of the meeting so that the information 
required may be made available at the meeting.

19.	 Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, profile of 
the Directors proposed for re-appointment being given in 
a statement containing details of the concerned directors is 
forming part of the Corporate Governance Report.

20.	 Repro India Limited is concerned about the environment and 
utilizes natural resources in a sustainable way. Recognising the 
spirit of the circular issued by the Ministry of Company Affairs 
(MCA), by which the MCA has allowed companies to send 
official documents to their shareholders electronically as part 
of its green initiatives in corporate governance, we henceforth 
propose to send documents like the Notice convening the 
general meetings, Financial Statements, Directors’ Report 
Auditors’ Report, etc to the email address provided by you with 
your Depositories.

	 We request you to update your email address with your 
depository participant to ensure that the annual report and 
other documents reach you on your preferred email.

By Order of the Board
For Repro India Limted

Madhavi Kulkarni
Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2012

Registered Office:
Marathe Udyog Bhavan,
2nd Floor, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025
Email – investor@reproindialtd.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

As required by Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act), 
the following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts 
relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 7 to 11 of the 
accompanying Notice dated May 30, 2012.

ITEM NO. 7:

The present term of office of Mr. Pramod Khera as Executive Director 
as approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting 
of the Company held on July 18, 2009, ended on May 18, 2012. 
Subject to the shareholders approval, the Board of Directors, at their 
meeting held on May 30, 2012, re-appointed the aforesaid Director 
for a further period of 3 years from the expiry date of his term, on 
the remuneration determined by the Remuneration Committee of the 
Board of Directors. The Remuneration Committee of the Board of 
Directors has recommended a revision in the remuneration.

Mr. Pramod Khera has been the Executive Director of the Company 
since May 18, 2009 and has successfully demonstrated his 
abilities and excellence in the growth path of the Company and 
has substantially contributed to the consistent performance of the 
company.

A brief resume of Mr. Pramod Khera along with the nature of his 
expertise in specific functional areas and name of companies in 
which he holds directorship and membership/chairmanship of 
the Board Committees, as stipulated under Clause 49 of Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India, is provided in the 
Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report.

This may be treated as an abstract of the draft Agreement between 
the Company and Mr. Pramod Khera pursuant to Section 302 of the 
Act.

The Executive director holds 244601 equity shares in the Company.

Save and except the above said Director, none of the Directors are in 
any way concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolutions set out at Item No. 7

ITEM NO. 8-11

The present term of office of Mr. Vinod Vohra as Chairman of the 
Company, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra as Managing Director, Mr. Mukesh 
Dhruve and Mr. Rajeev Vohra as Executive Directors as approved 
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company 
held on July 18, 2009 will end on February 28, 2013, Subject to 
the shareholders approval, the Board of Directors, at their meeting 
held on May 30, 2012 re-appointed the aforesaid Directors for a 
further period of 3 years from the expiry date of their term, on the 
remuneration determined by the Remuneration Committee of the 
Board of Directors. The Remuneration Committee of the Board of 
Directors has recommended a revision in the remuneration.

Mr. Vinod Vohra, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, Mr. Mukesh Dhruve and Mr. 
Rajeev Vohra are the promoter-directors of the Company and during 
the last close to 20 years have managed and steered the Company 

extremely successfully and have been responsible for the Companies 
achievement of consistently good financial results year after year.

Mr.Vinod Vohra is a Science Graduate. His vision was instrumental 
in our Company’s transition to the area of fulfillment services. He 
was responsible for the planning and setting up of our Company’s 
Print and Fulfillment facility and currently keeps in tune with the 
technology required to enhance the business infrastructure as well 
as to plan the infrastructure for our Company’s foray into newer 
business lines.

Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, having graduated in Economics and Finance, 
he is the main financial mind behind our Company. Through his 
direction, guidance and efficient resource management he has taken 
our Company into high growth business areas, which have resulted 
in niche and specialized segments of growth.

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve , a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India has been a part of your Company since its 
inception. He leads the Export business with the countries in 
different Continents and is responsible for building relationships 
with financial institutions and also directs the legal, secretarial and 
statutory operations of your Company.

Mr. Rajeev Vohra is a commerce graduate and over the past years 
acquired considerable experience in manufacturing both on the 
technical and management front. Based on this experience he has 
introduced efficient technology processes to your Company. He 
currently directs our Company’s Print and Fulfillment facility in Navi 
Mumbai.

A brief resume of the Directors along with the nature of their 
expertise in specific functional areas and name of companies in 
which he holds directorship and membership/chairmanship of 
the Board Committees, as stipulated under Clause 49 of Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India, is provided in the 
Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report. 
The broad particulars of remuneration payable to and the terms of 
the appointment of Mr. Vinod Vohra, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, Mr. Mukesh 
Dhruve and Mr. Rajeev Vohra are as per the resolution nos. 8-11 
respectively set out in the accompanying notice.

This may be treated as an abstract of the draft Agreement between 
the Company and Mr. Vinod Vohra, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, Mr. Mukesh 
Dhruve and Mr. Rajeev Vohra pursuant to section 302 of the Act.

Mr. Vinod Vohra, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, Mr. Mukesh Dhruve and Mr. 
Rajeev Vohra are concerned or interested in the respective resolution 
which pertains to their reappointment. Further Mr. Vinod Vohra , 
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra and Mr. Rajeev Vohra may also be deemed to 
be interested in the resolution for the appointment of each other as 
they are related to each other. Save and except the above, none 
of the other Directors of the Company, is in any way concerned or 
interested in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolutions set out at Item No. 8, 9, 10 
and 11  of the Notice for your approval.
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2012  2011 2010 2009 2008

1. Sales 34,568 26,865 20,644 24,862 15,372

2. Gross Profit (PBIDT) 6,173 3,854  3,335  3,560  2,912 

 Gross Profit as % of Income 18% 14% 16% 14% 19%

3. Finance Cost 1,232 787  674  812  428 

4. Depreciation 1,229 1,108 1,004  795  638 

5. Profit Before Tax 3,673  1,959  1,657  1,953  1,847 

6. Provision for Tax 69  (320)  (99)  301  291 

7. Net Profit (PAT) 3,604  2,279  1,756  1,652  1,555 

8. Net Worth 16,563 13,943  12,349  10,957  9,634 

9. Fixed Assets - (Gross Block) 23,776 20,166  18,636  16,769  11,535 

10. Long Term Loans Outstanding 7,138 5,124  5,027  3,646  309 

11. Long Term Loans Repayment 2,818 729  842  277  571 

12. Debt Equity Ratio 0.43 0.37  0.41  0.33  0.03 

13. Earning Per Share (EPS) 33.28 20.97  16.39  15.05  14.24 

14. Cash Earning Per Share (CEPS) 44.63  31.16  25.77  22.29  20.94 

15. Return on Net Worth (RONW) 22% 16% 14% 15% 16%

16. Dividend 100% 60% 30% 25% 20%

* EPS Calculated on the basis of Weighted Average No. of Shares during the year

` in Lacs (Except Ratios) 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Standalone)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Nineteenth 
Annual Report of your Company together with the audited 
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the Company 
for the year ended on March 31, 2012.

Financial Results

STANDALONE

(` In Lacs)

Year ended 31st March,
2012 2011

Revenue from operations 34,568 26,865
Profit before interest, depreciation 
and taxation

6,173 3,854

Financial Expenses 1,232 787
Depreciation 1,229 1,108
Profit before tax 3,673 1,959
Tax Expenses 69 (320)
Profit after Tax 3,604 2,279
Transfer to General Reserve 360 228
Proposed Dividend 1,084 634
Tax on Dividend 176 103

CONSOLIDATED

(` In Lacs)

Year ended 

Revenue from operations 34,596
Profit before interest, depreciation and 
taxation

6,052

Financial Expenses 1,232
Depreciation 1,249
Profit before tax 3,531
Tax Expenses 32
Profit after Tax 3,499
Transfer to General Reserve 360
Proposed Dividend 1,084
Tax on Dividend 176

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification no. 
S.O.447(E) dated February 28, 2011 amended the existing 
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. The revised Schedule 
VI is applicable from financial year commencing from April 1, 
2011. The financial statements of your Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2012 have been prepared in accordance with 
the revised Schedule VI and accordingly, the previous years 
figures have been reclassified/regrouped to confirm to this 
year’s classification.

Performance review

STANDALONE

There has been 29 % growth in revenue, from ` 268.65 crores 
in 2011 to ` 345.68 crores in 2012.

The Operating Profit has grown by 60% from ` 38.54 crores 
to ` 61.73 crores. There has been a growth of 87% in Profit 
Before Tax, from ` 19.59 crores in 2011 to ` 36.73 crores in 
2012 and 58% growth in PAT from ` 22.79 crores in 2011 to `
36.04 crores in 2012.

CONSOLIDATED

The CONSOLIDATED Net Revenue from Operations is 
` 345.96 crores and Consolidated Net Profit for the year is 
` 34.99 crores. Since there is no holding in the  subsidiary 
company as on March, 31, 2011, the comparative figures for 
the year ended March 31, 2011 have not been presented.

The export domestic sales ratio for the year is 59:41. During 
the year, Repro did an export business of ` 148 crores from 
the Surat facility. 

The Board of Directors of your Company at it’s meeting held 
on May 30, 2012 approved the Audited Consolidated Financial 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as 
well as Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement, which include 
financial information of its subsidiary and forms part of this 
report. The consolidated financial statements of your Company 

applicable Accounting Standards and where applicable Listing 
Agreement as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India.

The annual accounts and the financial statements of the 
subsidiary company and related detailed information 
according to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 have 
been attached alongwith the Balance Sheet of the Company 
and forms part of this report since the exemption pursuant to 
the General Circular issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
has not  been availed.

Business Highlights of the year:

In view of the performance of your Company, and its future 
fund requirements the Board has recommended a dividend of 
100% (` 10 per share of ` 10 face value) as compared to 60% 
(` 6 per share of `

The Company is diversifying from offering standalone printing 
solutions to adding services in the educational value chain, taking 
on the role of content management, and conversion to new 
formats, besides other services. 

In the last year, Repro has made significant strides in 
entrenching itself as a leading global player in the education 
segment and currently, over 85% of its revenue comes from 
educational publishing. 

One of the Company’s main strategies has been it’s focus on 
education . 
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The Company provides customised solutions to meet the need 
of educational publishers, producing text books, teachers’ 
guides and management books, handling content, design 
and pre-press. Its machines are capable of delivering high 
quality production values, enriching the learning experience 
for teachers and students. 

Within each of its markets, education offers an immense 
potential for growth, spanning both the print and digital spaces. 

In India, the Company has succeeded in a price-sensitive 
market by offering services ranging from content to fulfilment 
solutions, in the form of warehousing and logistical support to 
its clients and managing their inventory right up to the last mile 
despatch. Some of Repro’s key clients in India include Pearson, 
Macmillan, Oxford University Press, Orient Blackswan, Laxmi 
Publication, Vikram, Saraswati Publications, etc.

In Africa, where the face of education is undergoing a radical 
change, the Company’s range of products and unique solutions 
can help local publishers advance education.

Repro’s services in Africa include adapting content to cater to 
a specific geographic region, providing   end-to-end content 
and print solutions across services like content management, 
content digitisation, e-books, e-pub and many more services. 
It has a strong foothold in Africa, including a presence in 
some of the larger countries like South Africa, Nigeria, Ghana, 
etc. The Company has a presence in 22 countries of Africa, 
predominantly in the southern, western and eastern parts 
of the continent, including countries such as South Africa, 
Nigeria and Ghana. 

Some of the key clients in the region are University Press Ltd., 
Cosmos Education Publishers Ltd., Ben and Co. Ltd.,Evans 
Brothers, HEBN Publishers Plc., Maskew Miller Longman, 
etc. The Company  has been a part of  a World Bank funded 
project. In FY 2011-12, Repro executed the single largest order 
of 22 million books for the Government of Nigeria. It was also 
awarded a direct World Bank tender in Ethiopia.

E-learning is revolutionising education in the western world, 
with K-12 schools turning to this format. It is also becoming 
an integral part of higher education. Repro believes that 
digitisation of the education sphere presents an exciting 
opportunity for growth. The Company has begun preparing 
for this challenge by investing in technology that helps  offer 
digital solutions. 

One of the key service offerings is the digitisation of legacy 
content. Repro can digitise legacy content, storing millions 
of pages in a digital content warehouse. This content can 
then be converted to multiple digital formats across media, 
including web and internet-based content and e-books for 
online learning.

On the printing front, Repro  has also sealed alliances with 
KnowledgeCast and Service Point, two companies based in 
Europe that provide supply chain services and Document, Print 
and Information Management Services respectively. 

Infrastructure

Your Company has invested in infrastructure that offers 
customized solutions to educational publishers. Repro’s Print 

on Demand infrastructure enables publishers to print even a 
single book – which can also be customised if required. This 
helps the publishers control obsolescence since educational 
syllabi change periodically.

Another strategy that your Company has adopted has been it’s 
investment in content management. This helped Repro achieve 
a lock-in with clients where it functions as a custodian of the 
publishers’ content, which is their key asset. Largely due to an 
approach offering value addition, your Company is happy to 
report that it’s base of loyal customers has increased. 

In terms of infrastructure, the Company’s three units have 
continued to operate at the current optimum capacity. 
The acquisition of the Chennai facility from Macmillan will 
contribute to the overall capacity and profitability. 

Your Company has purchased  additional place in Surat SEZ 
for expansion at Surat which will increase the capacity and 
productivity of the Surat plant.

A focus on IT has enabled the Company achieve completely 
automated workflows that are customised to the print vertical. 
This has further added to efficiencies and therefore profitability.

Operations at all three plants are controlled centrally through 
the JDF Certified Monarch Planner which automates the layout 
and preparation of complex jobs, automatically building unique 
layouts for unique jobs. This has made it easy for the Company 
to plan and apply its resources for profitable task managment.

Recognition

Your Company has been awarded various international 
certifications for processes that are integrated within its 
solutions. These include ISO 14001:2004 for environment 
management systems, ISO 9001:2008 for quality management 
systems, FSC and PEFC certifications for paper and SEDEX 
compliance for enabling responsible supply chain practices.

Your Company has added another prestigious certification 
to its list. The internationally coveted FOGRA certification 
was awarded to your Company in September 2011  making 
it the first Indian Print Company to be awarded with this 
certification. The Certification is an internationally recognised 
mark of distinction for sheet-fed and web offset printers. 

Your Company also bagged the Capexil Award for the fifth time 
in a row. CAPEXIL confers annual awards to its members in 
recognition of their excellence in export performance.

Insurance

All the insurable interests of your Company including 
inventories, buildings, plant and machinery and liabilities 
under legislative enactments are adequately insured.

Esops

Your Company has implemented two Employee Stock Option 
Schemes namely Repro India Ltd (Employees Stock Option 
Scheme), 2006 [REPRO ESOS 2006] and Repro India Ltd 
(Employees Stock Option Scheme), 2010 [REPRO ESOS 2010] 
in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 2009 (‘the SEBI Guidelines) The 
Compensation Committee constituted in accordance with the 
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SEBI Guidelines, administers and monitors the Scheme.

As the intrinsic value (difference between Market Price 
and Exercise Price) on the date of the grant was nil, no 
compensation cost has been recognised in the financial 
statement.

The applicable disclosures as stipulated under the SEBI 
Guidelines as at March 31, 2012 (cumulative position) are set 
out in the Annexure to this Report.

Increase in share capital

During the year, your Company issued and allotted 283,210 
number of shares on the exercise of stock options under the 
Repro ESOS 2006. As a result of this, the outstanding issued, 
subscribed and paid up capital of the Company increased from 
10,559,864 shares as at March 31, 2011 to 10,843,074 as at 
March 31, 2012.

Transfer to Reserves

Your directors propose to transfer a sum of ` 360 lakhs, being 
10% of the profits of the year under review, to the general 
reserves of the Company pursuant to The Companies (Transfer 
of Profits to Reserves ) Rules 1975. 

Dividend

In view of the performance of your Company, and its future 
fund requirements, your Directors recommend a declaration of 
dividend of ̀ ` 10/= each  for the year 
ended on March 31, 2012.

Such dividend shall, subject to approval at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting, be paid

(i) to those Equity Shareholders, holding shares in physical 
form whose names appear on the Register of Members 
of the Company after giving effect to all valid shares 
transfers lodged with the Companies Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents viz. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. on or 
before September 14, 2012.

(ii) to those beneficial owners, holding shares in 
electronic form, whose names appear in the statement 
of beneficial owners furnished by the Depositories to 
the Company at the opening of business hours on 
September 15, 2012

The register of members and share transfer books will remain 
closed from September 15, 2012 to September 22, 2012 (both 
days inclusive)

Auditors’ Report

The Notes on Accounts referred to by the Auditors in their 

clarification.

Directors

Mr. P.Krishnamurthy, Mr, Pramod Khera and Mr. Mukesh 
Dhruve, Directors of the Company, retire by rotation and being 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 30, 2012 
reappointed Mr. Pramod Khera as an Executive Director for three 

years from May 18, 2012 and Mr. Vinod Vohra as Chairman, Mr. 
Sanjeev Vohra as Managing Director, and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve 
and Mr. Rajeev Vohra as Executive Directors for a period of 
three years from March 1, 2013 subject to the approval of the 
members in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting . 

Brief resume of all Directors proposed to be reappointed as 
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with 
the Stock Exchanges in India, are provided in the Report on 
Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report.

Auditors

The Auditors M/s. S. R. Batliboi and Co. Chartered Accountants, 
Mumbai, retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual 

appointment. Your Directors recommend their reappointment 
for the ensuing year. 

Cost Accounting Records 

As per new The Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 
2011 as amended till date, the maintenance of Cost Records 
under the Rules is now applicable to your company. Your 
Company is compling with the requirements under the said 
Rules as applicable.

Personnel

As of March 31, 2012, the total manpower strength of your 
Company is 914 employees.

In terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 
1975, names and other particulars of the employees are set 
out in the annexure to this report. However, having regard to 
the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 
1956, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information 
is being sent to all the members of the Company and others 
entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining such 
particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of Energy:

As required under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 

thereof for the time being in force) read with Rule 2 of the 
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board 
of Directors) Rules 1988, your Company is not covered 
by the Schedule of Industries which are required to furnish 
the information in Form ‘A’. However, your Company has 
continued to lay a special emphasis in creating awareness on 
conservation of energy.

Technology Absorption:

The Company does not have any technical collaboration 
arrangements. The Company has always used the latest 
technology available in the industry. Accordingly, the Company 
has procured the latest equipment and its personnel are trained 
from time to time, on the use, operation and maintenance of 
such highly sophisticated equipment.
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Details of expenditure and earnings in foreign currencies are 
given under Notes 40 & 42 in the financial statements.

Report on Corporate Governance

Your Company is complying with the requirement of Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement. Necessary disclosures have been 
made in this regard in the Corporate Governance Report. A 
separate report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges 
forms part of the Annual Report along with the Certificate 
from Mr. Dinesh Kumar Deora, Practising Company Secretary 
confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance.

The declaration by the Managing Director regarding compliance 
by board members and senior management personnel with 
the code of conduct also forms a part of the Annual Report.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the 
operations of the Company is provided in a separate section 
and forms a part of this Report.

Employee Welfare Schemes:

The Gratuity Liability of the Company in all cases has been 
discharged promptly through LIC of India. The company 
has continued its tied up with LIC for the Employees Group 
Superannuation Scheme.

Human Resources Activities:

While REPRO is steadfast at achieving milestones, its Human 
Resources team supports REPRO in achieving these landmarks 
by its human capital, through the following philosophy: 

“REPRO’s HR shall continuously strive towards developing & 
being recognized for its leadership, culture, and best practices 
that attract, optimize, and hold top talent while achieving 
corporate objectives.” 

In line with this philosophy, HR team at REPRO has developed 
various initiatives and incorporated best practices from the 
industry for its human capital comprising of close to 1000 
employees.

Your Company believes that teamwork is an integral part of 
an organisation’s progress. With this in mind, your Company 
has put into place several significant HR initiatives that help 
on our path of expansion. REPRO creates self reliance and 
opportunities for fresh Print Engineers by providing them with 
6 months cross functional training before final placement in 
the specific function.

Repro launched a Small Group Activity for various departments 
and numerous corporate training initiatives were conducted 
over the year. Our HR department has embarked on a new 
initiative this year – Muskaan. The purpose of this activity is 
to spread happiness among underprivileged children. Through 
the campaign, employees are encouraged to donate money, 
toys, clothes and other items. These shall be handed over 
to the NGOs that work for underprivileged children. Various 

employees have already shown their eagerness to participate 
in this initiative.

Progressive policies have been implemented that help 
streamline efficiencies by ensuring a culture of responsibility 
and greater discipline. A half yearly appraisal system with 
weightages and a bell-curve approach for performance 
measurement have resulted in greater accountability and 
therefore, greater efficiencies across the board. Several 
measures have been implemented that have benchmarked 
best practices leading to greater empowerment of the labour 
force. A rigorous re-skilling programme which covered 
outbound training , workshops and seminars on latest trends, 
technologies and management techniques has further helped 
enhance abilities across the organisation.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, 
the Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards read with requirements set out 
under Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 have 
been followed and no material departures have been 
made from the same;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 
Company for that period;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis.
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Disclosure pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999

Sr. No Particulars Repro ESOS 2006 Repro ESOS 2010
a Options granted 500000 200000
b Exercise Price/ pricing formula The exercise price for granting of Options is  the “Market Price” within the meaning of ESOP 

Guidelines issued by SEBI which is the latest available closing price, prior to the date when 
options are granted by the Compensation Committee, on that Stock Exchange where there 
is highest trading volume on the said date.
Accordingly, the Company issued 5,00,000 Stock 
options at a price of ` 98 per option, being the closing 
price of the equity shares of Repro India Limited on 
May 14, 2007 During the year 2011, 34000 number of 
options had lapsed on account of resignation of some 
employees and these were regranted on June 8, 2010 
to Mr.Pramod Khera, Executive Director at an exercise 
price of ` 98  being the market price on the date of the 
grant which got  vested on June 8 , 2011.Out of  another 
40000 options which were lapsed, 10000 options each  
were regranted to the four Non Executive Directors 
namely Mr. Sanjay Asher, Mr. P.Krishnamurthy, Dr. 
J.J.Irani and Mr. U.R.Bhat on August 12, 2010 at an 
exercise price of ` 101  being the market price on the 
date of the grant which got vested on August 12, 2011. 
During the year ended March 31, 2012, 17000 
options had lapsed on account of resignation of some 
employees and these were regranted on May 23, 2011 
to one of the employees at an exercise price of ` 104
being the market price on the date of the grant 50% of 
which got vested on May 23 , 2012 and balance 50 % 
shall vest on May 23, 2013.

Company has granted 200000 
stock options to Mr. Pramod Khera 
at an exercise price of ` 101
being the market price on the date 
of the grant which  got vested on 
August 12, 2011. 

c Options vested(As on March 
31,2012)

64,785 200,000

d Options exercised and allotted 
(As at March 31, 2012)

283,210
(Cumulative 363925)

NIL

e The total number of shares 
arising as a result of exercise of 
option(As on March 31,2012)

283,210 NIL

f Options lapsed (as at March 
31, 2012)

9990 NIL

g Variation of terms of options Nil NIL
h Money realized by exercise of 

options
` 27,844,580 NIL

i Total number of options in force 
(as at March 31, 2012)

200,000

j Employee wise details of 
options granted to :
i) Senior managerial 

personnel
Pramod Khera     – 89000
Baijendra Gujarathi – 25000
Shekhar Bangera – 25000
Shirish Joshi     – 25000
Dinesh Sureka    – 25000

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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ii) any other employee who 
receives a grant in any one 
year of option amounting 
to 5% or more of option 
granted during that year;

17000 options were regranted to Mr. Nilesh Dhankani 
which were initially granted to employees and lapsed. 

iii) Identified employees who 
were granted option during 
any one year, equal to 
or exceeding 1 % of the 
issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants 
an conversions) of the 
Company at the time of 
grant

Nil

Mr. Pramod Khera – 200000 
options granted in August 2010 as 
per Special Resolution passed at 
the  AGM on July 24, 2010 vested 
in August 2011

k Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
pursuant to issue of shares on 
exercise of option calculated 
in accordance with Accounting 
Standard (AS) 20 ‘Earnings per 
Share’

` 33.28

l i) Method of calculation of 
employee compensation 
cost

The Company has calculated the employee compensation cost using the intrinsic value 
method of accounting to account for Options issued under the Repro ESOS 2006 and Repro 
ESOS 2010 .
The compensation cost as per the intrinsic value method for the year 2012 is Nil

ii) Difference between the 
employee compensation 
cost so computed at (i) 
above and the employee 
compensation cost that 
shall have been recognized 
if it had used the fair value 
of the Options

If fair value method was used the profit would have decreased by ` 11,488,957

iii) The impact of this 
difference on profits and 
on EPS of the Company

The diluted EPS would have decreased from ` 33.28 to ` 32.22

m Weighted average exercise price 
and weighted average  fair value

` 99.50 & ` 98
` 70

` 101
` 52

n Fair value of Options based on 
Black Scholes methodology 

` 70 ` 52

Assumptions
Risk free rate 8.00 % 8.00 %
Expected life of options 36 months after vesting; 4 years, 5 years and 6 years 

for vesting tranche of 30%, 30% and 40 % and 4 and 
5 years for each vesting tranche of 100 % and 50 % 
respectively

36 months after vesting

Expected Volatility 59 % & 67 % 56%
Expected Dividends ` 6 and 2.5 per share ` 2.97 per share
Closing market price of share on 
date of option grant

` 98 and ̀ 101 for the grant of 40000 options on August 
12, 2010 and 104 for the grant of 17000 options on May 
23, 2011

` 101

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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BOARD’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes in transparency, empowerment, accountability, safety of people and the environment, motivation, respect 
for law and implementation of fair business practices with all its stakeholders. These practices instituted since the inception of 
the Company have helped it achieve sustained growth.

The corporate governance philosophy of the Company is to ensure transparency in all it’s dealings and in the functioning of the 

on integrity, social obligations and regulatory compliances. The Company operates within accepted standards of propriety, fair 
play and justice and aims at creating a culture of openness in relationships between itself and its stakeholders. The corporate 
governance philosophy has been further strengthened through the Code of Conduct for Practice and Prevention of Insider Trading.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of eleven (11) Directors consisting of one Executive Chairman and ten other directors. These ten 
directors comprise of one Managing Director, three Whole Time Directors and Six Non Executive, Independent Directors. The 
composition of the Board of Directors is in compliance with the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The composition of the Board of Directors, the attendance of each Director during Board Meetings and the last Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) and also the number of other Board of Directors or Board Committees on which he is Member/Chairman, are as 
under:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Nature of 
directorship

Attendance
Particulars

No. of other Directorships and Committee 
Members/Chairmanships

Board
Meeting

AGM Directorships Committee
Memberships

Chairmanships

Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman Executive 4 Present 2 Nil Nil

Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director Executive 4 Present 5 Nil Nil

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Whole Time Director Executive 4 Present 3 Nil Nil

Mr. Rajeev Vohra Whole Time Director Executive 4 Present 3 Nil Nil

Mr. Pramod Khera Whole Time Director Executive 4 Present 2 Nil Nil

Mr. Dushyant Mehta Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 2 1 Nil

Dr. Jamshed J. Irani Director Non Executive 
Independent

3 Absent 3 1 Nil

Mr. U.R.Bhat Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 6 5 2

Mr. Alyque 
Padamsee

Director Non Executive 
Independent

3 Absent 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Sanjay Asher Director Non Executive 
Independent

1 Absent 38* 10 4

Mr. P.Krishnamurthy Director Non Executive 
Independent

4 Present 13 2 2

*Out of the 38 Companies in which he is a Director, 24 of them are Private Limited Companies and in one of the Companies he 
is an Alternate Director.

2011 and January 31, 2012. The Company has held at least one Board Meeting in every quarter and the maximum time gap 
between any two meetings was not more than four months.

The Code of Conduct applicable to the Board of Directors and the Senior Managerial Personnel has been posted on the Company’s 
website. Further all Board Members and the Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company have affirmed their adherence to the 
code. The Company’s Managing Director’s declaration to this effect forms a part of this report.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of following directors as specified below:

1.  Mr. P.Krishnamurthy  : Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)

2.  Mr. Sanjay Asher  : Member (Indepen dent Non-Executive Director)

3.  Mr. Alyque Padamsee  : Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)

3.  Mr. Mukesh Dhruve  : Member (Executive Whole Time Director)

The constitution,composition and terms of reference to the Audit Committee covers the matters specified under Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement (revised till date) and Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956

All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and Mr. Krishnamurthy is a Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and possesses wide and varied accounting or related financial management expertise.

Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni, Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The main function of the Audit Committee 
is to provide the Board of Directors of the Company with additional assurance as to reliability of financial information and 
statutory financial statements and as to the adequacy of internal accounting and control systems. It acts as a link between the 
management, statutory auditors and the Board of Directors.

During the year the Audit Committee met four times on May 24, 2011, July 14, 2011, October 20, 2011 and January 31, 2012. 
Necessary quorum was present at all these meetings.

Name No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. P. Krishnamurthy 4 4

Mr. Sanjay Asher 4 2

Mr. Alyque Padamsee 4 3

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve 4 4

INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES AND INTERACTION COMMITTEE

The Investor’s Grievances & Interaction Committee constituted by the Board comprises of Mr.Alyque Padamsee, a Non-Executive 
Director as Chairman and Mr. Vinod Vohra and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Executive Directors as its members. The Board has designated 
Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company as the Secretary of the Committee.

The Committee acts in accordance with the terms of reference specified by the Board from time to time which, inter alia, include 
overseeing and reviewing all matters connected with investor’s complaints and redressal mechanism besides approval or 
authorizations for issue of duplicate share certificate, share transfer/transmission/ refusal of transfer/consolidation/sub-division/
dematerialisation or rematerialisation, etc., as per applicable statutory and regulatory provisions.

During the period from April 1, 2011 till March 31,2012, 12 investor complaints were received, all 12 were resolved and Nil were 
pending. Further, no investor complaints remained unattended/pending for more than 30 days.

Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer nominated for this purpose under Clause 47(a) of the Listing 
Agreement. She looks into the investor grievances and co-ordinates with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Link 
Intime  India Private Limited for redressal of grievances. The Company as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement has an email 
id investor@reproindialtd.com dedicated for the investor related queries and the same has been posted on the website of the 
Company as well.

The Committee held two meetings during the year on May 24, 2011 and October 20, 2011. All the members of the Committee 
attended the aforesaid meetings.

The Committee has appointed a Sub-Committee consisting of Mr. Vinod Vohra, Chairman and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve, Director 
with Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni acting as the Secretary to the sub-committee to look after approval or authorisations for issue 
of duplicate share certificate, share transfer/transmission/ refusal of transfer/consolidation/sub-division/dematerialisation or 
rematerialisation, etc., as per applicable statutory and regulatory provisions which Committee shall meet as an when required 
to complete the requests of the shareholders within one month of receipt of any such request as required under Clause 47(C).

The Sub-Committee of the Investors’ Grievance and Interaction Committee meets at regular intervals. The Minutes of the sub-
committee are placed before the following Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee Meeting.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors consists of following directors as specified below:

1. Mr. Sanjay Asher

2. Mr. P. Krishnamurthy

3. Mr. Alyque Padamsee

The Remuneration committee met on May 30, 2012 and recommended the revised scales for the renewal of appointment 
of the Executive Directors of the Company. The recommendations of the Remuneration Committee were placed before the 
Board. The Board has approved the reappointment of Mr. Pramod Khera as an Executive Director for a period of three years 
wef May 18, 2012 and Mr. Vinod Vohra as Chairman, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra as Managing Director and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve 
and Mr. Rajeev Vohra as Executive Directors for a period of three years from March 1, 2013 subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE:

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company consists of :

1. Mr. Sanjay Asher – Chairman

2. Mr. Alyque Padamsee – Member

3. Mr. Mukesh Dhruve – Member

This Committee has been constituted to implement, supervise and administer the “Repro  India Limited – Employee Stock Option 

Exchange  Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Guidelines) 
and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and terms of reference as stipulated under REPRO ESOS 2006 and/or any other 
ESOS/ESOP Scheme that may be framed in the future.

The Committee is authorized to create, grant, offer, issue and allot and list the options/securities of the Company arising pursuant 
to the Repro ESOS 2006 and/or any other ESOS/ESOP Scheme that may be framed in the future and do such other acts,  deeds 
and things to give effect to this authority.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Annual Accounts and the financial statements of Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd which is a 74.8 % subsidiary of Repro India 
Ltd and related detailed information according to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the listing agreement have been 
attached alongwith the Balance Sheet of the Company.

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION:

The Managing Director (MD) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company who is the Executive Director in charge of 
Finance, give annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Clause 49. The MD and the 
CFO also give quarterly certification on financial results while placing the financial results before the Board in terms of Clause 41 
of the Listing Agreement.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Location, date and time of the Annual General Meeting held during the preceding 3 years are as follows

Year Date Time Location

11.30 a.m

11.30 a.m

11.30 a.m

The following Special Resolutions were passed by the Company at the last 3 Annual General Meetings.

Annual General Meeting held on July 18,2009:

Appointment of Mr. Pramod Khera an Executive Director of the Company.
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Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra as a Managing Director of the Company

Re-appointment of Mr. Mukesh Dhruve as a Executive Director of the Company

Re-appointment of Mr. Rajeev Vohra as a Executive Director of the Company

Re-pricing of the stock options issued under the Repro India Ltd Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2006

Annual General Meeting held on July 24, 2010:

Approval of Repro India Ltd Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010

Grant of 2 lakh stock options to Mr. Pramod Khera, Executive Director

At present, the Company is not proposing to conduct any resolution through the postal ballot.

DISCLOSURES ON MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS THAT IS TRANSACTIONS OF THE 
COMPANY OF MATERIAL NATURE, WITH ITS PROMOTERS, THE DIRECTORS OR THE MANAGEMENT, THEIR RELATIVES, 
OR SUBSIDIARIES, ETC THAT MAY HAVE POTENTIAL CONFLICT WITH THE INTEREST OF THE COMPANY AT LARGE.

1) Materially significant Related Party transactions.

The transaction between the Company and the Management, Directors or their relatives are disclosed in the Paragraph 
No. 32 of the Notes to the Annual Accounts in compliance with the Accounting Standard relating to “Related Party 
Disclosures”. There is no other materially significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large .

2) There were no cases of non-compliance with Stock Exchange or SEBI regulations, nor any cases of penalties or strictures 
imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority for any violation related to the capital market 
during the last three years.

3) The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and the Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and the same has been posted on the website of the Company. All the Board members and senior managerial personnel 
have affirmed compliance with the Code as on March 31, 2012. A certification to this effect as required by Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement by the Managing Director is forming part of this Annual Report.

4) All the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 are complied with and the Company has presently not adopted any of the 
non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

5) Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors of the Company

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of ` 20000/- per meeting for attending each meeting of the Board of 
Directors and Committees thereof. The Non-Executive Directors do not draw any other remuneration from the Company 
except Mr. Alyque Padamsee, one of our Non-Executive Directors who received fees of ̀ 4,67,136 (GROSS) for professional 
services being rendered by him as Image Building and Business Development Consultant in addition to his sitting fees for 
attending Board and Committee meetings.

The aggregate value of salary and perquisites for the year ended March 31,2012 to the Managing Director and Whole time 
Directors is as follows:

Name of the Director Designation Salary (`) Perquisites(`) Total (`)

Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman 41,55,984 6,33,600 47,89,584

Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director 1,41,31,983 6,30,000 1,47,61,983

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Whole-Time Director 38,50,000 6,15,600 44,65,600

Mr. Rajeev Vohra Whole-Time Director 40,95,983 8,73,344 49,69,327

Mr. Pramod Khera Whole-Time Director 56,09,000 39,36,400 95,45,400

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The aggregate value of sitting fees paid to the Non Executive Directors for the year ended March 31,2012 is as follows:

Name of the Director Sitting fees paid (`)

Mr. Sanjay Asher 60000
Mr. U.R. Bhat 80000
Dr. Jamshed J. Irani 60000
Mr. P. Krishnamurthy 160000
Mr. Dushyant Mehta 80000
Mr. Alyque Padamsee 160000

The Chairman, Managing Director and the Whole Time Directors are appointed for a term of three years from 01.03.10 to 

liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Pramod Khera’s tenure of appointment is three years from May 18, 2009.

The Remuneration committee met on May 30, 2012 and recommended the revised scales for the renewal of appointment 
of the Executive Directors of the Company. The recommendations of the Remuneration Committee were placed before the 
Board. The Board has approved the reappointment of Mr. Pramod Khera as an Executive Director for a period of three years 
wef May 18, 2012 and Mr. Vinod Vohra as Chairman, Mr. Sanjeev Vohra as Managing Director and Mr. Mukesh Dhruve 
and Mr. Rajeev Vohra as Executive Directors for a period of three years from March 1, 2013 subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Cumulatively,2,89,000 options had been granted to Mr. Pramod Khera of which 89000 are already exercised and balance 
200000 options have vested in August 2011.

During the year Mr.Pramod Khera has exercised 89000 options and Dr. Jamshed J. Irani, Mr. U. R. Bhat and 
Mr. P. Krishnamurthy have exercised 10000 options each granted to them under the Repro India Ltd (Employees Stock 
Option Scheme), 2006.

6)

Director No. of Shares Percentage
Mr. Sanjay Asher 2000 0.01
Mr. U R Bhat 10000 0.10
Mr. P. Krishnamurthy 10000 0.10
Dr. J J Irani 10000 0.10

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly results and annual results are normally published in ‘Free Press Journal’ and ‘Navshakti’. These results are 
simultaneously posted on the Company’s website: www.reproindialtd.com. Official news releases, transcript of conference calls 
with the analysts, investors, etc are displayed on the Company’s website www.reproindialtd.com.

The Company’s website www.reproindialtd.com contains a separate dedicated section “Investor Relations” where information  
relevant to shareholders is made available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website in a user friendly 
and downloadable format.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

1. Annual General Meeting

The Nineteenth AGM of the Company will be held on September 22, 2012 at The Colonial Hall, ‘The Club’,197, D. N. Nagar 

2. Book Closure Dates: September 15, 2012 to September 22, 2012

Dividend Payment date : On or after September 22, 2012
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3. Financial Calendar (tentative)

 AGM      – Last week of September 2013
 Quarterly Results:
 First Quarter ending on 30.06.12  – Last week of July 2012
 Second Quarter ending on 30.09.12  – Last week of October 2012
 Third Quarter ending on 31.12.12  – Last week of Jan 2013
 Year ending on 31.03.13 – Last week of May 2013

4. Listing of Shares on Stock Exchanges

 The shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

 Annual Listing fees as prescribed for the year 2012-13 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges.

5. Stock Code

 Scrip Code on BSE is 532687
 Trading Symbol on NSE is “REPRO”
 Demat ISIN no : INE461B01014

6. Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in last financial year & Share price performance in comparison to 
broad-based indices- BSE Sensex & NIFTY

Month BSE Share Price SENSEX NSE Share Price NIFTY

High Low High Low High Low High Low

April 2011 123.50 89.50 19811.14 18976.19 123.80 91.00 5944.45 5693.25

May 2011 118.00 100.05 19253.87 17786.13 117.90 100.55 5775.25 5328.70

June 2011 148.00 115.00 18873.39 17314.38 148.20 115.00 5657.90 5195.90

July 2011 187.00 131.10 19131.70 18131.86 187.00 130.00 5740.04 5453.95

August 2011 172.00 133.20 18440.07 15765.53 174.00 132.05 5551.90 4720.00

September 2011 155.40 135.00 17211.89 15801.01 155.90 135.05 5169.25 4758.85

October 2011 185.10 131.55 17908.13 15745.43 184.70 131.25 5399.70 4728.30

November 2011 205.80 157.10 17702.26 15478.69 207.20 157.15 5326.45 4639.10

December 2011 179.35 145.10 17003.71 15135.86 188.40 144.00 5099.25 4531.15

January 2012 218.00 162.20 17258.97 15358.02 217.20 162.00 5217.00 4888.05

February 2012 208.40 184.00 18523.78 17061.55 208.30 182.25 5629.95 5159.00

March 2012 202.45 181.00 18040.69 16920.61 207.65 182.05 5499.40 5135.95

7.  Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

 M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd
 C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
 LBS Marg, Bhandup (W),
 Mumbai 400 078
 Phone: +91-022-25946970
 Fax : +91-022-25946969
 rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

8.  Share Transfer System

The Board has delegated the authority for approving share transfer, transmission, etc, of the Company’s securities to the 
Investors’ Grievances and Interaction Committee . A summary of transfer/transmission of securities of the Company so 
approved by the Investor’s Grievances and Interaction Committee, is placed before at the following Board Meeting.

The Company also obtains from a Company Secretary in practice, half yearly certificate of compliance with the share 
transfer formalities as required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges and files a copy of the 
certificate with the Stock Exchanges.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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9. Distribution schedule as on March 31, 2012

No. of equity shares held No. of shareholders % to total holders No. of shares % to total shares
6,071 91.33 5,89,700 5.44

259 3.90 2,06,721 1.91
120 1.81 1,82,806 1.69
54 0.81 1,34,857 1.24
26 0.39 94,883 0.88
23 0.35 1,06,774 0.99
46 0.69 3,25,290 3.00

10001 & above 48 0.72 92,02,043 84.87

TOTAL 6,647 100.00 1,08,43,074 100.00
10. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31,2012

Category No. of holders No. of shares % of holding Shares pledged or 
otherwise encumbered

Promoters 22 72,64,864 67
Mutuals Funds/UTI NA
Financial Institutions 1 600 0.01 NA
FIIs 2 5,66,221 5.22 NA
Trusts 2 1,350 0.01 NA
Bodies Corporate 203 2,75,816 2.54 NA
Individuals 6,222 2,043,883 18.85 NA
Clearing Member 74 50,567 0.47 NA
NRI 108 28,872 0.27 NA
Directors & Relatives 13 6,10,901 5.63 NA
TOTAL 6,647 1,08,43,074 100.00

11. Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity.

As on March 31, 2012,  10,795,121 of the total equity capital is held in the demat form with NSDL and CDSL. Around 
99.56% of the shares of the Company are in dematerialised form. Shares of the Company can be traded only in demat form 
on Stock Exchanges. Shares of the Company are traded on BSE and NSE and hence ensure good liquidity for the investors.

40 shares of the public issue which were unclaimed and hence lying in the Escrow Account of the R & T Agent have been 
transfered to a  separate Demat Suspense Account and the related benefits are credited to suspense account of Repro India 
Ltd pursuant to Clause 5A of the Listing Agreement .

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the suspense account shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares 
claims the shares.

12. GDRs/ADRs issued by the Company:

There are no ADRs/GDRs/warrants or any convertible instruments issued by the Company.

13. Plant Locations

Facility at : 50/2, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai 400 710
SEZ facility at Surat : Plot No.90 to 93 and 165, Surat Special Economic Zone,Sachin, Surat 394230

14. Address for Correspondence

For all matters relating to shares, Annual Reports, contact:
Ms. Madhavi Kulkarni,
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer,
Marathe Udyog Bhavan, 2nd Floor,
Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi,
Mumbai 400 025

Email id exclusively for investor related queries : investor@reproindialtd.com
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15. Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM

Name of the Director P. Krishnamurthy
Date of Birth October 28, 1948
Date of Appointment May 23, 2008
Areas of Experience Presently, Mr. P. Krishnamurthy is an Executive Director of SKIL, a leading Infrastructure 

Development firm involved in Shipyards, Special Economic Zones and now promoting 
Port, Logistics; As a Director of the Urban Infrastructure Venture Capital Limited and 
Member of the Investment Committee his focus is on strategy, sourcing of deals and 
fund raising. He is the Chairman of the Advisory Board of Quant Capital Limited and 
Senior Adviser to TAFE, a 1.5 billion $ company in Chennai. Since September 2004, he 
has been actively initiating and managing Investments in Infrastructure & Real Estate 
Investment Management & Corporate Advisory. He has over 25 years of experience 
in Corporate Management and Strategy, Restructuring, M&A, Internal Business and 
Joint Ventures, Financial Management & Banking including managing and supervising 
business units in India and abroad.He was involved in financial services for the last nine 
years as Vice Chairman of JM Morgan Stanley, Director of JM Financial and Director 
of ILFS Asset Management. He has been involved in Industry Associations and Non 
Profitable Organizations as former Chairman – CII National Committee on Private Equity 
and Venture Capital Fund, Chairman – CII Privatization sub-committee and member of 
various Committees of SEBI, BCCI, Bombay First Group Task Force : Committee of 
Experts on SEZ, Government of Maharashtra and Indo American Chamber of Commerce 
and – American Chamber of Commerce & Industry.

Educational Qualifications B.Com (Hons), St. Xavier’s College, University of Calcutta
Chartered Accountant
All India Rank Holder of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Companies in which he holds 
directorship

SKIL Infrastructure Limited
Mumbai SEZ Limited
Urban Infrastructure Venture Capital Limited
GMM Pfaudler Ltd
Apodis Hotels and Resorts Ltd
SICOM India Ltd
Pipavav Defence and Offshore Engineering Company Ltd - Alternate Director
J.M.Financial Investment and Consultanty Services Pvt. Ltd
Urban Infrastructure Holdings Pvt. Ltd
E Complex Pvt. Ltd
Skil Shipyard Holdings Private Ltd
SREI Mutual Fund Asset Management Private Ltd
Intellistay Hotels Private Ltd

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees

Chairman - Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee, Audit Committee and 
Remuneration Committee - GMM Pfaudler Ltd

Shareholding 10000

Name of the Director Mr.Mukesh Dhruve
Date of Birth April 28, 1960
Date of Appointment December 28, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Mukesh Rajnikant Dhruve is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. As a part of our Company since its inception, he played a critical 
role in its expansion into new business areas. He leads the export businesses with the 
countries in different Continents. He has been responsible for building relationships 
with financial institutions. He also directs the legal and secretarial operations of our 
Company.

Educational Qualifications BCom, FCA
Companies in which he holds 
directorship

Repro Knowledgecast Pvt. Ltd., 
Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd., 
MPR Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees

NIL

Shareholding 166000 shares
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Name of the Director Mr.Pramod Khera
Date of Birth Feb 22, 1960
Date of Appointment May 18, 2009
Areas of Experience Prior to joining Repro in May 2009, Mr. Pramod Khera was heading Aptech Ltd. as its 

CEO and Managing Director since 2001. He was responsible for the global operations 
of the company, which included the education brands of Aptech Computer Education, 

in 35 countries. Mr. Pramod Khera’s responsibilities also included overseeing the China 

With over 20 years in Aptech, Mr. Pramod Khera has been a part of the growth of the 
company since inception and has contributed significantly in building Aptech into a 
Global Learning Organisation.

President of The Franchising Association of India. He has participated in various forums 
on IT, Education, Franchising and Strategy in India and abroad.

work experience of over 25 years, Mr. Pramod Khera has also worked with NIIT and 
Calico Mills. 

Educational Qualifications
from Pune University

Companies in which he holds 
directorship

Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd., 
MPR Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees

Nil

Shareholding 244601
Stock options granted and 
vested

200000

Name of the Director Mr.Vinod Vohra
Date of Birth February 15, 1952
Date of Appointment April 1, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Vinod Vohra, is a Science Graduate. Having begun his career in marketing, his 

interests led him to setting up technology led projects. Being keenly interested in 
technology, he was among the few people to recognise the potential of the Apple 
Macintosh computer and use it for Graphic Desktop Publishing and Multimedia 
applications. His vision was instrumental in our Company’s transition to the area of 
Fulfilment services. He was responsible for the planning and setting up our Company’s 
Print and Fulfilment facility, and currently keeps in tune with the technology required 
to enhance the business infrastructure as well as to plan the infrastructure for our 
Company’s foray into newer business lines.

Educational Qualifications Science Graduate .
Companies in which he holds 
directorship

Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd., 
Repro Knowledgecast Pvt. Ltd.

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees

NIL

Shareholding 187700
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Name of the Director Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
Date of Birth February 25, 1957
Date of Appointment April 1, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Sanjeev Vohra, Having graduated in Economics and Finance, he is the main financial 

mind behind the Company. He has been significantly responsible for the investment 
strategy of Repro that has driven the Company into the field of value added print 
solutions. Through his direction, guidance and efficient resource management, he has 
taken the Company into high growth business areas, which have resulted in niche and 
specialized segments of growth.

Educational Qualifications Graduated in Economics and Finance
Companies in which he holds 
directorship

Repro Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. (formerly name Reproductions Pvt. Ltd.), 
Repro Knowledgecast Pvt. Ltd., 
Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd., 
Zoyaksa Consultant Pvt. Ltd., 
MPR Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees

NIL

Shareholding 423036

Name of the Director Mr. Rajeev Vohra
Date of Birth October 8, 1960
Date of Appointment April 1, 1993
Areas of Experience Mr. Rajeev Vohra, is a commerce graduate. He has over the past years, acquired 

considerable experience in manufacturing, both on the technical and management front. 
Based on this experience he has introduced efficient technology processes to Repro. 
His skills were acknowledged when he was nominated for the India Young Business 
Achiever Award instituted by Sistas Worldcom Inc and the Indian Express Group in 
1997. He currently directs our Company’s Print and Fulfilment facility in Navi Mumbai.

Educational Qualifications Commerce Graduate
Companies in which he holds 
directorship

Repro Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. (formerly name Reproductions Pvt. Ltd.), 
Repro Knowledgecast Pvt. Ltd., 
Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd.

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees

NIL

Shareholding 172314

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
REPRO INDIA LIMITED

Vinod Vohra
Chairman
Mumbai, May 30, 2012
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel of 
the Company. This Code has been posted on the website of the Company.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2012, received from the senior managerial 
personnel of the Company and the Members of the Board a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable 
to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Managerial Personnel means the employees in the cadre of  Senior Vice President, 
Vice President, Associate Vice President and Company Secretary as on March 31, 2012.

For REPRO INDIA LIMITED

SANJEEV VOHRA
Managing Director
Mumbai, Dated: May 30, 2012

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 

UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To,
The Members,
Repro India Limited,

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Repro India Limited (“the Company”) for the 
year ended March 31, 2012, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered by the Company with the Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the representation 
made by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated 
in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended March 31, 2012, no investor grievance is pending/
unattended for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by the Investors’ Grievances 
and Interaction Committee and as intimated by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

DINESH KUMAR DEORA
Practising Company Secretary

Membership No. 5683
CP No. 4119

Mumbai, Dated: May 30, 2012
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Your Directors are pleased to present the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report for the year ended March 
31,2012
1. Overview

Across the world, education is a stepping stone in life. 
At Repro, education defines our drive to be far more 
than just a print company, as we emerge a provider of 
educational solutions. Within the educational delivery 
chain, Repro has been providing customised solutions 
in content, production and distribution to publishers 
around the world. From enabling content to managing it 
through its life cycle, converting it into different formats 
and providing logistical solutions, the Company’s focus 
is to enhance value for its clients. Its vision is to produce 
quality educational material for the clients’ end users – 
the students. 
The Company is working towards offering solutions 
at every stage of the education value chain, so that 
its clients – educational publishers - can grow their 
business, while the Company continues to enhance 
education and achieve growth. Your Company recognises 
that knowledge and content are the key drivers for the 
future. It is expanding its capabilities to provide solutions 
to clients by investing in technologies, re-skilling people, 
expanding capacities and preparing for the future. 

2. Developments during this year :
Keeping the changing needs of clients in mind, a 
solutions and services approach to business has become 
the defining edge for Repro. This approach has found 
manifestation in various value additions to our clients’ 
businesses such as marketing, store-front, fulfilment and 
logistics, customer service and an optimised print cycle. 
Repro India is diversifying its scope of solutions, moving 
from standalone print services to content management, 
and conversion to new formats. 
In the last year, your Company has made significant 
strides in entrenching itself as a leading global player 
in the education segment.One of the Company’s main 
strategies has been the focus on education, which offers 
immense opportunity in markets like India and Africa. 
Within the Indian market, the Company is fully equipped 
to cater to all four geographical regions in India, with the 
ability to execute print runs ranging from a single copy to 
a million copies.
Education is the crux of the Indian publishing industry and 
is slowly adapting itself to newer formats, such as the 
digital space. In India, the Company has succeeded in a 
price-sensitive market by offering services ranging from 
content to fulfilment solutions, in the form of warehousing 
and logistical support to its clients and managing their 
inventory right up to the last mile despatch. Some of 
Repro’s key clients in India include Pearson, Macmillan, 
Oxford University Press, Orient Blackswan, Laxmi 
Publication, Vikram, Saraswati Publications, etc.

In Africa, the Company’s range of products and unique 
solutions can help local publishers advance education. The 
Company has established itself in 22 African countries, 
predominantly in western, eastern and southern Africa. 
Some of the key services include adapting content to 
cater to a specific geographic region, providing end-
to-end content and print solutions across services like 
content management, content digitisation, e-books, 
e-pub and many more services. Some of the key clients 
in the region are University Press Ltd., Cosmos Education 
Publishers Ltd., Ben and Co. Ltd., Evans Brothers, 
HEBN Publishers Plc., Maskew Miller Longman, etc. 
The Company has been a part of a World Bank funded 
project. In FY 2011-12, Repro executed the single largest 
order of 22 million books for the Government of Nigeria. It 
was also awarded a direct World Bank tender in Ethiopia.
In Western markets, where e-learning is re-defining 
education, the Company is preparing for an exciting 
challenge, with substantial investments in technology. 
The scope of e-learning extends beyond just schools and 
higher education institutions to encompass the corporate 
world, as well. The Company offers services such as 
digitization of legacy content, with the ability to store 
millions of pages in the content warehouse and convert 
existing content into multiple formats. 
Infrastructure
The Company has invested in infrastructure that offers 
customised solutions to educational publishers. Repro’s 
Print–on-Demand infrastructure enables publishers to 
print even a single book – which can also be customised 
if required. This helps publishers control obsolescence, 
since educational syllabi change periodically.
Another strategy that your Company has adopted has 
been its investment in content management. This helped 
Repro achieve a lock-in with clients, where it functions 
as a custodian of the publishers’ content, which is their 
key asset. Largely due to an approach of offering value 
addition, your Company is happy to report that its base 
of loyal customers has increased. 
In terms of infrastructure, the Company’s three units have 
continued to operate at the current optimum capacity. 
The acquisition of the Chennai facility from Macmillan 
will contribute to overall capacity and profitability. 
Repro has purchased additional place within the Surat 
SEZ, which will increase the capacity and productivity of 
the plant.
A focus on IT has enabled the Company achieve 
completely automated workflows that are customised to 
the print vertical. This has further added to efficiencies 
and therefore profitability.
Operations at all three plants are controlled centrally 
through the JDF Certified Monarch Planner, which 
automates the layout and preparation of complex jobs, 
automatically building unique layouts for unique jobs. 
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This has made it easy for the Company to plan and apply 
its resources for profitable task management.
Alliances with KnowledgeCast and Service Point will 
help the Company better its reach to European clients 
and also offer an enhanced range of services. 
Recognition
Repro has been awarded various international 
certifications for processes that are integrated within its 
solutions. These include 

ISO 14001:2004 for environment management 
systems,
ISO 9001:2008 for quality management systems, 
FSC and PEFC certifications for paper and 
SEDEX compliance for enabling responsible supply 
chain practices.

The Company has added another presitigious certification 
to its list. The internationally coveted FOGRA certification 
was awarded to Repro in September 2011, making it 
the first Indian print company to be awarded with this 
certification. FOGRA is an internationally recognised 

The Company also bagged the Capexil Award for the 
fifth time in a row. CAPEXIL confers annual awards to 
its members in recognition of their excellence in export 
performance.

3. Risks and Concern and Risk Mitigation
Changing economic and business conditions, evolving 
consumer preferences, rapid technological innovation 
and globalisation are driving corporations to transform 
the manner in which they operate. Companies are now 
more focused on their core business objectives, such as 
revenue growth, profitability and asset efficiency.
Though the education publishing market continues to 
grow, prices of raw material (paper is a major component 
of Repro products), foreign exchange fluctuation, rising 
interest costs, development of new products and service 
offerings and Competition from unorganised players are 
some of the risks that the Company is facing.
The Company has adopted the following strategies to 
minimise the risks involved in the business:

A partnership approach to the business, leading to 
higher predictability and better planning at all stages 
of the processes. This approach along with service 
offerings has resulted in receiving a premium from 
clients.

Innovation in thought and process, as well as staying 
ahead of the business curve, through best practices 
and enablers like technology, ensure that clients are 
getting optimum advantages, while ensuring that 
Repro gains loyalty through repeat business.

The increased investments to ensure that the 
Company reaches higher production targets to 
match the demand.

Better utilization of capacities by syncing them 
service specific products and segments. This will 
lead to better efficiencies and less wastage. 

Better planning and execution of raw material 
negotiations, the benefits of which can be passed 
on to clients. 

4. Product Categories
Repro’s key product categories are mainly education 
based. Products include Education books, Childrens’ 
books, retail and trade books and Annual Reports both in 
print and digital media. Products are customised to meet 
a specific requirement, while being engineered to give 
customers a cost and quality benefit.

5. Future Strategy And Vision
Repro’s vision is to make quality educational material 

term vision is to be able to reach to every student in 
every corner of the world and make available quality 
educational material, whether it be print based or digital 
based, available to students. Repro is working towards 
providing solutions at every stage of the value chain. Our 
partnership approach helps our clients concentrate on 
their core competencies, increasing their business. This 
also has a positive impact on Repro. 

6. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy
The Company maintains a system of strict internal 
controls, including suitable monitoring procedures. 
The Company has a sound internal control system 
for pricing, contract management and finalization of 

all its assets and other important functional areas. The 
internal control system is adequately supplemented by a 
programme of internal audit to ensure that the business 
operations are conducted in adherence to laid down 
policies and procedures. Significant issues are brought 
to the attention of the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors. The internal controls and internal audit existing 

the business requirements.
7. Material developments in Human Resources/

Industrial Relations front
While REPRO is steadfast at achieving milestones, its 
Human Resources team supports REPRO in achieving 
these landmarks by its human capital, through the 
following philosophy: 
“REPRO’s HR shall continuously strive towards 
developing & being recognized for its leadership, culture, 
and best practices that attract, optimize, and hold top 
talent while achieving corporate objectives.” 
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In line with this philosophy, HR team at REPRO has 
developed various initiatives and incorporated best 
practices from the industry for its human capital 
comprising of close to 1000 employees.
Repro has put into place several significant HR initiatives 
in this financial year. The Company has  launched a 
Small Group Activity for various departments. Numerous 
corporate training initiatives were conducted over the 
year. 
Progressive policies have been implemented that 
help streamline efficiencies by ensuring a culture of 
responsibility and greater discipline. A half yearly 
appraisal system with weightages and a bell-curve 
approach for performance measurement have resulted in 
greater accountability and therefore, greater efficiencies 
across the board. 
Several measures have been implemented that 
have benchmarked best practices leading to greater 
empowerment of the labour force. A rigorous re-
skilling programme which covered outbound training, 
workshops and seminars on latest trends, technologies 
and management techniques has further helped enhance 
abilities across the board.

8. Discussion on financial performance with respect to 
operational performance.
Improving operational efficiencies through better 
processes, identification of the right markets and the 
creation of the right product mix that is suitable to the 
Company’s infrastructure has shown results. An overall 
growth of nearly 30% in revenue and 58% in PAT is a 
testimony of the professional methodologies in execution 
and contract management adopted by your Company. 
Revenue
The sales/income from operation increased from ` 268.65
crores in 2011 to ` 345.68 crores in 2012. This is mainly 
because of your company’s more focused approach 
towards it’s core business objectives such as revenue 
growth , profitability and asset efficiency. Other income 
has decreased from ` 10.30 crores in 2011 to 3.94 crores 
in 2012 .

Expenditures
Cost of Materials 
Cost of material was at ̀ 149.20 crores in 2011 as against 
` 173.35 crores in 2012. The percentage of cost of 
material to sales has decreased to 50% in 2012 from 55% 
in 2011.
Employee emoluments
Salaries, wages and other employees benefits were 
` 30.74 crores in 2011 as against ` 34.44 crores in 2012. 
In terms of percentage of sales it has decreased from 
11% of sales in 2011 to 10% of sales in 2012. 
Operating and Other Expenses
Operating and other expenses amounted to ` 78.50
crores in 2012 as against ` 62.04 crores in 2011. The 
expenses in terms of percentage of sales has remained 
the same as last year at 23%.
EBITDA
EBITDA has increased to 18% of sales in 2012 as against 
14% of sales in 2011.
Interest and Finance Charges
Financial Expenses have increased to ` 12.32 crores in 
2012 from ` 7.87 crores in 2011 . 
Depreciation
Depreciation charged to revenue has increased to 
` 12.29 crores in 2012 as against ` 11.08 crores in 2011 
due to the new machines added during the year.
Profit before Tax(PBT)
As a result of the foregoing, PBT for FY 2011-12 stood at 
` 36.73 crores as against the previous year’s PBT of `
19.59 crores.
Provision for taxation:
It may please be noted that the statements in the 
Management, Discussion and Analysis Report describing 
the Company’s objectives and predictions may be 
forward looking within the meaning of applicable rules 
and regulations . Actual results may differ materially 
from those either expressed or implied in the statement 
depending on circumstances
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
To

The Members of Repro India Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Repro 
India Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 31, 2012, the 
Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for 
the year ended on that date (all together referred to as ‘the 
financial statements’) annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2003 (as amended) (‘the Order’) issued by the Central 

section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose 
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to 
above, we report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

iii. The balance sheet, profit and loss account and 
cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in 

iv. In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss 
account and cash flow statement dealt with by 
this report comply with the accounting standards 

Companies Act, 1956.

v. On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors, as on March 31, 2012, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, we report that 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2012 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Companies Act, 1956.

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
said accounts give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

a) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of 

b) in the case of the profit and loss account of the 

c) in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301003E

per Vijay Maniar
Partner 
Membership No.: 36738

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2012
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Annexure referred to in paragraph [3] of our report of even date
Re: Repro India Limited (‘the Company’)

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase 
of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods 
and services. During the course of our audit, we have 
not observed any major weakness or continuing failure 
to correct any major weakness in the internal control 
system of the company in respect of these areas. 

(v) (a) According to the information and explanations 
provided by the management, we are of the opinion 
that the particulars of contracts or arrangements 
referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956 that need to be entered into the register 
maintained under section 301 have been so entered.

(b) In respect of transactions made in pursuance of 
such contracts or arrangements and exceeding the 
value of Rupees five lakhs entered into during the 
financial year, because of the unique and specialized 
nature of the items involved and absence of any 
comparable prices, we are unable to comment 
whether the transactions were made at prevailing 
market prices at the relevant time.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made 
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 
records under section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 
1956, related to the manufacture of printing, and are of 
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and 
records have been made and maintained.

(ix) (a)  Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
investor education and protection fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, 
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and 
other material statutory dues have generally been 
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities 
though there have been slight delays in few cases 
in payments of profession tax, provident fund, ESIC, 
service tax and TDS.

(b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, undisputed dues in respect of income-
tax which were outstanding, at the year end, for a 
period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable, are as follows:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

 (b) The Company has a programme for physical 
verification on a rotational basis, which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business. 
Accordingly, certain fixed assets have been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. 

 (c)  There was no disposal of a substantial part of fixed 
assets during the year.

(ii)  (a)  The management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 
during the year. 

 (b)  The procedures of physical verification of inventory 
followed by the management are reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its business. 

 (c)  The Company is maintaining proper records of 
inventory and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on physical verification.

(iii)  (a) The Company has granted loan to one company 
covered in the register maintained under section 
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum 
amount involved during the year was ` 99,818,343
and the year-end balance of loans granted to such 
parties was ` 52,340,597.

 (b)  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the rate of interest 
and other terms and conditions for such loans are 
not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

 (c) In respect of loans granted, repayment of the 
principal amount is as stipulated and payment of 
interest has been regular.

 (d)  There is no overdue amount of loans granted to 
companies, firms or other parties listed in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

 (e)  According to information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not taken any loans, secured 
or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 4(iii)(e) to (g) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Name of the 
statute

Nature of the 
dues

Amount (`) Period to which 
amount relates

Due Date Date of 
payment

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Income Tax 5,147,248 April 2007 to 
March 2008

Notice of demand 
u/s 156 received on 
January 19, 2011

Not paid till 
date

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of custom duty and excise duty which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of the 
dues

Amount (`) Period to which amount relates Forum where dispute is 
pending

Customs Act, 
1962

Custom Duty 317,606,651 March 2006 to March 2009
Customs, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

Central Excise 
Act, 1944

Excise duty 17,340,854 April 2007 to December 2007 Office of Commissioner 
of Central Excise 
(Appeals) – II

(x) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of 
the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in 
the current and immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information 
and explanations given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture 
holders.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on the documents and records produced to us, 
the Company has not granted loans and advances on the 
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a
nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading 
in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

(xvi) Based on information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained.

(xvii)According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of 

(xviii)The Company has not made any preferential allotment 
of shares to parties or companies covered in the register 
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

(xix) The Company did not have any outstanding debentures 
during the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money through a public 
issue during the year.

(xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial 
statements and as per the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that no fraud on or 
by the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
course of our audit.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301003E

per Vijay Maniar
Partner 
Membership No.: 36738

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2012
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As at March 31, 2012
 (All amounts in `)

Notes
As at  

31-March-2012
As at  

31-March-2011
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 Shareholders’ Funds

Share capital 3  108,430,740  105,598,640 
Reserves and surplus 4  1,547,840,722  1,288,684,083 

 1,656,271,462  1,394,282,723 
 Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5  713,822,074  512,366,038 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6  85,086,531  78,162,343 
Long-term provisions 7  31,740,198  35,135,279 

 830,648,803  625,663,660 
 Current liabilities

Short term borrowings 8  1,096,085,717  878,770,377 
Trade payable 9  330,201,612  199,146,244 
Other current liabilities 9  343,545,970  238,006,677 
Short term provisions 7  137,719,031  77,040,922 

 1,907,552,330  1,392,964,220 
Total  4,394,472,595  3,412,910,603 
II. ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 10  1,554,528,832  1,331,991,853 
Intangible assets 11  87,427,709  53,931,626 
Capital work-in-progress 36  123,429,245  13,224,040 

Non-current investments 12  748,000  – 
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference 13  11,876,972 –
Long-term loans and advances 14  502,390,168  235,644,323 
Trade receivables 15  7,564,281  19,781,544 
Other non-current assets 15  28,704,731  18,546,863 

 2,316,669,938  1,673,120,249 
Current assets
Current investments 16  –  90,000,000 
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference 13  3,311,760 –
Inventories 17  178,884,786  181,729,255 
Trade receivables 15  1,021,066,101  811,045,227 
Cash and bank balances 18  724,951,401  511,042,475 
Short term loans and advances 14  139,175,025  127,904,774 
Other current assets 15  10,413,584  18,068,623 

 2,077,802,657  1,739,790,354 
Total  4,394,472,595  3,412,910,603 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants  Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director

Per Vijay Maniar  Mukesh Dhruve Director
Partner
Membership No.: 36738  Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary

Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012

BALANCE SHEET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants  Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director

Per Vijay Maniar  Mukesh Dhruve Director
Partner
Membership No.: 36738  Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary

Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended March 31, 2012

 (All amounts in `)

Notes
 Year ended  Year ended 

Income

Revenue from Operations 19  3,456,811,041  2,686,490,649 

Less: Excise Duty – –

Revenue from Operations (Net)  3,456,811,041  2,686,490,649 

Other Income 20  39,370,870  102,995,229 

Total Income  3,496,181,911  2,789,485,878 

Expenses:

Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 21  1,733,507,612  1,492,049,377 

22  16,042,567  (15,686,455)

Employee benefit expenses 23  344,350,494  307,376,153 

Other expenses 24  784,952,079  620,379,615 

Total Expenses  2,878,852,752  2,404,118,690 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)  617,329,159  385,367,188 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25  122,887,374  110,783,729 

Finance costs 26  123,194,226  78,650,984 

Profit before tax and prior period expenses  371,247,559  195,932,475 

Prior period expenses (net) 44  3,897,682  –

Profit before tax  367,349,877  195,932,475 

Tax expenses

Current tax (MAT payable)  75,700,000 –

Less: MAT Credit Entitlement  (75,700,000) –

Taxation of earlier years –  8,812,236 

Deferred tax  6,924,187  (40,803,668)

Total tax expenses  6,924,187  (31,991,432)

Profit after tax  360,425,690  227,923,907 

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share ` 10 each (March 31, 2011: ` 10)] 27

(1) Basic  33.66  21.63 

(2) Diluted  33.28  20.97 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
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For the year ended March 31, 2012
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended 
31-March-2012

 Year ended 
31-March-2011

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax  367,349,877  195,932,475 

Depreciation/Amortisation  122,887,374  110,783,729 

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  2,530,508  126,651 

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss  61,378,520  (14,995,356)

Net Gain on Sale of Current Investments  (1,488,689)  (8,550,738)

Interest Expense  57,245,613  39,119,116 

Interest Income  (34,888,935)  (27,229,604)

Operating Profit before working capital changes  575,014,268  295,186,273 

Movements in working capital:

Increase in Trade Payables  118,050,716  32,263,682 

Increase in Long-term Provisions  (3,395,081)  18,242,275 

Increase in Short term Provisions  8,296,404  (110,243)

Increase in Other Current Liabilities  102,381,448  221,974,588 

(Increase) in Trade Receivables  (145,384,000)  (168,244,721)

Decrease in Inventories  2,844,470  11,625,169 

Decrease in Long-term Loans and Advances  (232,783,348)  (43,793,488)

Decrease in Short term Loans and Advances  (11,270,251)  (69,445,419)

Decrease in Other Current Assets  7,655,039  (14,686,856)

(Increase) in Other Non-Current Assets  (10,157,867)  (18,504,807)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations  411,251,798  264,506,453 

Taxes paid  (65,909,083)  (15,811,830)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)  345,342,715  248,694,623 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (including Intangible assets), Capital Work-in-progress and Capital 
advances

 (392,744,223)  (120,104,676)

Investment in Subsidiary - Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited  (748,000)  – 

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  21,048,514  8,413,741 

Proceeds from Sales/Maturity of Current Investments  91,488,689  326,724,737 

Investment in Margin Money Deposit  (12,370,264)  (12,130,237)

Interest Received  34,888,935  27,229,604 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B)  (258,436,349)  230,133,169 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended  Year ended 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of Share Capital  27,844,580  6,342,070 

Proceeds from L Borrowings  301,409,489  92,800,251 

Repayment of L Borrowings  (281,783,516)  (72,943,641)

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net)  195,149,337  14,389,010 

Interest Paid  (54,087,768)  (36,885,309)

Dividends paid on Equity Shares  (63,584,784)  (31,556,447)

Tax on Equity Dividend Paid  (10,315,042)  (5,263,019)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)  114,632,296  (33,117,085)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  201,538,662  445,710,707 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  498,912,238  53,201,531 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  700,450,900  498,912,238 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  625,592  741,411 

With banks

 215,366,325  45,121,020 

 484,000,000  452,700,000 

 458,983  349,807 

Total Cash and Cash equivalents (Note 18)  700,450,900  498,912,238 

* The Company can utilise these balance only towards settlement of the respective unpaid 
dividend

Summary of Significant accounting policies 2.1

As per our Report of even date  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E

Chartered Accountants  Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director

Per Vijay Maniar  Mukesh Dhruve Director
Partner
Membership No.: 36738  Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary

Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012
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1. Corporate information

Repro India Limited (“The Company”) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. It’s shares are listed on two stock exchanges in India. The Company provides print solutions to client, which mainly includes value 
engineering, creative designing, pre-press, printing, post-press, knitting and assembly, warehousing, dispatch, database management, 
sourcing and procurement, localization and web based services.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India 
(Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards 
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies 
adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, except for the change in accounting policy 
explained below.

 2.1  Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Change in accounting policy

Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act, 1956, has become 
applicable to the Company, for preparation and presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI 
does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. However, it has 
significant impact on presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements. The Company has also reclassified the 
previous year figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year.

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

c) Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs 
relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included 
to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready for its intended use.

From accounting periods commencing on or after December 7, 2006, the Company adjusts exchange differences arising on 
translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the 
cost of the asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset.

d) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method, using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives of the fixed assets 
estimated by the management, which corresponds to the rate prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or its estimated useful life whichever is lower.

Leasehold land is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of lease (95 years for land at Mahape and 77 years for 
land at Surat).

Assets acquired on hire purchase/finance lease are generally depreciated over the period of useful life of assets on a straight-
line basis unless there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership of the asset would be obtained at the end of the 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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agreement term. Where there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership of the asset would be obtained at the end of the 
agreement term such assets are depreciated over the shorter of the contract term or the asset’s useful life in accordance with 
the Company’s normal depreciation policy.

e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses if any.

f) Inventories

Raw materials, packing 
materials, stores and spares 

Lower of cost or net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in 
the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in 
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Custom Duty 
on imported stock lying at custom bonded warehouse is not provided pending decision on 
clearance under export incentive scheme. Cost is determined on a FIFO basis by applying 
specific identification method for paper and on FIFO basis for other raw materials, packing 
materials, stores and spares.

goods
Lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes materials and labour and a proportion 
of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods 
includes excise duty wherever applicable. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g) Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual 

a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited 
to the statement of profit and loss.

h) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goods:

Sales of printed material and fulfillment product are recognized on transfer of property in goods and performance of service. 
Sales are inclusive of excise duty, wherever applicable, but net of trade discount and other applicable taxes. Export sales 
are net of freight expense. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, 
therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Income from Services:

Revenue from services is recognized as and when the services are rendered.

Export incentives:

Export incentive principally comprises of duty drawback, Duty Entitlement Pass Book credit, excise duty rebate and other 
benefits available to the Company based on guidelines formulated for the respective schemes by the government authorities. 
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These incentives are recognized as revenue on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that realization is certain.

Interest:

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividends:

Revenue is recognized when the shareholders right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date.

i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings 
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the 
interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

j) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Initial Recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount, the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in 
a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange differences

From accounting periods commencing on or after December 7, 2006, the Company accounts for exchange differences arising 
on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as below:

1. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a fixed asset are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. For this purpose, the Company treats a foreign 
monetary item as “long-term foreign currency monetary item”, if it has a term of 12 months or more at the date of its 
origination.

2. Exchange differences arising on other long-term foreign currency monetary items are accumulated in the “Foreign 
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the remaining life of the concerned 
monetary item but not beyond accounting period ended on or before March 31, 2020.

All other exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset/liability

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contract is amortized and recognized as an expense/
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts, except the contracts which are long-term 
foreign currency monetary items, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the exchange rates 
change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is also recognized as income 
or as expense for the period. Any gain/loss arising on forward contracts which are long-term foreign currency monetary items 
is recognized in accordance with paragraphs 1 and 2 above.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation fund are defined contribution schemes and the 
contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and the cost is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on Projected 
Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year.

based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

l) Leases (where the Company is lessee)

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of 
the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of lease term at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum 
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on 
the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are recognized as finance cost in the profit and loss account. Lease management 
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalized.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a 

m) Impairment of Tangible and Intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent 
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation 
model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment 

generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The 
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in 
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

n) Income taxes
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tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating 
during the currency year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible 
timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or 
carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws 
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of 
timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject to 
the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday 
period is recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition of 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred 
taxes, the timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred 
tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying 
amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is 
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company 
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the 
year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for 
Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of 
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit 
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

o) Employee Stock Option Plan

The measurement and disclosure of employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with SEBI (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee 
Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Company measures compensation 
cost relating to employee stock options using the intrinsic value method. Compensation expense is amortized over the 
vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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p) Segment reporting

Identification of segments

The Company operates in a single business segment in view of the nature of the products and services provided. The analysis 
of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

Segment Accounting Policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

q) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, 
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

r) Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates.

s) Cash and cash equivalents

investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

t) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 

not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured 
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

u) Derivative instruments

In accordance with ICAl announcement, derivative contracts, other than foreign currency forward contracts covered under 
AS 11 are marked to market on a portfolio basis, and the net loss, if any, after considering the offsetting effect of gain on the 
underlying hedged item, is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Net gain, if any, after considering the offsetting effect 
of loss on the underlying hedged item, is ignored.

v) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the 
statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss) from continuing operations. In its 
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.
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3. Share Capital
 (All amounts in `)

As at  
31-March-2012

As at  
31-March-2011

Authorised Shares
25,000,000 (Previous year 25,000,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each  250,000,000  250,000,000 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up - Shares 
10,843,074 (Previous year 10,559,864) Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  108,430,740  105,598,640 

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and 
at the end of the year

 Equity Shares 31-March-2012 31-March-2011
 No . `  No. `

 At the beginning of the year  10,559,864  105,598,640  10,495,149  104,951,490 
 Issued during the year  283,210  2,832,100  64,715  647,150 
 Outstanding at the end of the year  10,843,074  108,430,740  10,559,864  105,598,640 

 b.  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was ̀ 10
(March 31, 2011: ` 6 ).

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 c.  Shares held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company and/or their Subsidiaries/Associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company, Ultimate Holding Company and their Subsidiaries/
Associates are as below:

(All amounts in `)

31-March-2012 31-March-2011
All nos.
Repro Enterprises Private Limited (previously known as Reproductions Private Limited), the 
holding company

 5,537,643  5,524,688 

 d.  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
(All amounts in `)

31-March-2012 31-March-2011
No. % holding in the 

class
No. % holding in the 

class
Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Repro Enterprises Private Limited, Holding Company  5,537,643 51.07%  5,524,688 52.32%
Asia Advantage Fund  565,021 5.21%  232,268 2.20%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members the above shareholding represents the legal 
ownerships of shares.

e.  Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Company, please refer note 29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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4. Reserves and Surplus

 (All amounts in `)

As at As at 

Capital Reserve  124,467  124,467 

Investment Allowance Reserve (utilized)

Balance as per the last financial statement  492,597  492,597 

Less: Amount transferred to General Reserve  492,597 –

Closing Balance –  492,597 

Security Premium Account

Balance as per the last financial statement  363,194,904  357,499,984 

Add: Additions on account of shares issued under Repro ESOS 2006  25,012,480  5,694,920 

Closing Balance  388,207,384  363,194,904 

General Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements  88,609,235  65,816,844 

Add: Amount transferred from Investment Allowance Reserve  492,597  –

Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss  36,042,569  22,792,391 

Closing Balance  125,144,401  88,609,235 

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as per the last financial statements  836,262,880  704,854,646 

Profit for the year  360,425,690  227,923,907 

Less : Appropriations

 1) Transfer to General Reserve  36,042,569  22,792,391 

 2) Proposed Dividend  108,430,740  63,431,187 

 3) Tax on Proposed Dividend  17,590,177  10,292,095 

 4) Dividend pertaining to previous year  225,600 –

 5) Tax on Dividend pertaining to previous year  35,014 –

Total Appropriations  162,324,100  96,515,673 

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss  1,034,364,470  836,262,880 

Total Reserves and Surplus  1,547,840,722  1,288,684,083 

5. (All amounts in `)
 Current 

Term loans
Foreign currency loan from banks (Secured)  711,331,133  512,160,477  233,529,423  168,107,250
Vehicle Loans (Secured)  2,490,941  205,561  2,148,825  2,552,697 

 713,822,074  512,366,038  235,678,248  170,659,947 

Amount disclosed under the head “Other Current 
Liabilities” under Note 9

 (235,678,248)  (170,659,947)

 713,822,074  512,366,038  – –
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Foreign currency loans from banks

Security Rate of 
Interest

Loan
Period

Repayment Schedule Balance as 
at March 31, 

2012

First draw-down 
date of the 

facility

Pari-passu first charge on movable fixed 
assets of the company

3 months 
Libor + 2.60% 

p.a.

5 Years 8 equal half yearly 
instalments with 
moratorium period of 18 
months

186,465,443 December 31, 
2009

Pari-passu first charge on movable fixed assets 
of the Company, both present and future, 
excluding assets charged to other lenders

6 months 
Libor + 1.50% 

p.a.

5 Years 8 equal half yearly instalments 
with moratorium period of 18 
months

57,551,063 August 18, 2008

Pari-passu first charge on movable fixed 
assets of the Company, both present and 
future, excluding assets charged to other 
lenders

6 months 
Libor + 1.50% 

p.a.

5 Years 8 equal half yearly 
instalments with 
moratorium period of 18 
months

76,734,750 July 11, 2008

Pari-passu first charge on movable fixed assets 
of the Company, both present and future

3 months 
Libor + 2.50% 

p.a.

5 Years 15 equal quarterly instalments 
of USD 400,000 with 
moratorium period of 18 
months

266,013,800 April 05, 2010

Pari-passu first charge on movable fixed assets 
of the Company, both present and future/
Undertaking from the Company to not to 
mortgage/dispose any property of the Company 
without prior consent of the lender

3 months 
Libor + 2.85% 

p.a.

5 Years 15 equal quarterly 
instalments with 
moratorium period of 18 
months

358,095,500 October 25, 2010

Total 944,860,556

Vehicle loans are repayable in 3 years from the loan disbursement date. Vehicle loans carry interest rate in the range of 11% p.a to 14% 
p.a and are secured against vehicles acquired under the said loans.

(All amounts in `)

 Date of Disbursement  Balance as at 31-March-2012 

 July 10, 2009  206,045 

 June 10, 2011  1,344,044 

 April 28, 2011  1,612,600 

 June 1, 2011  1,477,077 

 4,639,766 

6. Deferred tax Liabilities 

(All amounts in `)

31-March-2012 31-March-2011

Deferred tax Liability

Difference between written down value and tax base of fixed assets  187,701,007  159,804,833 

Gross deferred tax liability  187,701,007  159,804,833 

Deferred tax assets

Provision for doubtful debts  19,214,849  16,027,743 

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment  13,839,191  12,380,415 

Pertaining to other liabilities  69,560,436  53,234,332 

Gross deferred tax asset  102,614,476  81,642,490 

Deferred tax liability (Net)  85,086,531  78,162,343 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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7. Provisions
(All amounts in `)

 Short term 

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity  23,823,116  28,960,883  10,878,414  2,337,913 

Provision for leave benefits  7,917,082  6,174,396  819,700  1,063,797 

 31,740,198  35,135,279  11,698,114  3,401,710 

Other Provisions 

Proposed dividend – –  108,430,740  63,359,184 

Provision for tax on proposed dividend –  17,590,177  10,280,028 

–  –  126,020,917  73,639,212 

 31,740,198  35,135,279  137,719,031  77,040,922 

8. Short Term Borrowings
(All amounts in `)

Cash credit from banks (Secured)  454,068,867  97,025,379 

Buyers credit from banks (Secured)  152,674,727  253,346,680 

Packing credit loan from banks (Secured)  489,342,123  528,398,318 

 1,096,085,717  878,770,377 

Short Term Borrowings from banks are secured by hypothecation of stock, receivables and other current assets of the Company both 
present and future ranking pari passu with all banks. Further, the facilities from State Bank of Travancore and ING Vysya Bank are partly 
secured by second charge on the fixed assets of the Company ranking pari passu with all banks.
Cash credit from banks is repayable on demand and carries interest @12% to 14% p.a.

Packing credit loans are repayable within 180 days and carry interest @ 4% to 5%.

9. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

 (All amounts in `)

Trade Payables (including Acceptances) (refer note 38 for details of dues to Micro and Small 
Enterprises)

 330,201,612  199,146,244 

Other Liabilities

Advance from Customers  26,516,227  22,441,891 

 235,678,248  170,659,947 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  7,247,314  4,089,469 

Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by Unpaid dividend (as and when due)  459,871  350,695 

Provision for Income Tax  5,147,248  –

Other Payables

Book Overdraft  32,244,032  12,034,383 

Creditors for capital goods 22,564,726 23,361,388

Other statutory dues payable 13,688,304 5,068,904

 343,545,970  238,006,677 
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11. Intangible Assets
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars Computer Software
At April 1, 2010  92,748,787 
Additions  3,770,218 
Other Adjustments
Exchange Differences (gain)  (410,813)
At March 31, 2011  96,108,192 
Additions  43,032,574 
Other Adjustments
Exchange Differences (loss)  6,774,815 
At March 31, 2012  145,915,581 
Amortisation
At April 1, 2010  26,762,691 
Charge for the year  15,413,875 
Disposals  –
At March 31, 2011  42,176,566 
Charge for the year  16,311,306 
Disposals –
At March 31, 2012  58,487,872 

Net Block
At March 31, 2011  53,931,626 
At March 31, 2012  87,427,709 

12.
 (All amounts in `)

Trade Investments (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Unquoted equity instruments
Investment in subsidiaries
74,800 (March 31, 2011: Nil) Equity shares of ` 10 each paid in Repro Innovative Digiprint 
Limited

 748,000 –

 748,000 –

13. Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference
Balance as per the last financial statements  –  1,126,420 

(Refer Note No. 36)
 22,166,003 –

Less: Amortized during the year  (6,977,271)  (1,126,420)
Closing Balance  15,188,732 –
Current  3,311,760 –

 11,876,972 –
 15,188,732 –

14. Loans and Advances (Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise)
(All amounts in `)

 Current 

Capital Advances  59,985,219  28,038,633 – –
Security deposits  249,984,767  67,635,736 – –
Loans and advances to related parties – –  4,577,420  1,711,706 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  1,345,905  2,590,717  341,740  462,490 

 23,825,197  33,522,353  5,053,487 –
MAT Credit entitlement  81,528,415  5,828,415 – –
Prepaid Expenses –  95,811  12,693,296  6,326,104 

– –  52,437,297  86,180,980 



66 | Repro India Limited

(All amounts in `)
 Non-current  Current 

 31-March-2012  31-March-2011  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 
Export Incentive Receivable  27,598,962  41,729,661  29,266,686  3,748,990 
Advance to Suppliers – –  9,559,267  11,674,491 
Loans and advances to employees – –  7,101,372  5,888,466 
Balances with Government Authorities  58,121,703  56,202,997  18,144,460  11,911,547 
Total  502,390,168  235,644,323  139,175,025  127,904,774 

Inter-Corporate Deposits include
Inter-Corporate Deposit given to Repro 
Enterprises Private Limited, the Holding 
Company

– –  10,829 –

Inter-Corporate Deposit given to Repro 
Innovative Digiprint Limited, the Subsidiary 
Company

– –  52,340,597 –

Loans and advances to related parties include
Advances given to Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited – a Company in which Non-Executive 
Director is interested

– –  4,577,420  1,711,706 

15. Trade Receivables and Other Assets
 (All amounts in `)

 Non-current  Current 
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

Trade receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding six 
months from the date they are due for 
payment (Unsecured)
Considered good  7,564,281  19,781,544  45,001,843  50,658,020 
Considered doubtful  59,222,893  48,250,901 – –

 66,787,174  68,032,445  45,001,843  50,658,020 
Provision for doubtful receivables  (59,222,893)  (48,250,901) – –

 ( A )  7,564,281  19,781,544  45,001,843  50,658,020 
Other receivables
Unsecured, Considered good  ( B ) – –   976,064,258  760,387,207 
Total (A + B)  7,564,281  19,781,544  1,021,066,101  811,045,227 

Trade receivables include
Due from Repro Innovative Digiprint 
Limited, Subsidiary

 – –  10,100,482 –

Other Assets
Non-current Bank Balances (Refer Note 
18)

 204,566  1,340,097 – –

Ancillary cost of arranging the borrowing  28,500,165  17,206,766  8,713,731  5,434,861 
Unamortized premium on forward 
contracts

– – –  7,302,267 

 ( A )  28,704,731  18,546,863  8,713,731  12,737,128 
Others
Interest accrued on fixed deposits – –  1,314,441  4,167,111 
Interest accrued on investments  – – –  1,164,384 
Others – –  385,412 –

 ( B ) – –  1,699,853  5,331,495 
Total (A+B)  28,704,731  18,546,863  10,413,584  18,068,623 
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16. Current Investments

 (All amounts in `)

Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless otherwise stated

Unquoted Mutual funds

` 1,000 each)]
 –  90,000,000 

 –  90,000,000 

17. Inventories (Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Raw Materials and Packing Materials  93,142,425  101,536,569 

[includes Stock In Transit ` 2,292,061 (March 31, 2011: ` Nil)]

 18,134,199  34,321,870 

Finished Goods  170,165  25,061 

Stores and Spares  67,437,997  45,845,755 

 178,884,786  181,729,255 

18. Cash and Bank balances

 (All amounts in `)

 Current 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balances with banks:

On current accounts – –  215,366,325  45,121,020 

Deposits with original maturity of less than three 
months

– –  484,000,000  452,700,000 

On unpaid dividend account – –  458,983  349,807 

Cash on hand – –  625,592  741,411 

– –  700,450,900  498,912,238 

Other bank balances

Margin money deposit  204,566  1,340,097  24,500,501  12,130,237 

 204,566  1,340,097  24,500,501  12,130,237 

Amount disclosed under other assets
(Refer Note 15)

 204,566  1,340,097 – –

– –  724,951,401  511,042,475 

Margin money deposits given as security
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of ` 24,705,068 (March 31, 2011: ` 13,470,334) are subject to first charge to secure 
the Company’s cash credit loans.
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22. (Increase)/decrease in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress  (Increase)/Decrease 
Inventories at the end of the year  31-March-2012 
 Finished Goods  170,165  25,061  (145,104)
 Work-in-Progress  18,134,199  34,321,870  16,187,671 

 18,304,364  34,346,931  16,042,567 

Inventories at the beginning of the year  31-March-2011 
 Finished Goods  25,061  1,066,885  1,041,824 
 Work-in-Progress  34,321,870  17,593,591  (16,728,279)

 34,346,931  18,660,476  (15,686,455)
 16,042,567  (15,686,455)

 Note: Inventory of Finished goods and Work-in-progress comprises of Printed books.

19. Revenue from Operations
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended  
31-March-2012

 Year ended  
31-March-2011

Sale of Products  3,364,336,618  2,609,055,751 
Sale of Services  1,146,888  743,000 

 3,365,483,506  2,609,798,751 
Other Operating Revenue
Scrap sales  47,682,353  34,797,636 
Export Incentives  43,645,182  41,894,262 
Revenue from Operations  3,456,811,041  2,686,490,649 

Note: Sale of Products comprises of Printed books and sale of services comprises of 
warehousing services.

20. Other Income
Interest income on

Bank deposits  17,627,080  15,623,967 
Income tax refund  –  1,000,621 
Inter-corporate deposit  17,261,855  10,605,016 

Profit on sale of Current Investments (Net)  1,488,689  8,550,738 
Excess provision written back  1,009,529  36,741 
Reversal of Provision for doubtful debts  –  19,898,639 
Other Non Operating Income [net of attributable expenses ` Nil (Previous year: ` Nil)]  1,983,717  39,977,240 
Amortization of discounts on forward contracts  –  7,302,267 

 39,370,870  102,995,229 

21. Cost of Raw materials and Packing materials consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year  101,536,569  127,584,498 
Add: Purchases  1,725,113,468  1,466,001,448 

 1,826,650,037  1,593,585,946 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  93,142,425  101,536,569 
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed  1,733,507,612  1,492,049,377 
Details of raw material and packing material consumed
Paper  1,515,957,357  1,329,799,437 
Others  217,550,255  162,249,940 

 1,733,507,612  1,492,049,377 
Details of inventory 
Paper  87,528,399  95,351,493 
Others  5,614,026  6,185,076 

 93,142,425  101,536,569 
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23. Employee Benefit Expenses
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended  Year ended 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  309,480,890  262,015,437 
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds  13,465,480  12,280,358 
Staff welfare expenses  13,845,383  13,175,358 
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 28)  4,965,681  15,638,294 
Leave Encashment  2,593,060  4,266,706 

 344,350,494  307,376,153 

24. Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores  65,132,181  52,279,464 
Power and Fuel  69,140,822  55,439,822 
Outsourcing Charges  138,990,232  71,760,347 
Print on Demand Impression Charges  25,543,128  27,828,658 
Hire Charges  6,884,897  5,591,633 
Commission on Sales  116,725,428  90,397,662 
Advertising and Sales Promotion  45,596,955  36,438,609 
Repairs and Maintenance:

 on Buildings  1,992,272  1,598,259 
 on Plant and machinery  32,481,818  28,244,522 
 on Others  22,409,413  17,287,872 

 56,883,503  47,130,653 
Payment to Auditor (refer details below)  2,587,607  2,001,043 
Rates and Taxes  3,720,155  12,731,508 
Operating Lease Rent  24,013,947  26,331,374 
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges  28,436,383  26,449,938 
Travelling and Conveyance  37,719,470  39,277,954 
Transport and Courier Charges (net of recoveries)  78,258,198  63,854,454 
Loading and unloading expenses  4,174,006  4,733,087 
Telephone Charges  9,878,317  9,244,481 
Insurance Charges  10,020,646  11,814,835 
Royalty  1,269,419  1,676,671 
Directors’ Sitting fees  600,000  656,500 
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net)  2,530,508  126,651 
Artwork and Design Charges  450,000  1,637,292 
Exchange Difference (net)  14,276,237  – 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  10,971,992  – 
Bad Debts written off  19,368,024  20,187,093 
Donations  –  2,500,000 
Miscellaneous Expenses  11,780,024  10,289,886 

 784,952,079  620,379,615 
Payment to Auditor
As Auditor:

Fees for Statutory audit  600,000  600,000 
Fees for Limited reviews  900,000  900,000 
Fees for certification  205,000  – 

In Other Capacity :
Other Matters  500,000  300,000 

Reimbursement of out of Pocket Expenses (including service tax)  382,607  201,043 
 2,587,607  2,001,043 
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28. Employee benefits

 Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity)

The Company operates defined plan, with respect to gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has 
completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. 
The scheme with respect to all employees, except directors of the Company is funded with an insurance Company in the form of 
qualifying insurance policy.

The Company has two facilities at Mahape and Surat. The Company maintains a funded gratuity scheme for its employees and unfunded 
gratuity scheme for its Directors.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded 
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plan.

 Statement of Profit and Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

March 31, 2012 
(Funded)

March 31, 2011
(Funded)

March 31, 2012 
(Unfunded)

March 31, 2011
(Unfunded)

Current service cost 3,084,363 2,802,461 566,451 –

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 2,014,470 1,492,474 717,664 –

Expected return on plan assets (145,438) (141,033) – –

Past service cost* – – – 8,698,956

Net actuarial( gain)/loss recognized in the year 88,847 2,672,388 (1,360,676) –

Net benefit expense 5,042,242 6,826,290 (76,561) 8,698,956

Actual return on plan assets 128,948 1,642 – –

*Represents the future liability for gratuity of Directors.

27. Earnings per share (EPS)
Particulars  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

Net profit for the year (for calculation of basic and diluted EPS) 360,425,690 227,923,907

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating

– Basic earnings per share 10,708,532 10,536,893

Add:  Equity shares arising on grant of stock options under ESOP 121,216 333,285

– Diluted earnings per share 10,829,748 10,870,178

 Earnings per share – Basic 33.66 21.63

              – Diluted 33.28 20.97

Face Value Per Share 10 10

 (All amounts in `)
 Year ended  

31-March-2012
 Year ended  

31-March-2011

25. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Depreciation of tangible assets  106,576,068  95,369,854 

Amortization of intangible assets  16,311,306  15,413,875 

 122,887,374  110,783,729 

26. Finance Costs
Interest  57,245,613  39,119,116 
Bank charges  25,417,251  22,476,998 
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs  8,151,742  5,916,530 
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs  32,379,620  11,138,340 

 123,194,226  78,650,984 
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 (All amounts in `)

Balance Sheet
Details of Provision for Gratuity

(Funded) (Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
Present value of defined benefit Obligation (26,708,106) (24,417,813) – (8,698,956)

Fair value of plan assets 628,971 1,817,973 (8,622,395) –

Plan asset / (liability) (26,079,135) (22,599,840) (8,622,395) (8,698,956)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation
(Funded) (Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

Opening defined benefit obligation 24,417,813 18,655,920 8,698,956 –
Current service cost 3,084,363 2,802,461 566,451 –
Interest cost 2,014,470 1,492,474 717,664 –
Benefits paid (2,880,897) (1,066,039) – –
Past service cost* – – – 8,698,956
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 72,357 2,532,997 (1,360,676) –
Closing defined benefit obligation 26,708,106 24,417,813 8,622,395 8,698,956

*Represents the future liability for gratuity of Directors.

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(Funded) (Funded)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period 1,817,973 1,762,916
Expected return 145,438 141,033
Contributions by employer 1,562,947 1,119,454
Benefits paid (2,880,897) (1,066,039)
Actuarial gains/(losses) (16,490) (139,391)
Closing fair value of plan assets 628,971 1,817,973

Particulars

Expected contribution to defined benefit plan for the year ended March 31, 2013 ` 10,878,414

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars
Insurer Managed Funds (LIC) 100% 100%

shown below:

Discount rate 8.75% 8.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.60% 8.00%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00% 5.00%
Employee turnover 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Table

Ultimate Ultimate
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined 
based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. There has been 
significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario.
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Experience adjustment for Gratuity

 Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

(All amounts in `)

Particulars  31-March-2012  31-March-2011  31-March-2010  31-March-2009 

Defined benefit obligation 35,330,501 24,417,813 18,655,920 –

Plan assets 628,971 1,817,973 1,762,916 –

Surplus/(deficit) 34,701,530 22,599,840 16,893,004 –

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 3,476,274 3,191,907 189,672 (1,072,091)

Experience adjustments on plan assets (16,490) (139,391) (28,597) (19,704)

The disclosures in respect of status of defined benefit obligation have been given for four years, since the Company has adopted AS15 
(Revised) in the year 2009.

 Defined Contribution Plans

Amount of ` 13,465,480 (Previous year ` 12,280,358) is recognized as an expenses and included in Note 23 – Employee Benefit 
Expenses as Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in statement of Profit and Loss.

29. Employee Stock Options Plans
The Company has provided two Employee Stock Option Plans namely Repro India Limited. (Employee Stock Option Scheme), 2006 (Repro 
ESOS 2006) and Repro India Limited (Employee Stock Option Scheme), 2010 (Repro ESOS 2010) which were in operation during the year. 
These schemes are in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2009 , (“the SEBI Guidelines”). The Compensation Committee constituted in accordance with the SEBI 
Guidelines administers and monitors the scheme.

Particulars Repro ESOS 2006 Repro ESOS 2010

Date of grant May 14, 2007, December 24, 2009, June 8, 2010,  
August 12, 2010 and May 23, 2011

August 12, 2010

Date of Board Approval July 24, 2006 May 6, 2010

Date of shareholders’ approval September 12, 2006 July 24, 2010

Number of options granted 500,000 200,000

Method of Settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity Equity

Vesting period Spread over 3 years for 354,000
options, 1 year for 129,000
options, 2 years for 17,000 options

One year 

Exercise Period 3 years from the date of vesting 3 years from the date of vesting

Exercise Price ` 98 to ` 104 ` 101

 The details of the activity under Repro ESOS 2006 have been summarized below:

Particulars  31-March-2012  31-March-2011

Number of options Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

Number of options Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 407,285 98 484,000 98

Lapsed during the year 9,990 98 86,000 98*

Granted during the year 17,000 104** 74,000* 100*

Exercised and allotted during the year 283,210 98 64,715 98

Expired during the year 49,300 – – –

Outstanding at the end of the year 81,785 99 407,285 98

Exercisable at the end of the year 64,785 98 333,285 98

 * 34,000 options regranted @ ` 98 in June 2010 and 40,000 options regranted @ ` 101 in August 2010.
 **17,000 options regranted in May 2011 @ ` 104.
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The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options was ` 98 with respect to Repro ESOS 2006.

The details of the activity under Repro ESOS 2010 have been summarized below:

Particulars

Number of options Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

Number of options Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000 101 – –

Granted during the year – – 200,000 101

Forfeited during the year – – – –

Exercised during the year – – – –

Expired during the year – – – –

Outstanding at the end of the year 200,000 101 200,000 101

Exercisable at the end of the year 200,000 101 – –

The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year under Repro ESOS 2006 are:

March 31, 2012

Range of exercise price Number of options 
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options (in years)

Weighted average exercise price

98 54,785 0.9 98

101 10,000 2.45 101

104 17,000 3.72 104

81,785

March 31, 2011

Range of exercise price Number of options 
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options (in years)

Weighted average exercise price

98 278,285 1.37 98

98 55,000 2.79 98

98 34,000 3.30 98

101 40,000 3.47 101

407,285

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was ` 70 (Rupees Seventy Only).

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value with respect to Repro Employee Stock 
Option Scheme (REPRO ‘ESOS’ 2006) considering the following inputs:

Particulars

Weighted average share 
price (` per share)

99.50 98 98.93 98

Exercise Price (` per share) 89,000 options  @ ` 98, 

40,000 options  @ `
101 and 

17,000 options @ ` 104

98 89,000 options @ ` 98, 
40,000 options @ ` 101

98

Expected Volatility 59% 67% 59% 67%

Historical Volatility 59% 67% 59% 67%

Life of the options granted 
(Vesting and exercise period) 
in years

Vesting period + 3 years 
i.e. 4 years and 5 years  

for each vesting 
tranche of 

100 % and 50% 
respectively

Vesting period + 3 
years i.e. 3 years for 
each vesting tranche 
of 30%, 30% and 40% 

respectively

Vesting period + 3 
years i.e. 4 years and 5 
years  for each vesting 

tranche of 100% and 50%  
respectively

Vesting period + 3 
years i.e. 3 years for 
each vesting tranche 
of 30%, 30% and 40% 

respectively
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Particulars  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

Expected dividend yield 5.77% per annum 2.55% per annum 5.77% per annum 2.55% per annum

Average risk-free interest rate 8% per annum 8% per annum 8% per annum 8% per annum

Expected dividend rate ` 6 per share ` 2.5 per share ` 6 per share ` 2.5 per share

The expected volatility of the share price is measure of the amount by which the share price is expected to fluctuate during the period. 
The Company is listed and expected volatility was determined based on historical information of the movement of share price from which 
an estimate of expected volatility is calculated.

Since the enterprise has granted shares at a price equal to the closing market price on the date of the grant, there is no impact of ESOPs 
on the financial position. 

The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year under Repro ESOS 2010 are

March 31, 2012

Range of exercise price Number of options 
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options 

(in years)

Weighted average exercise 
price

101-101 200,000 2.45 101

200,000

March 31, 2011

Range of exercise price Number of options 
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options 

(in years)

Weighted average exercise 
price

101-101 200,000 3.33 101

200,000

 The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was ` 52 (Rupees Fifty Two Only).

 The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value with respect to Repro Employee Stock 
Option Scheme (REPRO ‘ESOS’ 2010) considering the following inputs:

Particulars  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

Weighted average share price (` per share) 101 101

Exercise Price (` per share) 101 101

Expected Volatility 56% 56%

Historical Volatility 56% 56%

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) 
in years

Vesting period + 3 years i.e. 4 
years for vesting tranche of 100%

Vesting period + 3 years i.e. 4 
years for vesting tranche of 100%

Expected Dividends 2.97% per annum 2.97% per annum

Average risk-free interest rate 8% per annum 8% per annum

Expected dividend rate ` 2.97 per share ` 2.97 per share

The expected volatility of the share price is measure of the amount by which the share price is expected to fluctuate during the period. 
The Company is listed and expected volatility was determined based on historical information of the movement of share price from which 
an estimate of expected volatility is calculated.

Since the enterprise has granted shares at a price equal to the closing market price on the date of the grant, there is no impact of ESOPs 
on the financial position.
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Since the enterprise used the intrinsic value method the impact on the reported net profit and earnings per share by applying the fair value 
base method is as under:

 (All amounts in `)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Net Profit/(Loss) as reported 360,425,690 227,923,907
Add – Employee stock compensation under intrinsic value method – –
Less – Employee stock compensation under fair value method (11,488,957) (11,053,457)
Proforma Profit/(Loss) 348,936,733 216,870,450
Earnings per share (`)
Basic

33.66 21.63
32.58 20.58

Diluted
33.28 20.97
32.22 19.95

30. Finance lease – assets acquired under deferred payment credit [on or after April 1, 2001].

(All amounts in `)
Particulars Year Total up to the 

end of lease
Due not later 
than 1 year

Due later than 1 
year and not later 

than 5 years

Due later than 5 
years

Minimum lease payments March 31, 2012 5,507,596 2,604,014 2,903,582 –
March 31, 2011 2,946,234 2,738,044 208,190 –

Less: Unamortized finance charges March 31, 2012 867,830 455,189 412,641 –
March 31, 2011 187,976 184,900 3,076 –

Present value March 31, 2012 4,639,766 2,148,825 2,490,941 –
March 31, 2011 2,758,258 2,553,144 205,114 –

31. Segment information
Business segment
The Company operates in a single business segment of Value Added Print Solutions and hence, there are no separate reportable segments 
of the Company. 
Secondary information is reported geographically. The operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the 
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and 
serves different markets.
Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include transfers between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated 
in total revenue/expense/result.
Geographical segment
The Company’s secondary segments are the geographic distribution of activities. Revenue and receivables are specified by location of 
customers while the other geographic information is specified by location of the assets.

(All amounts in `)
Particulars Year In India Outside India Total
Revenue March 31, 2012 1,398,090,459  2,058,720,582  3,456,811,041 

March 31, 2011 1,134,403,548  1,552,087,101  2,686,490,649 
Carrying amount of Segment assets March 31, 2012 3,767,694,594  626,778,001  4,394,472,595 

March 31, 2011 2,935,124,940  477,785,663  3,412,910,603 
Carrying amount of Segment Liabilities* March 31, 2012 2,443,604,698  83,488,988 2,527,093,686

March 31, 2011 1,918,256,353  22,209,183  1,940,465,536 
March 31, 2012  522,018,749  – 522,018,749
March 31, 2011  158,967,697  – 158,967,697

*The segment liabilities include deferred tax liability.
 (All amounts in `)

Capital Expenditure
Tangible Fixed Assets       362,005,886     162,239,446 
Intangible Fixed Assets         49,807,389         3,359,405 

      411,813,275     165,598,851 
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32. Related party disclosures under Accounting Standard 18 
 a. The following are the names of related parties where control exists:

Name of the Related party Nature of Relationship
Holding/Subsidiary Company
Repro Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Reproductions Private Limited) Holding Company
Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited Subsidiary Company

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Key Management Personnel Nature of Relationship
Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director
Mr. Rajeev Vohra Director
Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Director
Mr. Pramod Khera Director
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra Wife of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
Ms. Sonam Vohra Daughter of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
Mrs. Deepa Vohra Wife  of Mr. Rajeev Vohra
Mr. Kunal Vohra Son of Mr. Rajeev Vohra
Late Mr. Inderjit Vohra Father of Mr. Sanjeev, Vinod and Rajeev Vohra
Mrs. Avinash Vohra Mother of Mr. Sanjeev, Vinod and Rajeev Vohra
Mr. Rajeev Khera Brother of Mr. Pramod Khera 
Mrs. Nita Khera Wife of Mr. Pramod Khera 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives
Zoyaksa Consultants Private Limited
Quadrum Solutions Private Limited
Trisna Trust

1.      Related party disclosures under Accounting Standard 18 

The following are the volume of transactions with related parties during the year and outstanding balances as at the year end 
disclosed in aggregate by type of related party.

 (All amounts in `)
Name Year ended  Key 

Management
Personnel 

 Relative of Key 
Management

Personnel 

 Enterprises 
significantly

influenced by 
Key Management 

Personnel 

 Total  Balance as at 
the year end

Remuneration

Mr. Vinod Vohra
31-March-2012 4,789,584 – – 4,789,584 –

31-March-2011 3,899,050 – – 3,899,050 –

Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
31-March-2012 14,761,983 – – 14,761,983 (10,000,000)

31-March-2011 4,117,150 – – 4,117,150 –

Mr. Rajeev Vohra
31-March-2012 4,969,327 – –   4,969,327 –

31-March-2011 3,834,550 – – 3,834,550 –

Mr. Mukesh Dhruve
31-March-2012 4,465,600 – – 4,465,600 –

31-March-2011 4,006,750 – – 4,006,750 –

Mr. Pramod Khera
31-March-2012 9,545,400 – – 9,545,400 –

31-March-2011 4,746,600 – – 4,746,600 –

Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra
31-March-2012 –             420,000 – 420,000 –

31-March-2011 –             420,000 – 420,000 –
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 (All amounts in `)
Name Year ended  Key 

Management
Personnel 

 Relative of Key 
Management

Personnel 

 Enterprises 
significantly

influenced by 
Key Management 

Personnel 

 Total  Balance as at 
the year end

Mr. Kunal Vohra
–                80,000 – 80,000 –

– – – – –

Ms. Sonam Vohra
–             523,200 – 523,200 –

–             523,200 – 523,200 –

Total 38,531,894 1,023,200 – 39,555,094 (10,000,000)

20,604,100 943,200 –     21,547,300 –

Rent

Mrs. Nita Khera
– 849,996 – 849,996 –

– 849,996 – 849,996 –

Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra
– 3,600,000 – 3,600,000 –

– 3,600,000 – 3,600,000 –

Mrs. Deepa Vohra 
– 1,250,000 – 1,250,000 –

– – – – –

Late Mr. Inderjit Vohra
– 250,000 – 250,000 –

– 750,000 – 750,000 –

Mrs. Avinash Vohra
– 1,500,000 – 1,500,000 –

– 750,000 – 750,000 –

Repro Enterprises Private 
Limited

– – 2,481,750 2,481,750 (2,256,750)

– – – – –

Trisna Trust
– – 2,150,850 2,150,850 (1,955,850)

– – – – –

Zoyaksa Consultants Private 
Limited

– – 2,316,300 2,316,300 (2,106,300)

– – – – –

Total
– 7,449,996 6,948,900 14,398,896 (6,318,900)

– 5,949,996 – 5,949,996 –

Deposit

Mrs. Nita Khera
– – – – –

– 1,350,000 – 1,350,000 1,350,000

Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra
– 40,000,000 – 40,000,000 40,000,000

– 28,500,000 – 28,500,000 28,500,000

Repro Enterprises Private 
Limited

– – 68,645,000 68,645,000 68,645,000

– – – – –

Trisna Trust
– – 59,500,000 59,500,000 59,500,000

– – – – –

Zoyaksa Consultants Private 
Limited

– – 35,877,018 35,877,018 35,877,018

– – – – –

Total
– 40,000,000 164,022,018 204,022,018 204,022,018

–       29,850,000 –       29,850,000       29,850,000 

Professional Fee 

Mr. Rajeev Khera
– 252,000 – 252,000 –

– 252,000 – 252,000 –

Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited

– – 2,647,200   2,647,200    –

– –            2,647,200   2,647,200 –

Total –         252,000   2,647,200 2,899,200 –

–          252,000   2,647,200       2,899,200 –
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 (All amounts in `)
Name Year ended  Key 

Management
Personnel 

 Relative of Key 
Management

Personnel 

 Enterprises 
significantly

influenced by 
Key Management 

Personnel 

 Total  Balance as at 
the year end

ICD's Placed

Repro Innovative Digiprint 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 100,342,605 100,342,605 52,340,597
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Total
31-March-2012 – – 100,342,605 100,342,605 52,340,597
31-March-2012 – – – – –

Loan Taken  
Repro Enterprises Private 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – – – –
31-March-2011 – – 5,688,851 5,688,851 –

Total
31-March-2012 – – – – –
31-March-2011 – – 5,688,851 5,688,851 –

Outsourcing  Charges 

Repro Innovative Digiprint 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 52,669,085 52,669,085 –
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 5,397,414 5,397,414     4,577,420
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Total
31-March-2012 – – 58,066,499 58,066,499 4,577,420
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Sales of Assets 

Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 1,350,000 1,350,000 
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Repro Innovative Digiprint 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 10,100,454 10,100,454    10,100,454 
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Total
31-March-2012 – – 11,450,454 11,450,454 10,100,454
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Sales

Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 296,807 296,807           48,186
31-March-2011 – – 1,017,327   1,017,327    230,935   

Total
31-March-2012 – – 296,807 296,807           48,186
31-March-2011 – – 1,017,327   1,017,327    230,935   

Interest
Repro Innovative
Digiprint Limited

31-March-2012  –    –   1,798,991 1,798,991 –
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Total
31-March-2012 – – 1,798,991 1,798,991 –
31-March-2011                    –                      –   – – –

Investment in Shares 
Repro Innovative 
Digiprint Limited

31-March-2012 – – 748,000 748,000 748,000
31-March-2011 – – – – –

Artwork and Design Charge

Quadrum Solutions Private 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – – – –
31-March-2011 – – 1,277,291   1,277,291    1,711,706

Total
31-March-2012 – –                    – – –
31-March-2011 – –             1,277,291    1,277,291     1,711,706

 Figures in brackets represents amount payable as at the year end.

289,000 Employee Stock Options have been granted to Mr. Pramod Khera (Executive Director) in the previous years, of which 
89,000 (March 31, 2011: Nil) options have been exercised during the year. The balance 200,000 (March 31, 2011: 55,000) have 
vested during the year.

Other transactions

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company has provided for proposed final dividend of ` 10 per share on equity shares 
(March 31, 2011: ` 6 per share). This included dividend on equity shares held by Holding Company. For details of shares held by 
the holding Company, refer note 3(c).
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33. Capital commitments

At March 31, 2012, the Company has capital commitments of ` 66,039,380 (March 31, 2011: ` 191,822,100).

34. Contingent liabilities

Contingent Liabilities

Bill discounted with Banks 57,974,568

Cenvat Refund claim (Refer Note 1 below) 60,304,740    57,328,112

Service Tax Refund (Refer Note 2 below) 5,029,250

Excise Rebate (Refer Note 3 below) 4,447,176 6,107,287

Customs duty demand on imported computer software (Refer Note 4 below) 317,606,651 317,606,651

Obligation under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (Refer Note 5 below) 85,309,258 64,112,925

Note 1

As against the Cenvat refund claim of ` 20,484,268 for the period April 2007 to December 2007, the Company received a refund of 
` 17,340,854. The Company had preferred an appeal against the aforesaid deduction of ` 3,143,414 and subsequently, the appeal 
has also been initiated by the Excise Authorities for the refund so granted. The Cenvat Refund for the subsequent period from January 
2008 to June 2010 aggregating to ` 39,820,472 is outstanding as receivable from Excise Authorities as on March 31, 2012. Based on 
the legal advice sought in this regard by the Company, the Company is confident of a favorable decision in respect of these litigations 
and does not foresee any liability in this regard and is accordingly confident of the full realization of the outstanding receivable. 
However, as a matter of abundant caution, pending final decision in this regard, the total amount of ` 60,304,740 (including the refund 
of ` 17,340,854, which has been received, and may have to be refunded in case of an unfavorable outcome) has been included under 
contingent liabilities.

Note 2

The Company has received an Order received from Commissioner of Central Excise dated May 20, 2011 rejecting the refund claim stating 
it as time barred. The Company filed an appeal on July 22, 2011 against the said order. Based on the legal advice sought in this regard 
by the Company, the Company is confident of a favorable decision in respect of these litigations and does not foresee any liability in this 
regard and is accordingly confident of the full realization of the outstanding receivable. However, as a matter of abundant caution, pending 
final decision in this regard, the total amount of ̀ 5,029,250 (which has been shown as receivable, and may have to be written off in case 
of an unfavorable outcome) has been included under contingent liabilities.

Note 3

The Company has received an Order received from Commissioner of Central Excise dated February 21, 2011 rejecting the refund claim 
stating it as time barred. The Company filed an appeal on June 6, 2011 against the said order. Based on the legal advice sought in this 
regard by the Company, the Company is confident of a favorable decision in respect of these litigations and does not foresee any liability 
in this regard and is accordingly confident of the full realization of the outstanding receivable. However, as a matter of abundant caution, 
pending final decision in this regard, the total amount of ` 4,447,176 (which has been shown as receivable, and may have to be written 
off in case of an unfavorable outcome) has been included under contingent liabilities.

Note 4

The Company has received Order from Commissioner of Customs (Import), levying differential duty and penalties for the period March 
2006 to March 2009 aggregating to ` 317,606,651 plus interest on duty at the appropriate rate as applicable during the relevant period, 
on the computer software imported by the Company for its erstwhile Microsoft business The Company has filed an appeal before the 
Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal against the above Order. Further, in case of erstwhile Microsoft business, show cause 
notice has been issued by The Commissioner of Central Excise for inclusion of Royalty/License fees in the assessable value for arriving at 
the excise duty liability, to which the Company is in process of responding. Based on the legal advice, the management is confident that 
no liability will devolve on the Company in respect of the above litigations.

Note 5

The Company has imported Capital Goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme of the Government of India at concessional 
rates of duty on an undertaking to fulfill quantified exports against which Minimum Export obligation is to be fulfilled by the Company 
under the said scheme. Non fulfillment of the balance of such future obligations in the manner required, if any, entails options/rights to 
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35. Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

 Derivatives outstanding as at the balance sheet date

Particulars Currency USD GBP EUR Purpose

Forward Contracts to sell 

31-March-2012 Foreign currency 24,645,000 400,000 – Hedge of highly probable 
foreign currency exportsINR 1,230,674,500 30,639,500 –

31-March-2011
Foreign currency 9,437,000 593,000 – Hedge of highly probable 

foreign currency exportsINR 433,703,660 43,624,519 –

USD sell for import 
payment against EURO

185,591 – 135,656
Hedge of foreign currency 
loan

 Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date

Particulars Currency USD GBP EUR CAD SGD JYP

Import Payables

31-March-2012
Foreign currency 1,267,695 – – – 11,415 42,060

INR 64,850,851 – – – 463,801 26,258

31-March-2011
Foreign currency 513,675 3,204 (8,567) – (4,916) –

INR 22,935,621 230,494 (541,777) – (173,045) –

Export Trade Receivables

31-March-2012
Foreign currency 11,456,970 244,549 7,804 3,303 – –

INR 586,098,511 20,003,898 533,821 170,138 – –

31-March-2011
Foreign currency 78,570 99,265 19,057 3,303 – –

INR 3,508,160 7,140,013 1,205,188 151,758 – –

Foreign Currency Loan (PCFC)

31-March-2012
Foreign currency 9,069,194 310,515 – – – –

INR 463,948,217 25,393,906 – – – –

31-March-2011
Foreign currency 11,221,025 380,657 – – – –

INR 501,018,058 27,380,260 – – – –

Buyers credit

31-March-2012
Foreign currency 2,067,097 – 686,700 – – –

INR 105,745,442 – 46,929,285 – – –

31-March-2011
Foreign currency 4,701,019 – 687,005 – – –

INR 209,900,489 – 43,446,191 – – –

Long Term Loans

31-March-2012
Foreign currency 18,470,000 – – – – –

INR 944,860,556 – – – – –

31-March-2011
Foreign currency 15,235,000 – – – – –

INR 680,267,727 – – – – –

36. Deferral/capitalization of exchange differences

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the amendment dated December 29, 2011 to AS 11 The Effects of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates, to allow companies deferral/capitalization of exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary 
items.

In accordance with the amendment/earlier amendment to AS 11, the Company has capitalized exchange differences, arising on long-term 
foreign currency loan, for the purpose of capital assets amounting to ` 88,018,939 (loss) (March 31, 2011: ` 4,174,484 – gain) to the 
cost of tangible and intangible fixed assets and ` 469,793 (loss) (March 31, 2011: ` Nil) to capital work-in-progress. The exchange loss 
pertaining to other long term monetary items of ` 22,166,003 (March 31, 2011: ` Nil) has been taken to “Foreign Currency Monetary 
Item Translation Difference Account.” 
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37. Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates and firms/Companies in which 
directors are interested in accordance with Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement
Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited 

Balance as at March 31, 2012 is ` 52,340,597 (March 31, 2011: ` Nil)
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is ` 99,818,343 (March 31, 2011: ` Nil)

Quadrum Solutions Private Limited 

Balance as at March 31, 2012 ` 4,577,420 (March 31, 2011: ` 1,711,706)
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is ` 4,577,420 (March 31, 2011: ` 1,711,706)

38. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars
Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 31 March 2012* 1,015,312 714,325
Interest paid along with amounts of payment made  to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

Nil Nil

Interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment but without adding the interest specified Nil Nil
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year Nil Nil

* There is no interest which is payable as at the year end

39. Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

(All amounts in `)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Raw Material 192,784,747 185,899,328
Stores and Spares 11,919,614 6,436,121
Capital Goods 184,848,060 81,455,754
Total 389,552,421 273,791,203

40. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Traveling and conveyance expenses 
[including Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 8,77,722) Capitalised as fixed assets]

11,556,825 13,310,482

Royalty 1,269,419 1,676,671
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges 14,675,451 7,829,262
Interest 34,154,550 24,589,242
Bank Charges 3,709,753 5,156,896
Commission on Sales 113,749,202 90,156,415
Miscellaneous expenses 233,838 693,012
Total 179,349,038 143,411,980

41. Imported and indigenous raw materials, stores and spare parts consumed

% of total consumption Value (`)
For the year ended 

% of total consumption Value (`)
For the year ended

Raw Material
Imported 11% 187,676,315 11% 253,428,425
Indigenously obtained 89% 1,545,831,297 89% 1,238,620,952
Total 100% 1,733,507,612 100% 1,492,049,377
Stores and Spare Parts
Imported 1% 428,615 1% 122,380
Indigenously obtained 99% 64,703,566 99% 52,157,084
Total 100% 65,132,181 100% 52,279,464



82 | Repro India Limited

42. Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended 
31-March-2012

For the year ended 
31-March-2011

F.O.B value of Exports 1,950,738,745 1,461,930,687

43. Capital work in progress includes expenses capitalized of ` 6,948,900 comprising of rent (March 31, 2011: ` 1,353,628 comprising of 
travelling and conveyance expenses)

44. Prior period items

Particulars For the year ended 
31-March-2012

For the year ended 
31-March-2011

Rates and Taxes 7,304,991 –

Other Non operating income (Net of attributable expenses of ` Nil (Previous year: ` Nil) (3,407,309) –

Prior period expenses charged 3,897,682 –

45.   Previous year’s figures

Till the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company was using pre-revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, for preparation and 
presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies 
Act, 1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Company has reclassified previous year’s figures to conform to this year’s 
classification. Except accounting for dividend on investments in subsidiaries, the adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact 
recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. However, it significantly impacts presentation 
and disclosures made in the financial statements, particularly presentation of balance sheet. 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director
Chartered Accountants

Mukesh Dhruve Director
per Vijay Maniar
Partner Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary
Membership No.: 36738
Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012 Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors 
Repro India Limited

We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of 
Repro India Limited (‘the Company’), as at March 31,  2012, 
and also the consolidated statement of profit and loss and 
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended on 
that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management and have been 
prepared by the management on the basis of separate financial 
statements and other financial information regarding compo
nents. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary, 
whose financial statements reflect total assets of ̀  80,399,424 
as at March 31,  2012, the total revenue of ` 55,198,092 and 
cash flows amounting to ` 1,887,797 for the year then ended. 
These financial statements and other financial information 
have been audited by other auditor whose report has been 
furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on the report 
of other auditor.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance 
with the requirements of Accounting Standards (AS) 21, 

Consolidated financial statements, notified pursuant to 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as 
amended).

Based on our audit and on consideration of report of other 
auditor on separate financial statements and on the other 
financial information of the component, and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, 
we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state 

(b) in the case of the consolidated statement of profit and 

(c) in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of 
the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301003E

per Vijay Maniar
Partner 
Membership No.: 36738

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2012



86 | Repro India Limited

As at  March 31, 2012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants  Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director

Per Vijay Maniar  Mukesh Dhruve Director
Partner
Membership No.: 36738  Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary

Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012

 (All amounts in `)
Notes As at 

31-March-2012
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3  108,430,740 
Reserves and surplus 4  1,537,574,434 

 1,646,005,174 
Minority interest 5  – 
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6  713,822,074 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7  85,086,531 
Long-term provisions 8  32,264,519 

 831,173,124 
 Current liabilities

Short term borrowings 9  1,096,085,717 
Trade payable 12  356,288,986 
Other current liabilities 12  344,259,059 
Short term provisions 8  137,870,880 

 1,934,504,642 
Total  4,411,682,940 
II. ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 10  1,586,309,092 
Intangible assets 11  106,561,526 
Capital work-in-progress (Refer Note 37)  123,429,245 

Deferred tax assets (net) 13  3,724,783 
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference 14  11,876,972 
Long-term loans and advances 15  502,924,277 
Trade receivables 16  7,564,281 
Other non-current assets 16  28,838,811 

 2,371,228,987 
 Current assets

Current investments 17  – 
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference 14  3,311,760 
Inventories 18  191,741,180 
Trade receivables 16  1,016,446,416 
Cash and bank balances 19  726,851,998 
Short term loans and advances 15  91,689,015 
Other current assets 16  10,413,584 

 2,040,453,953 
Total  4,411,682,940 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants  Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director

Per Vijay Maniar  Mukesh Dhruve Director
Partner
Membership No.: 36738  Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary

Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012

For the year ended March 31, 2012
 (All amounts in `)

Notes
 Year ended 

Income

Revenue from Operations 20 3,459,554,657

Less: Excise Duty  – 

Revenue from Operations (Net)  3,459,554,657 

Other Income 21  39,053,650 

Total Income  3,498,608,307 

Expenses:

Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 22  1,758,439,060 

23  15,560,582 

Employee benefit expenses 24  366,272,716 

Other expenses 25  753,152,272 

Total Expenses  2,893,424,630 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)  605,183,677 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 26  124,936,402 

Finance costs 27  123,235,907 

Profit before tax and prior period expenses  357,011,368 

Prior period expenses (net)  3,897,682 

Profit before tax  353,113,686 

Tax expenses

Current tax (MAT Payable)  75,700,000 

Less: MAT Credit Entitlement  (75,700,000)

Taxation of earlier years  – 

Deferred tax  3,199,404 

Total tax expenses  3,199,404 

Profit after tax  349,914,282 

Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share ` 10 each (March 31, 2011: ` 10) (Refer Note 2q)

(1) Basic  32.68 

(2) Diluted  32.31 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
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For the year ended March 31, 2012
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended                     
31-March-2012

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax  353,113,686 

Depreciation/Amortization  124,936,402 

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  1,281,309 

Unrealized Foreign Exchange Loss  61,378,520 

Net Gain on Sale of Current Investments  (1,488,689)

Interest Expense  57,245,613 

Interest Income  (33,089,944)

Operating Profit before working capital changes  563,376,897 

Movements in working capital:

Increase in Trade Payables 85,609,416

Increase in Long-term Provisions  (2,870,760)

Increase in Short Term Provisions  8,448,253 

Increase in Other Current Liabilities  103,098,995 

(Increase) in Trade Receivables  (140,888,076)

Decrease in Inventories 25,794,762

Decrease in  Long-term Loans and Advances  (232,783,348)

Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances 37,710,690

Decrease in Other Current Assets  7,655,039 

(Increase) in Other Non-Current Assets  (10,691,977)

Cash generated from/(used In) operations  444,459,891 

Taxes paid  (65,909,083)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)  378,550,808 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (including Intangible assets), Capital Work-in-progress and Capital advances  (391,857,645)

Business Acquisition (net of cash and bank balance acquired) (Refer Note 46) (21,207,402)

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  10,948,032 

Proceeds from Sales/Maturity of Current Investments  91,488,689 

Investment in Margin money deposit  (12,370,264)

Interest received  33,089,944 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B)  (289,908,646)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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* The Company can utilise these balance only towards settlement of the respective unpaid dividend
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants  Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director

Per Vijay Maniar  Mukesh Dhruve Director
Partner
Membership No. 36738  Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary

Mumbai, Date: May 30, 2012

 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended                     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of Share Capital  27,996,580 

Proceeds from L Term Borrowings  301,409,489 

Repayment of L Term Borrowings  (281,783,516)

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net)  195,149,338 

Interest paid  (54,087,768)

Dividends paid on Equity Shares  (63,584,784)

Tax on Equity Dividend paid  (10,315,042)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)  114,784,297 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  203,426,459 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  498,925,038 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  702,351,497 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  673,355 

With banks

 217,219,159 

 484,000,000 

unpaid dividend accounts*  458,983 

Total Cash and Cash equivalents (Note 19)  702,351,497 
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1. Corporate information
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of Repro India Limited (“the Company”) and Repro Innovative 
Digiprint Limited (its subsidiary), the Company and its subsidiary are hereinafter referred to as “the Group”. The Group provides print 
solutions to client, which mainly includes value engineering, creative designing, pre-press, printing, post-press, knitting and assembly, 
warehousing, dispatch, database management, sourcing and procurement, localization and web based services.

2. Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 
GAAP). The Group has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The financial 
statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, except for the change in accounting policy explained below.
Principles of Consolidation:

 i. The Subsidiary considered in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are:

Name of the Company Country of 
Incorporation

Holding as on 
31-March-2012

Holding as on 
31-March-2011

Financial Year  
ends on

Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited India 74.80% NIL 31 March 2012
Since there is no holding in the subsidiary as on 31 March 2011 the previous year’s figures have not been incorporated. 

 ii.  The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the following basis:
a. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 “Consolidated 

Financial Statements” as notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended).
b. The financial statements of the Group and its Subsidiary Group have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding 

together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and 
intra-group transactions and unrealized profits or unrealized losses.

c. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group’s Standalone 
Financial Statements.

d. The excess of cost of investment in the Subsidiary Group over the Group’s portion of equity of the Subsidiary at the date of 
investment is recognized in the financial statements as goodwill. This goodwill is tested for impairment at the close of each 
financial year. The excess of Group’s portion of equity of the Subsidiary over the cost of the investment therein is treated as 
Capital Reserve.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Change in accounting policy

Presentation and disclosure of financial statements
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act, 1956, has become 
applicable to the Group, for preparation and presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI 
does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. However, it has 
significant impact on presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements. The Company and its subsidiary have 
also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year.

b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

c) Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs 
relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included 
to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready for its intended use.
From accounting periods commencing on or after 7 December 2006, the Group adjusts exchange differences arising on 
translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to 
the cost of the asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset.

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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d) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method, using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives of the fixed assets 
estimated by the management, which corresponds to the rate prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or its estimated useful life whichever is lower.

at Surat).

line basis unless there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership of the asset would be obtained at the end of the 
agreement term. Where there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership of the asset would be obtained at the end of the 
agreement term such assets are depreciated over the shorter of the contract term or the asset’s useful life in accordance with 
the Group’s normal depreciation policy.

e) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses if any.

management estimates that the economic benefits will be derived over the period of ten years.
f) Inventories

Raw materials, packing materials, 
stores and spares 

Lower of cost or net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in 
the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products 
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Custom 
Duty on imported stock lying at custom bonded warehouse is not provided pending 
decision on clearance under export incentive scheme. Cost is determined on a FIFO 
basis by applying specific identification method for paper and on FIFO basis for other 
raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares.
Lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes materials and labour and a proportion 
of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods 
includes excise duty wherever applicable. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g) Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.
Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual 

a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited 
to the statement of profit and loss.

h) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can 
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Sale of Goods:
Sales of printed material and fulfillment product are recognized on transfer of property in goods and performance of service. 
Sales are inclusive of excise duty, wherever applicable, but net of trade discount and other applicable taxes. Export sales 
are net of freight expense. The Group collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, 
therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.
Income from Services:
Revenue from services is recognized as and when the services are rendered.
Export incentives:
Export incentive principally comprises of duty drawback, Duty Entitlement Pass Book credit, excise duty rebate and other 
benefits available to the Group based on guidelines formulated for the respective schemes by the government authorities. 
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These incentives are recognized as revenue on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that realization is certain.
Interest:
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
Dividends:
Revenue is recognized when the shareholders right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date.

i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings 
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the 
interest cost.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

j) Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances
Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount, the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
Conversion:
Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in 
a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.
Exchange differences
From accounting periods commencing on or after 7 December 2006, the Group accounts for exchange differences arising on 
translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items as below:
1. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a fixed asset are 

capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. For this purpose, the Group treats a foreign 
monetary item as “long-term foreign currency monetary item”, if it has a term of 12 months or more at the date of its 
origination.

2. Exchange differences arising on other long-term foreign currency monetary items are accumulated in the “Foreign 
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the remaining life of the concerned 
monetary item but not beyond accounting period ended on or before 31 March 2020.

All other exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.
Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset/liability
The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contract is amortized and recognized as an expense/
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts, except the contracts which are long-term 
foreign currency monetary items, are recognized in the profit and loss account in the period in which the exchange rates 
change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is also recognized as income 
or as expense for the period. Any gain/ loss arising on forward contracts which are long-term foreign currency monetary 
items is recognized in accordance with paragraphs 1 and 2 above.

k)  Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation fund are defined contribution schemes and the 
contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and the cost is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on Projected 
Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long-term compensated absences are provided for 
based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per Projected Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not deferred.

l) Leases (where the Group is lessee)
Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalized at the inception of lease term at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum 

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on 
the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are recognized as finance cost in the profit and loss account. Lease management 
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalized.
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a 

m) Impairment of Tangible and Intangible assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent 
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation 
model is used.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment 

generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The 
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in 
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

n) Income taxes

jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating 
during the currency year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible 
timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry 
forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence 
that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect 
of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Group’s gross total income is subject to 
the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday 
period is recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate. However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the 
timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient 
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the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Group recognizes 
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the 
Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect 
of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement 
of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each 
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal 
tax during the specified period.

o) Employee Stock Option Plan
The measurement and disclosure of employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with SEBI (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee 
Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Group measures compensation cost 
relating to employee stock options using the intrinsic value method. Compensation expense is amortized over the vesting 
period of the option on a straight-line basis.

p) Segment reporting
Identification of segments
The Group operates in a single business segment in view of the nature of the products and services provided. The analysis of 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Group operate.
Segment Accounting Policies
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting 
the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

q) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, 
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

r) Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates.

s) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

t) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not 
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured 
reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

u) Derivative instruments
In accordance with ICAl announcement, derivative contracts, other than foreign currency forward contracts covered under 
AS 11 are marked to market on a portfolio basis, and the net loss, if any, after considering the offsetting effect of gain on the 
underlying hedged item, is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Net gain, if any, after considering the offsetting effect 
of loss on the underlying hedged item, is ignored.

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. Share Capital

 (All amounts in `)

Authorized Shares
25,000,000 (Previous year 25,000,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each  250,000,000 

10,843,074 (Previous year 10,559,864) Equity shares of `  108,430,740 

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares

 No. `

At the beginning of the year  10,559,864  105,598,640 

Issued during period under Repro ESOS 2006  283,210  2,832,100 

Outstanding at the end of the year  10,843,074  108,430,740 

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was ̀ 10
(31March 2011 : ` 6 ).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company. 
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/
associates are as below:

All nos.
Repro Enterprises Private Limited, (previously known as Reproductions Private Limited), the holding company  5,537,643 

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

No. % holding in the class
Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Repro Enterprises Private Limited, Holding Company  5,537,643 51.07%
Asia Advantage Fund  565,021 5.21%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members the above shareholding represents the legal ownerships of shares.

e. Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Company, please refer note 30.

v) Measurement of EBITDA
As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Group has elected to present 
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of 
profit and loss. The Group measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the 
Group does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.
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4. Reserves and Surplus

 (All amounts in `)
As at  

31-March-2012
Capital Reserve  124,467 
Investment Allowance Reserve (utilized)
Balance as per the Last Financial Statements  492,597 
Less: Amount transferred to General Reserve  492,597 
Closing Balance  – 
Security Premium account
Balance as per the Last Financial Statements  363,194,904 
Add: Additions on account of shares issued under Repro ESOS 2006  25,012,480 
Closing Balance  388,207,384 
General Reserve
Balance as per the Last Financial Statements  88,609,235 
Add: Amount transferred from Investment Allowance Reserve  492,597 
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss  36,042,569 
Closing Balance  125,144,401 
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per the Last Financial Statements  836,256,000 
Profit for the year  349,914,282 
Less: Minority share  (252,000)
Less: Appropriations
           1) Transfer to General Reserve  36,042,569 
           2) Proposed Dividend  108,430,740 
           3) Tax on Proposed Dividend  17,590,177 
           4) Dividend pertaining to previous year  225,600 
           5) Tax on Dividend pertaining to previous year  35,014 
Total Appropriations  162,324,100 
Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss  1,024,098,182 
Total Reserves and Surplus  1,537,574,434 

5. Minority Interest
 (All amounts in `)

As at  
31-March-2012

Share Capital  252,000 
Share in loss  (252,000)
Total  – 

6. Long-term Borrowings
(All amounts in `)

 Non-current  Current 
31-March-2012 31-March-2012

Term loans
Foreign currency loan from banks (Secured)  711,331,133  233,529,423 
Indian rupee loan from Repro India Ltd. (Unsecured) – –
Vehicle Loans (Secured)  2,490,941  2,148,825 

 713,822,074  235,678,248 

Amount disclosed under the head “Other Current Liabilities” under Note 12 –  (235,678,248)
 713,822,074  – 

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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Foreign currency loans from banks
Security Rate of 

Interest
Loan

Period
Repayment Schedule Balance as at 

date of the facility
 first charge on movable fixed 

assets of the Company
3 months 
Libor + 

2.60% p.a.

5 Years 8 equal half yearly instalments 
with moratorium period of 18 
months

186,465,443 31December, 2009

 first charge on movable fixed 
assets of the company, both present and 
future, excluding assets charged to other 
lenders

6 months 
Libor + 

1.50% p.a.

5 Years 8 equal half yearly instalments 
with moratorium period of 18 
months

57,551,063 18 August, 2008

 first charge on movable fixed 
assets of the Company, both present and 
future, excluding assets charged to other 
lenders

6 months 
Libor + 

1.50% p.a.

5 Years 8 equal half yearly instalments 
with moratorium period of 18 
months

76,734,750 11 July, 2008

 first charge on movable fixed 
assets of the company, both present and 
future

3 months 
Libor + 

2.50% p.a.

5 Years 15 equal quarterly instalments 
of USD 400,000 with 
moratorium period of 18 
months

266,013,800 05 April, 2010

 first charge on movable fixed 
assets of the company, both present and 
future/Undertaking from the Company to 
not to mortgage/dispose any property of 
the Company without prior consent of the 
lender

3 months 
Libor + 

2.85% p.a.

5 Years 15 equal quarterly instalments 
with moratorium period of 18 
months

358,095,500 25 October, 2010

Total 944,860,556

Vehicle loans are repayable in 3 years from the loan disbursement date. Vehicle loans carry interest rate in the range of 11% p.a to 14% 
p.a and are secured  against vehicles acquired under the said loans. 

(All amounts in `)

 Date of Disbursement  Balance as at 

 10 July, 2009  206,045 
 10 June, 2011  1,344,044 
 28 April, 2011  1,612,600 
 1 June, 2011  1,477,077 

 4,639,766 

7. Deferred Tax Liabilities
(All amounts in `)

Difference between written down value and tax base of fixed assets  187,701,007 
Gross deferred tax liability  187,701,007 
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts  19,214,849 
Preliminary Expenses u/s 35D –
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment  13,839,191 
Pertaining to other liabilities  69,560,436 
Gross deferred tax asset  102,614,476 
Total  85,086,531 
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8. Provisions
(All amounts in `)

 Long-term  Short term 
31-March-2012 31-March-2012

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity  23,823,116  10,878,414 
Provision for leave benefits 8,441,403 971,549

32,264,519 11,849,963
Other Provisions 
Proposed dividend  –  108,430,740 
Provision for tax on proposed dividend –  17,590,177 

 –  126,020,917 
32,264,519  137,870,880 

9. Short Term Borrowings

(All amounts in `)
31-March-2012

Cash credit from banks (Secured)  454,068,867 
Buyers credit from banks (Secured)  152,674,727 
Packing credit loan from banks (Secured)  489,342,123 

 1,096,085,717 

Short-Term Borrowings from banks are secured by hypothecation of stock, receivables and other current assets of the Company both 
present and future ranking pari passu with all banks. Further, the facilities from State Bank of Travancore and ING Vysya Bank are partly 
secured by second charge on the fixed assets of the Company ranking pari passu with all banks.

 Cash credit from banks is repayable on demand and carries interest @12% to 14% p.a. 

 Buyers credit loans are repayable within 90 days (with a roll-over option up to 360 days) and carry interest @ 3.5% to 5%. 

 Packing credit loans are repayable within 180 days and carry interest @ 4% to 5%. 

10. Tangible Assets

Particulars Leasehold
Land

Buildings Plant and 
Machinery

Office
Equipments

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Vehicles Leasehold 
Improvements

Total

At 1-April-2011 67,804,674 223,872,401 1,362,756,835 142,291,843 62,159,126 39,259,703 22,348,016 1,920,492,598
Additions – 23,658,052 244,371,304 21,262,045 4,148,734 9,923,237 – 303,363,372
Disposals – – 33,694,773 152,317 1,457,861 5,619,927 – 40,924,878
Other Adjustments
Exchange Differences (loss) 3,138,603 6,177,683 67,410,935 4,054,001 348,664 114,238 – 81,244,124
Borrowing costs – – – – – – – –
At 31-March-2012 70,943,277 253,708,136 1,640,844,301 167,455,572 65,198,663 43,677,251 22,348,016 2,264,175,216
Depreciation
At 1-April-2011 3,165,927 52,794,437 387,483,075 68,912,326 35,408,288 18,388,676 22,348,016 588,500,745
Charge for the year 930,622 7,905,342 74,922,283 16,350,920 3,615,489 3,617,414 – 107,342,070
Disposals – – 15,713,302 46,215 812,835 1,404,339 – 17,976,691
At 31-March-2012 4,096,549 60,699,779 446,692,056 85,217,031 38,210,942 20,601,751 22,348,016 677,866,124
At 31-March-2012 66,846,728 193,008,357 1,194,152,245 82,238,541 26,987,721 23,075,500 – 1,586,309,092

 Notes:

 1.  Leasehold land Includes land taken on lease from MIDC for a period of 95 years at Mahape at gross block of ` 9,630,590 and WDV 
of ` 7,780,269  and land taken on lease from Diamond and Gem Development Corporation Ltd. for a period 77 years at Surat at 
gross block of Rs 58,174,084 and WDV of ` 59,035,774 .

 2.  Vehicles includes assets acquired under finance lease gross block ` 20,914,554 and net block ` 13,641,334.

 3. Vehicles includes assets held in the name of employees for the beneficial interest of the Company gross block ` 27,233,217  and  
net block ` 14,443,697

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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11. Intangible Assets
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars Computer Software Goodwill Total
 96,108,192  –  96,108,192 

Additions  43,032,574  20,416,842  63,449,416 
Disposals  – – –
Other Adjustments
Exchange Differences (loss)  6,774,815  –  6,774,815 

 145,915,581  20,416,842  166,332,423 
Amortisation

 42,176,566  –  42,176,566 
Charge for the year  16,311,306  1,283,025  17,594,331 
Disposals  – – –

 58,487,872  1,283,025  59,770,897 
Net Block

 87,427,709  19,133,817  106,561,526 

12. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities
(All amounts in `)

Trade Payables (including Acceptances) (refer Note 39 for details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises) 356,288,986
Other Liabilities
Advance from Customers 26,873,433

 235,678,248 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  7,247,314 
Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by Unpaid Dividend (as and when due)  459,871 
Provision for Income Tax  5,147,248 
Other Payables
Book Overdraft  32,244,032 
Creditors for capital goods 22,564,726
Other statutory dues payable 14,044,187

344,259,059
700,548,044

13. Deferred tax Assets
(All amounts in `)

Difference between book and tax base of fixed assets
Depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting  (1,184,130)
Provision for leave encashment  208,937 
Brought forward losses  4,699,976 
Net deferred tax asset/(liability)  3,724,783 

14. Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference
(All amounts in `)

Balance as per the last financial statements –
Add: Exchange Loss on long term monetary items other than relating to depreciable assets (Refer Note No : 37)  22,166,003 
Less: Amortized during the year  (6,977,271)
Closing Balance  15,188,732 
Current  3,311,760 

 11,876,972 
 15,188,732 
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15. Loans and Advances (Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise)
(All amounts in `)

 Non-current  Current 
31-March-2012 31-March-2012

Capital Advances  59,985,219  1,081,726 
Security deposits  250,518,876 –
Loans and advances to related parties –  4,577,420 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  1,345,905  995,240 
Advance Income-tax (net of Provision for Taxation)  23,825,197  5,053,487 
MAT Credit entitlement  81,528,415 –
Prepaid Expenses –  13,924,435 
Inter-Corporate Deposits –  96,700 
Export Incentive Receivable  27,598,962  29,266,686 
Advance to Suppliers –  10,069,711 
Loans and advances to employees –  7,754,166 
Balances with Government Authorities  58,121,703  18,869,444 
Total  502,924,277  91,689,015 

Inter-Corporate Deposits include
Inter-Corporate Deposit given to Reproductions Private Limited, is the holding company –  10,829 
Loans and advances to related parties include
Advances given to Quadrum Solutions Private Limited – a Company in which  
Non-Executive Director is interested

–  4,577,420 

16. Trade Receivables and Other Assets

 (All amounts in `)
 Non-current  Current 

31-March-2012 31-March-2012
Trade receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for 
payment (Unsecured)
Considered good  7,564,281  50,482,640 
Considered doubtful  59,222,893 –

 66,787,174  50,482,640 
Provision for doubtful receivables  (59,222,893)

 ( A )  7,564,281  50,482,640 
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good  ( B ) –  965,963,776 
Provision for doubtful receivables
Total ( A + B )  7,564,281  1,016,446,416 

Trade receivables include

Other Assets
Non-Current Bank Balances (Note 19)  204,566 –
Ancillary cost of arranging the borrowing  28,634,245  8,713,731 
Unamortized premium on forward contracts – –

 ( A )  28,838,811  8,713,731 
Others
Interest accrued on fixed deposits –  1,314,441 
Interest accrued on investments – –
Others –  385,412 

 ( B ) –  1,699,853 
Total (A+B)  28,838,811  10,413,584 

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17. Current Investments
 (All amounts in `)

Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless otherwise stated
Unquoted Mutual funds

` 1,000 each)
–

–

18. Inventories (Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
 (All amounts in `)

Raw Materials and Packing Materials 103,058,543
[includes Stock In Transit ` 2,292,061 (Previous Year  ` Nil)]

 18,616,184
Finished Goods  170,165 
Stores and Spares 69,896,288

191,741,180

19. Cash and Bank balances
 (All amounts in `)

 Current 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Balances with banks:
On current accounts –  217,219,159 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months –  484,000,000 
On unpaid dividend account –  458,983 
Cash on hand – 673,355

– 702,351,497
Other bank balances
Margin money deposit  204,566  24,500,501 

 204,566  24,500,501 

Amount disclosed under other assets (Note 16)  204,566 –
– 726,851,998

Margin money deposits given as security
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of ` 24,705,068 are subject to first charge to secure the Company’s cash credit loans

20. Revenue from Operations
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended 

Sale of Products  3,364,336,618 
Sale of Services  1,146,888 
Other Operating Revenue
Scrap sales 50,425,969
Export Incentives  43,645,182 
Revenue from Operations  3,459,554,657 

Note: Sale of Products comprises of Printed books and sale of services comprises of warehousing services.
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21. Other Income
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended  
31-March-2012

Interest income on
 Bank deposits  17,627,080 
 Income tax refund –
 Inter-corporate deposit 15,462,864
Profit on sale of Current Investments (Net)  1,488,689 
Excess provision written back  1,009,529 
Reversal of Provision for doubtful debts –
Other Non Operating Income [net of attributable expenses ` Nil (Previous year: ` Nil)] 3,465,488
Amortization of discounts on forward contracts –

 39,053,650 

22. Cost of Raw Materials and Packing Materials Consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year  101,536,569 
Add: Purchases 1,759,479,049

 1,861,015,618
Less Inventory at the end of the year 102,576,558
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 1,758,439,060
Details of raw material and packing material consumed
Paper 1,540,406,820
Others  218,032,240 

1,758,439,060
Details of inventory 
Paper 96,583,195
Others 5,993,363

102,576,558

23. (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (Increase)/Decrease

31-March-2012
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods  170,165  (145,104)
Work-in-Progress  18,616,184  15,705,686 

 18,786,349  15,560,582 
Inventories at the beginning of the year 31-March-2012
Finished Goods  25,061  1,041,823 
Work-in-Progress  34,321,870  (16,728,279)

 34,346,931  (15,686,454)
 15,560,582 

 Note: Inventory of Finished goods and Work-in-progress comprises of Printed books.
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24. Employee Benefit Expenses
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 328,603,052
Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 15,280,948
Staff welfare expenses 14,153,805
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 29)  4,965,681 
Leave Encashment 3,269,230

366,272,716

25. Other Expenses
 (All amounts in `)

 Year ended 

Consumption of Stores  70,159,892 

Power and Fuel  72,344,201 

Outsourcing Charges  92,454,631 

Print on Demand Impression Charges  25,543,128 

Hire Charges  6,902,134 

Commission on Sales  116,725,428 

Advertising and Sales Promotion  45,600,402 

Repairs and Maintenance:

on Buildings  2,041,394 

on Plant and machinery  34,241,570 

on Others  23,185,574 

 59,468,538 

Payment to Auditor (refer details below)  2,681,206 

Rates and Taxes  5,655,998 

Operating Lease Rent  24,221,840 

Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges  28,501,263 

Travelling and Conveyance  38,110,650 

Transport and Courier Charges (net of recoveries)  78,419,519 

Loading and unloading expenses  4,295,226 

Telephone Charges  10,037,690 

Insurance Charges  10,317,334 

Royalty  1,269,419 

Directors’ Sitting fees  600,000 

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net)  2,530,508 

Artwork and Design Charges  450,000 

Exchange Difference (net)  14,276,237 

Provision for Doubtful Debts  10,971,992 

Bad Debts written off  19,368,024 

Donations –

Miscellaneous expenses  12,247,012 

 753,152,272 
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 (All amounts in `)
 Year ended  

31-March-2012

Payment to Auditor

As Auditor:

 Fees for Statutory audit  650,000 

 Fees for Limited reviews  900,000 

 Fees for certification  205,000 

In Other Capacity:

 Other Matters  537,419 

Reimbursement of Out of Pocket Expenses (including service tax)  388,787 

 2,681,206 

26. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Depreciation of tangible assets  107,342,071 

Amortization of intangible assets  17,594,331 

 124,936,402 

27. Finance Costs
Interest  57,245,613 
Bank charges  25,423,692 
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs  8,186,982 
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs  32,379,620 

 123,235,907 

28. Earnings per share (EPS)
Net profit for the year (for calculation of basic and diluted EPS) 349,914,282
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating
– Basic earnings per share 10,708,532
Add:- Equity shares arising on grant of stock options under ESOP 121,216
– Diluted earnings per share 10,829,748
 Earnings per share – Basic 32.68
    – Diluted 32.31
Face Value Per Share 10

29. Employee Benefits

Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity)

The Company operates defined plan, with respect to gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has 
completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. 
The scheme with respect to all employees, except directors of the Company is funded with an insurance Company in the form of 
qualifying insurance policy.

The Company has two facilities at Mahape and Surat .The Company maintains a funded gratuity scheme for its employees and unfunded 
gratuity scheme for its Directors.
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The following table summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded 
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plan.

 (All amounts in `)

(Funded) (Unfunded)

Current service cost  3,084,363  566,451 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  2,014,470  717,664

Expected return on plan assets  (145,438) –

Past service cost* – –

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year  88,847  (1,360,676) 

Net benefit expense Actual return on plan assets  5,042,242  (76,561)

Actual return on plan assets 128,948 –

 *Represents the future liability for gratuity of Directors.

 Balance Sheet

 (All amounts in `)
Details of Provision for Gratuity

(Funded) (unfunded)

Present value of defined benefit obligation  (26,708,106) –

Fair value of plan assets  628,971  (8,622,395) 

Plan asset/(liability)  (26,079,135)  (8,622,395) 

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars
(Funded) (unfunded)

Opening defined benefit obligation  24,417,813   8,698,956 
Current service cost  3,084,363   566,451 
Interest cost  2,014,470   717,664 
Benefits paid  (2,880,897)  –
Past service cost* – –
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation  72,357   (1,360,676)
Closing defined benefit obligation  26,708,106  8,622,395

 *Represents the future liability for gratuity of Directors.

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars
(Funded) (unfunded)

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period  1,817,973  –
Expected return  145,438  –
Contributions by employer  1,562,947  –
Benefits paid  (2,880,897)  –
Actuarial gains/(losses)  (16,490)  –
Closing fair value of plan assets 628,971  –

(All amounts in `)

Particulars

Expected contribution to defined benefit plan for the year ended March 31,  2013 10,878,414



106 | Repro India Limited

30.  Employee Stock Options Plans

The Company has provided two Employee Stock Option Plans namely Repro India Limited (Employee Stock Option Scheme), 2006 (Repro 
ESOS 2006) and Repro India Limited (Employee Stock Option Scheme), 2010 (Repro ESOS 2010) which were in operation during the 
year. These schemes are in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 2009 (“the SEBI Guidelines”). The Compensation Committee constituted in accordance with the 
SEBI Guidelines administers and monitors the scheme.

Particulars Repro ESOS 2006 Repro ESOS 2010
Date of grant 14 May 2007, 24 December 2009, 8 June  2010, 

12 August 2010 and 23 May 2011
12 August 2010

Date of Board Approval 24 July 2006 6 May 2010
Date of shareholders’ approval 12 September 2006 24 July 2010
Number of options granted 500,000 200,000
Method of Settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity Equity
Vesting period Spread over 3 years for 354,000 options 1 year for 129,000 

options 2 years for 17,000 options
One year 

Exercise Period 3 years from the date of vesting 3 years from the date of vesting
Exercise Price ` 98 to ` 104 ` 101

 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows :

Particulars 31-March-2012
Insurer Managed Funds (LIC) 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment medical benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are 
shown below:

Particulars 31-March-2012
Discount rate 8.75%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.60%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00%
Employee Turnover 2.00%
Mortality Table  LIC (1994-96) 

Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined 
based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. There has been 
significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario.

The disclosures in respect of status of defined benefit obligation have been given for four years, since the Company has adopted AS15 
(Revised) in the year 2009.

Particulars 31-March-2012 31-March-2011 31-March-2010 31-March-2009 31-March-2008
Defined benefit obligation 35,330,501 24,417,813 18,655,920 – –
Plan assets 628,971 1,817,973 1,762,916 – –
Surplus/(deficit) 34,701,530 22,599,840 16,893,004 – –
Experience adjustments on 
plan liabilities

3,476,274 3,191,907 189,672 (1,072,091) –

Experience adjustments on 
plan assets

(16,490) (139,391) (28,597) (19,704) –

Defined Contribution Plans

Amount of ` 15,280,948 is recognized as an expenses and included in Note 24 – Employee Benefit Expenses as Contribution to Provident 
Fund and Other Funds in the statement of profit and loss.
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The details of the activity under Repro ESOS 2006 have been summarized below:

Particulars
Number of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (`)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 407,285 98
Lapsed during the year 9,900 98
Granted during the year 17,000 104**
Exercised and allotted during the year 283,210 98
Expired during the year 49,300 –
Outstanding at the end of the year 81,785 99
Exercisable at the end of the year 64,785 98

* 34,000 options regranted @ ` 98 in June 2010 and 40,000 options regranted @ ` 101 in August 2010.

**17,000 options regranted in May 2011 @ ` 104.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options was ` 98 with respect to Repro ESOS 2006.

The details of the activity under Repro ESOS 2010 have been summarized below:

Particulars
Number of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (`)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000 101
Granted during the year – –
Forfeited during the year – –
Exercised during the year – –
Expired during the year – –
Outstanding at the end of the year 200,000 101
Exercisable at the end of the year 200,000 101

The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year under Repro ESOS 2006 are:

Range of exercise price Number of options 
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options (in years)

Weighted average exercise price

98 54,785 0.9 98
101 10,000 2.45 101
104 17,000 3.72 104

81,785

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was ` 70 (Rupees Seventy Only).

Option Scheme (‘ESOS’) 2006 considering the following inputs:

Particulars
Weighted average share price (` per share) 99.50 98
Exercise Price (` per share) 89,000 options @ ` 98, 40,000 options 

@ ` 101 and 17,000 options 
@ ` 104

98

Expected Volatility 59% 67%
Historical Volatility 59% 67%
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise 
period) in years

Vesting period + 3 years i.e. 4 years 
and 5 years for each vesting tranche of 

100% and 50% respectively

Vesting period + 3 years i.e. 3 years 
for each vesting tranche of 30%, 30% 

and 40% respectively
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Particulars 31-March-2012
Expected Dividend Yield 5.77% per annum 2.55% per annum
Average risk-free interest rate 8% per annum 8% per annum
Expected dividend rate ` 6 per share ` 2.5 per share

The expected volatility of the share price is measure of the amount by which the share price is expected to fluctuate during the period. 
The Company is listed and expected volatility was determined based on historical information of the movement of share price from which 
an estimate of expected volatility is calculated.

Since the enterprise has granted shares at a price equal to the closing market price on the date of the grant, there is no impact of ESOPs 
on the financial position.

 The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year under Repro ESOS 2010 are:

31-March-2012

Range of exercise price Number of options 
outstanding

Weighted average remaining 
contractual life of options  

(in years)

Weighted average exercise price

101-101 200,000 2.45 101
200,000

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was ` 52 (Rupees Fifty Two Only).

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value with respect to Repro Employee Stock 
Option Scheme (‘ESOS’) 2010 considering the following inputs:

Particulars 31-March-2012
Weighted average share price (` per share) 101
Exercise Price (` per share) 101
Expected Volatility 56%
Historical Volatility 56%
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years Vesting period + 3 years 

i.e. 4 years for vesting tranche of 100%
Expected Dividends 2.97% per annum
Average risk-free interest rate 8% per annum
Expected dividend rate ` 2.97 per share

The expected volatility of the share price is measure of the amount by which the share price is expected to fluctuate during the period. 
The Group is listed and expected volatility was determined based on historical information of the movement of share price from which an 
estimate of expected volatility is calculated.
Since the enterprise has granted shares at a price equal to the closing market price on the date of the grant, there is no impact of ESOPs 
on the financial position.
Since the enterprise used the intrinsic value method the impact on the reported net profit and earnings per share by applying the fair value 
base method is as under:

 (All amounts in `)
Particulars For the 

year ended 
31-March-2012

Net Profit/(Loss) as reported 360,425,690
Add – Employee stock compensation under intrinsic value method –
Less – Employee stock compensation under fair value method (11,488,957)
Proforma Profit/(Loss) 348,936,733
Earnings per share (` )
Basic
- as reported 33.66
- Proforma 32.58
Diluted
- as reported 33.28
- Proforma 32.22

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012



Annual Report | 109

STUDENTKNOWLEDGE

Helping deliver knowledge to students

31. Lease – assets acquired under deferred payment credit [on after 1 April 2001]

a) Operating Lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken on lease the premises (land and building) from Macmillan Publishers India Limited. The lease is for a period 
of 5 years and lease rental is ` 25,000 per month (all inclusive). Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the 

b) Finance Lease – assets acquired under deferred payment credit [on after 1 April 2001].

Particulars Year Total up to the 
end of lease

Due not later 
than 1 year

Due later than 1 
year and not later 

than 5 years

Due later than 
5 years

Minimum lease payments 31 March 2012 5,507,596 2,604,014 2,903,582 –
Less: Unamortized finance charges 31 March 2012 867,830 455,189 412,641 –
Present value 31 March 2012 4,639,766 2,148,825 2,490,941 –

32. Segment information

Business segment

The Company and its subsidiary operate in a single business segment of Value Added Print Solutions and hence, there are no separate 
reportable segments of the group. 

Secondary information is reported geographically. The operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the 
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and 
serves different markets.

Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include transfers between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated 
in total revenue/expense/result.

Geographical segment

The Company’s secondary segments are the geographic distribution of activities. Revenue and receivables are specified by location of 
customers while the other geographic information is specified by location of the assets.

Particulars Year In India Outside India Total
Revenue 31 March 2012 1,398,090,459 2,058,720,582 3,456,811,041
Carrying amount of Segment Assets 31 March 2012 3,767,694,594 626,778,001 4,394,472,595
Carrying amount of Segment Liabilities* 31 March 2012 2,443,604,698 83,488,988 2,527,093,686

31 March 2012 522,018,749 – 522,018,749

*The segment liabilities include deferred tax liability.

 (All amounts in `)

Capital expenditure
Tangible Fixed Assets  384,607,496
Intangible Fixed Assets  70,224,231
Total  454,831,727

33. Related party disclosures under Accounting Standard 18

a. Related parties where control exists :

Name of the Related party Nature of Relationship
Holding/Subsidiary Companies
Repro Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Reproductions Private Limited) Holding Company
Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited Subsidiary Company
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Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director
Mr. Rajeev Vohra Director
Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Director
Mr. Pramod Khera Director
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra Wife of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
Ms. Sonam Vohra Daughter of Mr. Sanjeev Vohra
Mrs. Deepa Vohra Wife of Mr. Rajeev Vohra
Mr. Kunal Vohra Son of Mr. Rajeev Vohra
Late Mr. Inderjit Vohra Father of Mr. Sanjeev, Vinod and Rajeev Vohra
Mrs. Avinash Vohra Mother of Mr. Sanjeev, Vinod and Rajeev Vohra
Mr. Rajeev Khera Brother of Mr. Pramod Khera 
Mrs. Nita Khera Wife of Mr. Pramod Khera 
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management personnel or their relatives
Zoyaksa Consultants Private Limited
Quadrum Solutions Private Limited
Trisna Trust

b. The following are the volume of transactions with related parties during the year and outstanding balances as at the year 
end disclosed in aggregate by type of related party.

Name Year ended Key
Management

Personnel

Relative of Key 
Management

Personnel

Enterprises Significantly 
influenced by Key 

Management Personnel

Total Balance as at 
the year end

Remuneration
Mr. Vinod Vohra 31-March-2012 4,789,584 – – 4,789,584 –
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra 31-March-2012 14,761,983 – – 14,761,983 (10,000,000)
Mr. Rajeev Vohra 31-March-2012 4,969,327 – –  4,969,327 –
Mr. Mukesh Dhruve 31-March-2012 4,465,600 – – 4,465,600 –
Mr. Pramod Khera 31-March-2012 9,545,400 – – 9,545,400 –
Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra 31-March-2012 –  420,000 – 420,000 –
Mr. Kunal Vohra 31-March-2012 –  80,000 – 80,000 –
Ms. Sonam Vohra 31-March-2012 –  523,200 – 523,200 –
Total 31-March-2012 38,531,894 1,023,200 – 39,475,094 (10,000,000)
Rent
Mrs. Nita Khera 31-March-2012 – 849,996 – 849,996 –
Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra 31-March-2012 – 3,600,000 – 3,600,000 –
Mrs. Deepa Vohra 31-March-2012 – 1,250,000 – 1,250,000 –
Late Mr. Inderjit Vohra 31-March-2012 – 250,000 – 250,000 –
Mrs. Avinash Vohra 31-March-2012 – 1,500,000 – 1,500,000 –
Repro Enterprises Private 
Limited

31-March-2012 – – 2,481,750 2,481,750 (2,256,750)

Trisna Trust 31-March-2012 – – 2,150,850 2,150,850 (1,955,850)
Zoyaksa Consultants 
Private Limited

31-March-2012 – – 2,316,300 2,316,300 (2,106,300)

Total 31-March-2012 – 7,449,996 6,948,900 14,398,896 (6,318,900)
Deposit
Mrs. Nita Khera 31-March-2012 – – – – –
Mrs. Renu Sanjeev Vohra 31-March-2012 –  40,000,000 – 40,000,000 40,000,000

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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Name Year ended Key
Management

Personnel

Relative of Key 
Management

Personnel

Enterprises Significantly 
influenced by Key 

Management Personnel

Total Balance as at 
the year end

Repro Enterprises Private 
Limited

– –  68,645,000 68,645,000 68,645,000

Trisna Trust – – 59,500,000 59,500,000 59,500,000
Zoyaksa Consultants 
Private Limited

– – 35,877,018 35,877,018 35,877,018

Total – 40,000,000 164,022,018 204,022,018 204,022,018
Professional Fee
Mr. Rajeev Khera – 252,000 – 252,000 –
Quadrum Solutions 
Private Limited

– – 2,647,200  2,647,200 –

Total –  252,000 2,647,200 2,899,200 –
Loan Taken
Repro Enterprises Private 
Limited

– – – – –

Total – – – – –
Outsourcing Charges
Quadrum Solutions 
Private Limited

– –  5,397,414 5,397,414  4,577,420

Total – –  5,397,414 5,397,414  4,577,420
Sale of Assets
Quadrum Solutions 
Private Limited

– – 1,350,000 1,350,000 –

Total – – 1,350,000 1,350,000 –
Sales
Quadrum Solutions 
Private Limited

– – 296,807 296,807  48,186

Total – – 296,807 296,807  48,186
Artwork and Design Charge
Quadrum Solutions 
Private Limited

– –  – – –

Total – – – – –

Figures in brackets represents amount payable as at the year end.

289,000 Employee Stock Options have been granted to Mr. Pramod Khera (Executive Director) in the previous years, of which 
89,000 options have been exercised during the year. The balance 200,000 stock options have vested during the year.

Other transactions

`
included dividend on equity shares held by Holding Company. For details of shares held by the holding Company, refer note 3(c).

34. Capital Commitments
` 66,039,380.

35. Contingent Liabilities
 (All amounts in `)

Contingent Liabilities
Bill discounted with Banks 57,974,568
Cenvat Refund claim (Refer Note 1 below) 60,304,740
Service Tax Refund (Refer Note 2 below) 5,029,250
Excise Rebate (Refer Note 3 below) 4,447,176
Customs duty demand on imported computer software (Refer Note 4 below) 317,606,651
Obligation under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (Refer Note 5 below) 85,309,258
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Note 1

As against the Cenvat refund claim of ` 20,484,268 for the period April 2007 to December 2007, the Company  received a refund of
` 17,340,854. The Company had preferred an appeal against the aforesaid deduction of ` 3,143,414 and subsequently, the appeal 
has also been initiated by the Excise Authorities for the refund so granted. The Cenvat Refund for the subsequent period from January 
2008 to June 2010 aggregating to ` 39,820,472 is outstanding as receivable from Excise Authorities as on March 31,  2012. Based 
on the legal advice sought in this regard by the Company , the Company  is confident of a favorable decision in respect of these 
litigations and does not foresee any liability in this regard and is accordingly confident of the full realization of the outstanding receivable. 
However, as a matter of abundant caution, pending final decision in this regard, the total amount of ` 60,304,740 (including the refund of 
` 17,340,854, which has been received, and may have to be refunded in case of an unfavorable outcome) has been included under 
contingent liabilities.

Note 2

The Company has received an Order received from Commissioner of Central Excise dated 20 May 2011 rejecting the refund claim stating 
it as time barred. The Company  filed an appeal on 22 July 2011 against the said order. Based on the legal advice sought in this regard 
by the Company , the Company  is confident of a favorable decision in respect of these litigations and does not foresee any liability in 
this regard and is accordingly confident of the full realization of the outstanding receivable. However, as a matter of abundant caution, 
pending final decision in this regard, the total amount of ` 5,029,250 (which has been shown as receivable, and may have to be written 
off in case of an unfavorable outcome) has been included under contingent liabilities.

Note 3

The Company has received an Order received from Commissioner of Central Excise dated 21 February 2011 rejecting the refund claim 
stating it as time barred. The Company  filed an appeal on 6 June 2011 against the said order. Based on the legal advice sought in this 
regard by the Company , the Company  is confident of a favorable decision in respect of these litigations and does not foresee any liability 
in this regard and is accordingly confident of the full realization of the outstanding receivable. However, as a matter of abundant caution, 
pending final decision in this regard, the total amount of ` 4,447,176 (which has been shown as receivable, and may have to be written 
off in case of an unfavorable outcome) has been included under contingent liabilities.

Note 4

The Company has received an Order from Commissioner of Customs (Import), levying differential duty and penalties for the period March 
2006 to March 2009 aggregating to ` 317,606,651 plus interest on duty at the appropriate rate as applicable during the relevant period, 
on the computer software imported by the Company  for its erstwhile Microsoft business. The Company  has filed an appeal before the 
Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal against the above Order. Further, in case of erstwhile Microsoft business, show cause 
notice has been issued by The Commissioner of Central Excise for inclusion of Royalty/License fees in the assessable value for arriving 
at the excise duty liability, to which the Company  is in process of responding. Based on the legal advice, the management is confident 
that no liability will devolve on the Company  in respect of the above litigations.

Note 5

The Company has imported Capital Goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme of the Government of India at concessional 
rates of duty on an undertaking to fulfill quantified exports against which Minimum Export obligation is to be fulfilled by the Company  
under the said scheme. Non fulfillment of the balance of such future obligations in the manner required, if any, entails options/rights to 
the Government to confiscate capital goods imported under the said licenses and other penalties under the above-referred scheme.

36. Derivative Instruments and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

 Derivatives outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars Currency USD GBP EUR Purpose
Forward Contracts to sell 

31-March-2012
Foreign currency 24,625,000 400,000 – Hedge of highly probable foreign 

currency exportsINR 1,230,674,500 30,639,500 –
USD sell for import payment 
against EURO

185,591 – 135,656 Hedge of foreign currency loan

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance date:

Particulars Currency USD GBP EUR CAD SGD JYP
Import Payables

Foreign currency 1,267,695 – – – 11,415 42,060
INR 64,850,851 – – – 463,801 26,258

Export Trade Receivables
Foreign currency 11,456,970 244,549 7,804 3,303 – –
INR 586,098,511 20,003,898 533,821 170,138 – –

Foreign Currency Loan (PCFC)
Foreign currency 9,069,194 310,515 – – – –
INR 463,948,217 25,393,906 – – – –

Buyers credit
Foreign currency 2,067,097 – 686,700 – – –
INR 105,745,442 – 46,929,285 – – –

Foreign currency 18,470,000 – – – – –
INR 944,860,556 – – – – –

37. Deferral/Capitalization of Exchange Differences
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the amendment dated December 29, 2011 to AS 11 The Effects of Changes in Foreign 

items.

foreign currency loan, for the purpose of capital assets amounting to ` 88,018,939 (loss) to the cost of tangible and intangible fixed 
assets and `

` 22,166,003 has been taken to “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference 
Account.”

38. Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates and firms/Companies in which 
directors are interested in accordance with Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement
Quadrum Solutions Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2012 ` 4,577,420

Maximum amount outstanding during the year is ` 4,577,420.

39. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars
Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 31 March 2012 * 1,284,114
Interest paid along with amounts of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year Nil
Interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment but without adding the interest specified Nil
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year Nil

* There is no interest which is payable as at the year end

40. Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis

 (All amounts in `)
Particulars For the year ended 

Raw Material 192,784,747
Stores and Spares 11,919,614
Capital Goods 184,848,060

389,552,421



114 | Repro India Limited

41. Expenditure in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars For the year ended 
31-March-2012

Travelling and conveyance expenses [including ` Nil (Previous year ` 877,722) Capitalized as fixed assets] 11,556,825
Royalty 1,269,419
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges 14,675,451
Interest 34,154,550
Bank Charges 3,709,753
Commission on Sales 113,749,202
Miscellaneous expenses 233,838
Total 179,349,039

42. Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials, Stores and Spare Parts Consumed
% of total 

consumption
31-March-2012

Value (`)
For the year ended  

31-March-2012
Imported 11% 187,676,315
Indigenously obtained 89% 1,570,762,745
Total 100% 1,758,439,060
Imported 1% 428,615
Indigenously obtained 99% 69,731,277
Total 100% 70,159,892

43. Earnings in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars For the year ended 
31-March-2012

F.O.B value of Exports 1,950,738,745

44. Capital work-in-progress includes expenses capitalized of ` 6,948,900 comprising of rent

45. Prior Period Items
 (All amounts in `)

Particulars For the year ended 
31-March-2012

Rates and Taxes 7,304,991
Other Non operating income [Net of attributable expenses of ` Nil (Previous year: ` Nil)] (3,407,309)
Prior period expenses charged 3,897,682

46.  Business Acquisition

During the year, the Group has acquired the India printing operations of M/s. Macmillan Publishers India Limited with effect from 
16 August 2011 for a purchase consideration of ` 75,780,251.

The fixed assets acquired under the business transfer agreement have been recorded based on valuation done by an independent valuer. 
The Other Assets and Liabilities have been recorded at book values. The excess of purchase consideration paid over the value of net 
assets acquired amounting to ` 20,416,842 is recognized as Goodwill.

CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2012
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Following is a summary of the transaction:

 (All amounts in `)
Particulars
Purchase Consideration 75,780,251
Less: Assets and Liabilities acquired

Fixed Assets 22,083,158
Inventory 35,806,686
Advances to Suppliers 1,424,932
Cash and Bank balances 42,598
Trade Payables and Other Liabilities (3,993,965)

55,363,409
Goodwill 20,416,842

Goodwill is amortized over a period of ten years from the date of transfer.

47. Previous Year Figures

presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies 
Act, 1956, has become applicable to the Group. The Group has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year’s classification. 
Except accounting for dividend on investments in subsidiaries, the adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact recognition and 
measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. However, it significantly impacts presentation and disclosures 
made in the financial statements, particularly presentation of balance sheet.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 301003E Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director
Chartered Accountants

Mukesh Dhruve Director
per VIJAY MANIAR
Partner
Membership No.: 36738 Madhavi Kulkarni Company Secretary
Mumbai, Date: May 30 2012 Mumbai, Date: May 30 2012
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To,
The Members of 
REPRO INNOVATIVE DIGIPRINT LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present their THIRD Annual Report 
and Audited Accounts for the period ended March 31, 2012.

FINANCIALS

Amount in `
As on 

2012

As on 

2011
Revenue from operations 55,198,092 –
Profit before interest, 
depreciation and taxation

(10,346,491) –

Financial Expenses 1,840,672 3,440

Depreciation 2,049,028 –
Profit before tax 14,236,191 (3,440)
Tax Expenses (Deferred Tax) (3,724,783) –
Profit after Tax (10,511,408) (3,440)

DIRECTORS:

During the year Mr. Pramod Khera was appointed as an 
Additional Director pursuant to section 260 of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and holds office upto the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 
1956, from a member, proposing his candidature for the office 
of Director is proposed to be appointed as a Director of the 
Company liable to retire by rotation in the ensuing AGM of the 
Company.

Mr. Mukesh Druve, Director of the Company, retires by rotation 

HOLDING COMPANY

As on March 31, 2012 Repro India Ltd, the Holding Company 
holds 74.8% shareholding in the Company. 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Your Company has taken over operations of a Printing Unit 
at Chennai from Macmillan Publishers India Ltd No. 146, 
Injambakkam Village, Saidapet Taluk, Chengalpattu District 
comprising of fixed assets and employees on a slump sale 
basis the details of which are mentioned in Note 26 of the 
Notes to Accounts.

Increase in share capital

During the year, your Company did an allotment of 90000 
number of equity shares to Repro India Ltd, Macmillan 

Publishers India Ltd, Kunal Vohra and Sonam Vohra. As a result 
of this, the outstanding issued, subscribed and paid up capital 
of the Company increased from 10000 shares of `
value as at March 31, 2011 to 1,00,000 of `
at March 31, 2012.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of Energy:

As required under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 

thereof for the time being in force) read with Rule 2 of the 
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board 
of Directors) Rules 1988, your Company is not covered 
by the Schedule of Industries which are required to furnish 
the information in Form ‘A’. However, your Company has 
continued to lay a special emphasis in creating awareness on 
conservation of energy.

Technology Absorption:

The Company does not have any technical collaboration 
arrangements. The Company has always used the latest 
technology available in the industry. Accordingly, the Company 
has procured the latest equipment and its personnel are trained 
from time to time, on the use, operation and maintenance of 
such highly sophisticated equipment.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER SECTION 217(2A) 

OF COMPANIES ACT, 1956:

As of March 31, 2012 the total manpower strength of your 
Company is 142 employees. None of the employees of the 
Company are covered under the provisions of Section 217(2A) of 
the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars 
of Employees)Rules, 1975 as amended till date.

DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits during the 

the public as on the Balance Sheet date.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Notes on Accounts referred to by the Auditors in their 

clarification.

AUDITORS:

M/s. A M SOLANKI & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, 
retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
offer themselves for reappointment.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors have fulfilled their responsibility for the 
preparation of the accompanying financial statements by 
taking all reasonable steps to ensure that:-

(a) The statements have been prepared in conformity with the 
generally accepted accounting principles and accounting 
standards. Proper explanations for material departures, if 
any, have been given.

(b) The accounting policies selected and applied consistently 
and judgments and estimates made are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the company and of the profit and loss of the 
company for the financial year.

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records as required 
by the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities.

(d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the 
company on a going-concern basis.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank and place on record their 
appreciation for all the employees at all levels for their hard work 
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ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SANJEEV VOHRA RAJEEV VOHRA
Director Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2012

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 212(3)(a) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

The extent of the holding company’s interest in the subsidiary at the end of the financial year 74.8 %

The net aggregate amount , so far as it concerns members of the holding company, and is not dealt with in the 
company’s accounts, of the subsidiary’s profits after deducting its losses or vice versa –

 (i) For the financial year or years of the subsidiary aforesaid (7,862,533)

 (ii) For the previous financial years of the subsidiary since it became the holding company’s subsidiary N.A.

The net aggregate amount of the profits of the subsidiary after deducting its losses or vice versa –

 (i) For the financial year or years of the subsidiary aforesaid N.A.

 (ii) For the previous financial years of the subsidiary since it became the holding company’s subsidiary N.A.

so far as those profits are dealt with or provision is made for those losses, in the company’s accounts
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FORM ( See Rule 3 )

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
[Pursuant to The Companies 

(Compliance Certificate) Rules, 2001]

Company No. : U22212MH2009PTC191532
Authorised Capital : `
Paid Up Capital : `

To,
The Members of 
Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited
Unit No 5, Marathe Udyog Bhavan,
2nd Floor, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400025.
I have examined the register, records, books and papers of 
Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited as required to be maintained 
under the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules made there 
under and also the provisions contained in the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2012. In my opinion and to the best 
of my information and according to the examination carried 
out by me and explanations furnished to me by the company, 
its officers and agents, I certify that in respect of the aforesaid 
financial year:
1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers stated 

in Annexure ‘A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions 
and the rules made there under and all entries therein 
have been duly recorded.

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as 
stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar 
of Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, 
Company Law Board or other authorities within the time / 
by paying additional fees as prescribed under the Act and 
the rules made there under.

3. The Company being a Public Limited Company, the 
Comments are not required.

4. The Board of Directors duly met 10 ( Ten ) times on 
6th April 2011, 11th June 2011, 27th June 2011, 
20th July 2011, 21th July 2011, 29th July 2011, 10th August 
2011, 12th September 2011, 21th Septemeber 2011 and 
04th November 2011 in respect of which meetings, proper 
notices were given and the proceedings were properly 
recorded and signed (no circular resolutions passed) in 
the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company did not close its Register of Members and/ 
or Debenture holders during the year under review.

6. The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2011 was held on 30.09.2011 after giving 
proper notice to the Members of the company and the 
resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes 
Book maintained for the purpose.

7. 3 (Three) Extra Ordinary General Meeting were held on 

financial year under review.
8. The Company has not advanced any loan to its directors 

and/or persons or firms or companies referred in the 
Section 295 of the Act. 

9. The Company has duly complied with the provisions of 
Section 297 of the Act in respect of Contracts specified 
in that Section.

10. The Company has made necessary entries in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

11. The Company has not obtained approval from the Board 
of Directors, Members and previous approval of the 
Central Government since the provisions of Section 314 
of the Act are not attracted and applicable during the year 
under review.

12. During the year, Company has not issued any duplicate 
Share Certificates.

13. The Company:
i) Has delivered all the certificates of Equity Shares on 

allotment and on transfer/split in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act. 

ii) Has not declared dividend during the year and 
hence the provisions related to depositing the 
amount of dividend in a separate bank account are 
not applicable.

iii) Has not declared dividend during the year and hence 
the provision relating to payment of dividend within 
30 days of declaration and transfer of unclaimed/
unpaid dividend to Unpaid Dividend Account of the 
Company are not applicable during this year.

iv) Has not transferred the amounts in unpaid 
dividend account, application money due for 
refund, matured deposits, matured debentures 
and the interest accrued thereon which have 
remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of 
seven years to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund since not applicable for this year.

v) Has duly complied with the requirements of Section 
217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted. 
Mr. Pramod Khera was appointed as an additional director, 
on 10th August 2011.

15.
time Director/ Manager during the year under review.

16.
the year under review.

17. The Company was not required to obtain any approvals of 
the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional 
Director, Registrar or such other authorities during the 
financial year under review.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/ 
companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

19. The Company has issued 90000 Equity Shares during the 
financial year under review.

20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the 
financial year under review.

21. The Company has not redeemed any preference shares/ 
debentures during the financial year under review. 

22. The Company was not required to keep in abeyance rights to 
dividend, rights shares and bonus shares pending registration 
of transfer of shares as there was no such instance.
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23. The Company has not invited or accepted deposits 
including any unsecured loans falling within the 
purview of Section 58A and 58AA read with Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 1975.

24. The amount borrowed by the Company from directors, 
members, public, financial institutions, banks and 
others during the financial year ending is/are within the 
borrowing limits of the company and that necessary 
resolutions as per Section 293 (1) (d) of the Act have 
been passed in duly convened annual/extra ordinary 
general meeting.

25. The Company has not made loans and investment, or 
given guarantees or provided securities to other bodies 
corporate and hence compliance with the provisions of 
the Act and making necessary entries in the register is 
not applicable. 

26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the 
memorandum with respect to situation of the company’s 
registered office from one State to another during the 
year under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the 
memorandum with respect to the objects of the company 
during the year under scrutiny. 

28. The Company has altered the provisions of the 
Memorandum with respect to name of the company 
during the financial year under scrutiny. Pursuant to 
conversion of Private Limited Company into Public 
Limited Company, the name of the Company has been 
changed from Repro Innovative Digiprint Private Limited 
to Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited vide fresh certificate 
of incorporation dated 3rd November 2011.

29. The Company has increased the Authorised Share Capital 
of the Company from ` 5,00,000/- to ` 1,00,00,000/- 
during the financial year under scrutiny and complied 
with the provisions of the Act.

30. The Company has altered its Articles of Association 
during the financial year under scrutiny for increase 
in authorized share capital of the Company from 
` 5,00,000/- to ` 1,00,00,000/-, for conversion of Private 
Limited Company into Public Limited Company and 
addition of one clause in the Articles of Association of 
the Company. 

31. There was no prosecution initiated against or show 
cause notices received by the Company under the Act 
during the financial year.

32. The Company has not received any amount as security 
from its employees during the year under certification.

33. The Company has regularly deposited both the 
employee’s and employer’s contribution to provident 
fund with prescribed authorities pursuant to Section 418 
of the Act.

Place: Mumbai    Signature:
Date: May 28, 2012  Company Secretary: Dinesh Deora 

 C. P. No. : 4119

ANNEXURE A
Registers as maintained by the Company:
1. Register of Members u/s 150 of C. A., 1956.
2. Share Transfer Register u/s 108.
3. Register of Directors u/s 303 3 of C. A. Act , 1956.
4. Register of Directors Shareholding u/s 307 of C. A. Act, 

1956.
5. Minutes Book of Annual General Meeting and Board 

Meeting u/s 193 of C. A. Act, 1956.
6. Register under Section 301 (3) of the Companies Act, 

1956.
7. Register of Loan and Investment made, guarantees/ 

security given.

ANNEXURE B
Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar 
of Companies, Regional Director, Central Government or other 
authorities during the financial year ending on 31st March, 
2012.
1. E-form No. 20B along with Annual Return under 

Section 159 made up to 30th Septemeber 2011 filed on 
28th November 2011. 

2. E-form No. 23AC and 23ACA along with Annual 
Accounts under section 220 for 31th March 2011 filed on 
22nd October 2011.

3. E-form 18 u/s 146 for change of register office address 
dated 21st July 2011 filed 27th July 2011.

4. E-form No. 2 u/s 75 for allotment shares dated 
21st July 2011 filed on 21st July 2011.

5. E-form No. 2 u/s 75 for allotment shares dated 
12th Septemeber 2011 filed on 11th November 2011.

6. E-form No. 23 u/s 192 for increase in authorized 
share capital of the Company from ` 5,00,000/- to 
` 1,00,00,000/- dated 12th July 2011 filed on 
14th July 2011.

7. E-form No. 5 u/s 97 for increase in authorized share capital 
of the Company from ` 5,00,000/- to ` 1,00,00,000/- 
dated 12th July 2011 filed on 15th July 2011.

8. E-form No. 23 u/s 192 for conversion of Private Limited 
Company into Public Limited Company dated 28th July 
2011filed on 09th August 2011.

9. E-form No. 62 u/s 44 for conversion of Private 
Limited Company into Public Limited Company dated 
28th July 2011 filed on 12th August 2011.

10. Form 32 u/s 303 for appointment of Mr. Pramod Khera 
as Additional Director of the Company dated 10th August 
2011 filed on 10th October 2011.

11. E-form No. 23 u/s 192 dated 16th Septemeber 2011 filed on 
16th January 2012.



Annual Report | 121

STUDENTKNOWLEDGE

Helping deliver knowledge to students

We have audited the Balance Sheet of REPRO INNOVATIVE 
DIGIPRINT LIMITED as at 31st March, 20I2, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date annexed 
thereto. These Financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company’s Management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these Financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing standards 
generally accepted in India. These Standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the Financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall Financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 

section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we 
enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, 
we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanation, 
which to the best of our Knowledge and belief were 

(b) In our opinion, proper Books of accounts as required 
by law have been kept by the Company as far as it 

(c) The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss 
dealt with by this Report are in Agreement with the 

(d) In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss dealt 
with by this report comply with the accounting 
standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 
211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(e) On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors for the financial year ending on 
31st March, 2012 and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors. We report that none of the directors 
are disqualified from being appointed as a director 

274 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the reported 
financial year.

(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the said 
accounts read together with other notes thereon the 
information required by Companies Act, 1956 in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view:

a) ln the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 

b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of 
the loss for the year ended on that date.

For A. M. SOLANKI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 112550W

ASHOK M SOLANKI
Partner
Membership No. 033370

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 28, 2012

AUDITOR’S REPORT
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

(i) (a)  The fixed asset records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets are compiled.

 (b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals and no serious 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) The company has not disposed off a substantial 
part of its fixed assets during the year hence the 
effect of going concern does not arise.

(ii) (a)  The inventory have been physically verified 
at reasonable intervals during the year by the 
management. In our opinion the frequency of 
verification is reasonable.

 (b) The procedure of physical verification of inventory 
followed by the management is reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size of the company and 
the nature of its business.

 (c) The company is maintaining proper records of the 
inventory and the discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification were not significant, considering the size 
of the company and the same have been properly 
dealt with in the books of accounts.

(iii) (a) The company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 
301 of the Act, and the number of such parties is 
NIL and the total amount outstanding is NIL.

 (b) There is no stipulation as to rate of interest and other 
terms and conditions of loan given by company 
secured or unsecured and hence the question 
of commenting on the rate of interest, terms and 
conditions of the unsecured loans granted and the 
payment thereof does not arise.

 (c) The company has taken unsecured loans and other 
amount in the nature of trade deposits from the 
companies, firms or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 301 of the Act, 
and the number of such parties is ONE and the total 
amount outstanding is ` 5,23,40,597/-.

 d) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of 
loans taken by the Company, secured or unsecured, 
are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

 (e) There are no stipulations of repayment of such 
unsecured loans taken and hence we are unable to 
comment on the same.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

As at March 31, 2012
(iv) The Company is managed by the Board of Directors. There 

are adequate internal control systems commensurate with 
the size of the company and the nature of its business for 
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the 
sale of goods and services. Therefore, the reporting on 
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal 
control system does not arise.

(v) (a)  According to the information and explanation given 
to us, we are of the opinion that the company has 
entered all the contracts or arrangements referred 
to in section 301 of the Act in the register required 
to be maintained under that section; and

 (b)  According to the information and explanation 
given to us, we are of the opinion that these 
transactions made in pursuance of such contracts 
or arrangements have been made at the prices 
which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing 
market prices at the relevant lime.

(vi) As per the information given to us, the company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning 
of Section 58A, 58AA or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956. Since all the deposits as per 
the company are exempt deposits and hence no Return 
of Deposit filed with Registrar of Companies and no order 
is passed by Company Law Board or National Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any 
other Tribunal arises.

(vii) The internal audit system is not applicable to the company 
during the year under audit. The company does not have 
an internal, audit system during the year.

(viii) We are informed that Central Government has not 
prescribed maintenance of cost records under Section 
209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for the products 
of the company.

(ix) (a)  According to the information given to us, undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, cess 
have generally been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities. Investor Education and 
Protection Fund & Service Tax, Customs Duty, 
Excise Duty, Wealth Tax is not applicable to the 
company for the year under audit.

 (b)  According to information and explanation given to 
us, there are no disputed liabilities on account of 
Sales Tax/ Income Tax/ Customs Duty/  Wealth Tax/ 
Service Tax/ Excise Duty/ cess. Hence the question 
of commenting on this clause is not applicable.

(x) The company has been incorporated on 20th March, 
2009 hence; it is registered for a period less than Five 
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Years. Therefore, reporting on accumulated losses at the 
end of financial year and cash losses for the year and 
immediately proceeding financial year is not applicable.

(xi) The company has not borrowed from financial institution 
or bank or debenture holders and hence question of 
repayment of the same does not arise.

(xii) According to the information and explanation given to us, 
the company has not granted loans and advances on the 
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securities,

(xiii) The company not being a chit fund company or nidhi/
mutual benefit fund/society, this clause is not applicable.

(xiv) The company is not dealing or trading in shares, 
securities, debentures and other investments.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to 
us, the company has not given guarantee for loan taken 
by related parties, and the terms and conditions are not 
prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, 
the company has applied the term loans for the purpose 
for which the loans were obtained,

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on an overall examination of the affairs of the 
company, we report that the funds raised on short term 
basis have not been used for long term investment.

(xviii) According to the information and explanation given 
to us, the company has made allotment of shares 
worth `
`
being a company covered in the Register maintained under 
section 301 of the Act. The price at which shares have been 
issued is not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(xix) According to the information and explanation given to 
us, the company has not issued any debentures so the 
question of creating security does not arise.

(xx) According to the information and explanation given to 
us, the company has not made a public issue. Hence the 
question of disclosure of end use of the money raised 
does not arise.

(xxi) According to the information and explanation given to 
us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or 
reported during the year.

For A. M. SOLANKI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 112550W

ASHOK M SOLANKI
Partner
Membership No. 033370

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 28, 2012
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The accompanying notes are an integral parts of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date
For A. M. SOLANKI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For Repro Innovative Digiprint  Limited
Firm Registration No. : 112550W

ASHOK M SOLANKI Sanjeev Vohra Rajeev Vohra
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 033370

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 28, 2012

 (All amounts in `)

Notes
As at  

31-March-2012
As at  

31-March-2011
I.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 Shareholders’ funds

Share Capital 3  1,000,000  100,000 
Reserves and Surplus 4  (10,518,288)  (6,880)

 (9,518,288)  93,120 
 Non–current liabilities

Long–term provisions 6  524,321 –
 524,321  – 

 Current Liabilities
Short–term borrowings 5  52,340,597 –
Trade payable 7  36,183,398  – 
Other current liabilities 8  717,547  – 
Short–term provisions 6  151,849  – 

 89,393,391  – 
Total  80,399,424  93,120 
II. ASSETS

Non–current assets
 Fixed assets
      Tangible assets 13  22,928,355  – 
      Intangible assets 14  19,133,817  – 
      Capital work–in–progress 13  8,851,904  – 
 Trade receivables 10  134,080  10,320 
 Other non–current assets 9  534,110  – 

 51,582,266  10,320 
Current assets

Current investments  – –
Inventories 11  12,856,394  – 
Trade receivables 10  5,480,797  – 
Cash and cash equivalents 12  1,900,597  12,800 
Short–term loans and advances 9  4,854,587  70,000 
Deferred tax Asset (Net) 15  3,724,783  – 

 28,817,158  82,800 
Total  80,399,424  93,120 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

As at March 31, 2012
BALANCE SHEET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The accompanying notes are an integral parts of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date
For A. M. SOLANKI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For Repro Innovative Digiprint  Limited
Firm Registration No. : 112550W

ASHOK M SOLANKI Sanjeev Vohra Rajeev Vohra
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 033370

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 28, 2012

 (All amounts in `)

Notes
 Year ended  Year ended 

Revenue from operations 16  55,198,092  – 

Other Income 17  1,481,771  – 

Total Income  56,679,863  – 

Expenses:

Cost of raw materials consumed 18  24,931,448  – 

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods, work–in–progress and traded 
goods

19  (481,985) –

Employee benefit expense 20  21,922,222  – 

Other expenses 21  20,654,669 –

Total Expenses  67,026,354 –

Earnigs before Interest,Tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)  (10,346,491) –

Depreciation and amortization expense 22  2,049,028  – 

Financial costs 23  1,840,672 3,440

Profit/(Loss) before tax  (14,236,191)  (3,440)

Tax expenses

Current tax  –  – 

Taxation of Earlier Year  –  – 

Deferred tax  (3,724,783)  – 

Profit /(Loss) from the period from continuing operations  (10,511,408)  (3,440)

Earning per equity share:

(1) Basic  (105.11)  (0.34)

(2) Diluted  (105.11)  (0.34)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended March 31, 2012
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 (All amounts in `)
 Year ended  

31-March-2012
 Year ended  

31-March-2011
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax  (14,236,191)  (3,440)
Non-Cash Adjustment To Reconcile Profit Before Tax To Net Cash Flows  –  3,440 
Depreciation/Amortization On Continuing Operation  2,049,028  – 
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  (1,249,199)  – 
Operating Profit before working capital changes  (13,436,362)  – 
Movements in working capital:
(Decrease) in Trade Payables (22,340,818)  – 
Increase in Long-Term Provisions  524,321  – 
Increase in Short-Term Provisions  151,849  – 
Increase in Other Current Liabilities  717,547  – 
(Increase) in Trade Receivables  (5,604,557)  – 
(Decrease) in Inventories 22,950,292  – 
(Increase) in Short-Term Loans and Advances  (3,359,655)  – 
(Increase) in Other Non-Current Assets  (534,110)  – 
Cash generated from/(used In) operations (20,931,493)  – 
Prior period taxes paid  –  – 
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) (20,931,493)  – 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (including Intangible assets), Capital Work-in-progress and Capital advances  (9,213,905)  – 
Business acquisition (net of cash and bank balance acquired) (Refer Note 27) (21,207,402)
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B)  (30,421,307)  – 
Cash Flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital  900,000  – 
Proceeds from short-term borrowings  52,340,597  – 
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)  53,240,597  – 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  1,887,797  – 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  12,800  12,800 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,900,597  12,800 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  47,763  12,800 
With banks
– on current account  1,852,834  – 
– on deposit account  1,900,597  12,800 
Total Cash and Cash equivalents (Note 18)

* The Company can utilise these balance only towards settlement of the respective unpaid dividend
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

Year ended March 31, 2012
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per our Report of even date
For A. M. SOLANKI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For Repro Innovative Digiprint  Limited
Firm Registration No. : 112550W

ASHOK M SOLANKI Sanjeev Vohra Rajeev Vohra
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 033370

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 28, 2012
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1. Corporate information
Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd (“The Company”) is an unlisted public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956. The Company provides print solutions to client, which mainly includes value engineering, creative designing, 

localization and web based services.
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 
GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified 
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The 
financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in 
the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, except for the change in accounting policy explained 
below.
2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Change in accounting policy

Presentation and disclosure of financial statements
During the year ended 31 March, 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 1956, has become applicable 
to the company, for preparation and presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact 
recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. However, it has significant impact on 
presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements. The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in 
accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year.

b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current 
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

c) Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and 
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition 
of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to 
the period till such assets are ready for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from its 
existing assets beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including 

during which such expenses are incurred.
d) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method, using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives of the fixed assets 
estimated by the management, which corresponds to the rate prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

e) Intangible assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of ten years. The company 
uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is 
available to use. If the persuasive evidence exists to the effect that the useful life of the intangible asset exceeds ten years, the 
company amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life. Such intangible assets not yet available for use are 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
Gains or losses arising from an derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

f) Inventories

Raw materials, packing materials, 
stores and spares 

Lower of cost or net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which 
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a 
FIFO basis by applying specific identification method for paper and on FIFO basis for other raw 
materials, packing materials, stores and spares

Work in progress and finished 
goods

Lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes materials and labour and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes 
excise duty wherever applicable. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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g) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be 
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Sale of Goods:
Sales of printed material are recognized on transfer of property in goods and performance of service. Sales are inclusive of excise 
duty, wherever applicable, but net of trade discount and other applicable taxes. The company collects sales taxes and value added 
taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are 
excluded from revenue.
Income from Services:
Revenue from services is recognized as and when the services are rendered.

h) Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit 
and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the 
contribution payable to the respective trusts.
The company has takenover unit of Macmillan Publishers India Limited with all its assets and liabilities and all employees of the 
company. The erstwhile company had a group gratuity fund created for the welfare of employees. The gratuity liabilities of these 
employees are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the 
period in which they occur in the profit and loss account.
Accumulated Leave which is expected to be utilized within next 12 months is treated as short term employee benefit, the company 
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement 
that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee benefits for 
measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided on based on the actuarial valuation using the projected 
unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not 
deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right 
to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Expenses incurred towards voluntary retirement scheme are charged to the profit and loss account immediately.

i)  Leases
Where the company is lessee
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

j)  Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and 
Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the Interest cost.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as a part of the cost of the respective asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

 k)  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable 
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those 
from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. 
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a 
revaluation increase.

l) Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions 
where the company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during 
the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax 
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laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing 
differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax 
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be 
realized against future taxable profits.

asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 

that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognises 
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company 
recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum 

shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes 
down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

m) Segment reporting
Identification of segments
The Company operates in a single business segment in view of the nature of the products and services provided. The analysis of 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the company operate.
The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the 
financial statements of the company as a whole.

n) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting 
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly 
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to 
a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is 
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) 
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o) Provisions
A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

with an original maturity of three months or less.
q) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 

recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

r) Measurement of EBITDA
As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the company has elected to present 
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of 
profit and loss. The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the 
Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

s) Accounting for Amalgamation
Not Applicable
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3. Share Capital
(All amounts in `)

As at  
31-March-2012

As at  
31-March-2011

Authorised Shares 
1,000,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each  10,000,000  100,000 
Issued, Subscribed And Fully Paid-Up - Shares  
100,000 (Previous year 10,000 ) Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up  1,000,000  100,000 

 a)  Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Equity Shares  31-March-2012  31-March-2011
No. ` No. `

At the beginning of the period  10,000  100,000  10,000  100,000 
Issue during the period  90,000  900,000  –  – 
Outstanding at the End of the Period  100,000  1,000,000  10,000  100,000 

 b) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to 
one vote per share.

 c)  Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Out of equity shares issued by the Company , shares held by its holding company are as below:

(All amounts in `)
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011

74,800 (31 March, 2011:Nil) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid  748,000  – 
 748,000  – 

d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

 31-March-2012  31-March-2011
No. % holding in the  class No. % holding in the  class

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Repro India Ltd., Holding Company  74,800 74.80%  -  - 
Macmillan Publishers India Ltd.  15,000 15.00%  -  - 

89,800 89.80%  -  - 

4.  Reserves and Surplus

(All amounts in `)
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011

Surplus/(deficit) in the profit and loss account
Balance as Per Last Financial Statement  (6,880)  (6,880)
Profit for the year  (10,511,408)  – 
Net Surplus in the Profit and Loss Account  (10,518,288)  (6,880)
Total Reserve and Surplus  (10,518,288)  (6,880)

5.  Short-term borrowings

(All amounts in `)
 Current 

 31-March-2012  31-March-2011 
 Term loans 
 Indian rupee loan from Repro India Ltd. (Unsecured)  52,340,597  – 

 52,340,597  – 

6. Provisions

(All amounts in `)
 Long-term  Short-term 

 31-March-2012  31-March-2011  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 
 Provision for employee benefits 
 Provision for leave benefits  524,321  –  151,849  – 

 524,321  –  151,849  – 

7. Trade Payables
(All amounts in `)

 31-March-2012  31-March-2011 
 Trade Payables  36,183,398  - 
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8. Other Current liabilities

(All amounts in `)

 Advance from customers
 Others Payable  357,204  –
 Other creditors  4,460  –
 TDS Payable  355,883  – 

 717,547  – 

9. Loans and advances

(All amounts in `)
 Current 

Capital Advance 
Secured, considered good 
Unsecured, considered good  ( A )  –  –  1,081,726  – 

 –  –  1,081,726  – 
Security deposit 
Secured, considered good  534,110  – – –
Unsecured, considered good  –  –  –  – 
Doubtful – – – –

 534,110  –  –  – 
Provision for doubtful security deposit  ( B )  –  –  –  – 

 534,110  –  –  – 
Loan and advances to related parties  
Unsecured, considered good  ( C )  –  –  –  – 

 –  –  –  – 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 
Secured, considered good  –  –  –  – 
Unsecured, considered good  –  653,500  – 
Doubtful  –  –  –  – 

 –  –  653,500  – 
Provision for doubtful security deposit  ( D )  –  –  –  – 

 –  –  653,500  – 
Other loans and advances
Prepaid Expenses  –  –  1,231,139  – 
loans and advances  –  –  580,794  – 
Advance to Suppliers  –  –  510,444  – 
Loans to employees  –  –  72,000  – 
Balances with statutory/government 
authorities

 ( E )  –  –  724,984  – 

 –  –  3,119,361  – 
 Total (A+B+C+D+E)  534,110  –  4,854,587  – 

10.  Trade receivables and other assets 
(All amounts in `)

 Current 

Unsecured,considered good unless 
stated otherwise Outstanding for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they 
are due for payment – –  –  – 

Secured,considered good  – – – –
Unsecured,considered good  –  –  5,480,797  – 
Doubtful  –  –  –  – 

 (A)  –  –  5,480,797  – 
Other Assets 
Unamortized expenditure 
Ancilliary cost of arranging the borrowings  134,080  10,320  –  – 

 (B)  134,080  10,320  –  – 
Total ( A + B )  134,080  10,320  5,480,797  – 
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11. Inventories (Valued at Lower of Cost and net realisable value)

(All amounts in `)
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

 Finished Goods  –  – 
 Raw Materials  9,916,118  – 
 Stores, Spares and Packing Materials  2,458,291  – 
 Work-In-Progress  481,985  – 

 12,856,394  – 

12. Cash and bank balance

 (All amounts in `)
 Non-current  Current 

 31-March-2012  31-March-2011  31-March-2012  31-March-2011 
 Cash and cash equivalents Balances with banks: 
 On current accounts  –  –  1,852,834  – 
 Cash on hand  –  –  47,763  12,800 

 –  –  1,900,597  12,800 

13. Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets Plant & 
Machinery

Office
Equipments

Furniture & 
Fixtures

Vehicles Total

At 1st April, 2011  –  –  –  –  – 
Additions  22,049,872  1,495,026  235,175  70,085  23,850,158 
Disposals  163,289  –  –  –  163,289 
Other Adjustments
Exchange Differences  –  –  –  –  – 
Borrowing costs  –  –  –  –  – 
At 31st March, 2012  21,886,583  1,495,026  235,175  70,085  23,686,869 
Depreciation
At 1 April, 2011  –  –  –  –  – 
Charge For The Year  647,547  99,468  14,810  4,177  766,003 
Disposals  7,488  –  –  –  7,488 
At 31 March, 2012  640,059  99,468  14,810  4,177  758,515 
Net Block
At 31 March, 2012  21,246,524  1,395,558  220,364  65,908  22,928,355 

Capital Work-in-progress
Tangible Assets Plant & Machinery
Additions during the year 8,851,904

14. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Goodwill and other intangibles
At 1 April, 2011  – 
Additions  20,416,842 
Disposals  – 
Other Adjustments
Exchange Differences  – 
Borrowing costs  – 
At 31 March, 2012  20,416,842 
Depreciation
At 1 April, 2011  – 
Charge For The Year  1,283,025 
Disposals  – 
At 31 March, 2012  1,283,025 
Net Block
At 31 March, 2012  19,133,817 

15. Deferred Tax Assets (net)

(All amounts in `)
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

Deferred tax liability
Depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting 1,184,130 –
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(All amounts in `)

Others – –
Gross deferred tax liability 1,184,130  – 
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for leave encashment  208,937 –
Brought forward losses  4,699,976 –
Gross deferred tax asset  4,908,913  – 
Net deferred tax asset/(liability)  3,724,783  – 

(All amounts in `)
 Year ended  Year ended 

16. Revenue from operations

Sale of products  52,454,476  –
Sale of services  –  –

 52,454,476  – 
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales  2,743,616  –
Revenue from operations (gross)  55,198,092  – 
Less : Excise Duty  –  –
Revenue from operations (net)  55,198,092  – 

17. Other income
Other non operating income  1,481,771  –

 1,481,771  – 

18. Cost of raw material and components consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year  –  –
Add: Purchases  34,365,581  –

 34,365,581  – 
Less Inventory at the end of the year  9,916,118  –
Cost of Raw material and Components Consumed  24,449,463  –
Paper  24,449,463  –
Others  –  –

 24,449,463  – 
Details of inventory 
Paper  9,054,796  –
Others  861,322  –

 9,916,118  – 

19. (Increase)/Decrease In Stock
Opening Stock

Stock in Process – –
 –  – 

Closing Stock
Stock in Process  481,985  –

 481,985  – 
(Increase)/Decrease In Stock  (481,985)  – 

20. Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, Wages and Bonus  19,122,162  –
Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds  1,815,468  –
Staff welfare expenses  308,422  –
Gratuity expenses  –  –
Leave Encashment  676,170  –

 21,922,222  – 

21. Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores  5,027,711  –
Power and Fuel  3,203,378  –
Outsourcing Charges  5,918,876  –
Hire Charges  17,237  –
Advertising and Sales Promotion  3,447  –

15. Deferred Tax Assets (net) contd.
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(All amounts in `)
 Year ended  

 31-March-2012 
 Year ended  

 31-March-2011 
Repair & Maintainance
 on Buildings  49,122  –
 on Plant and Machinery  1,759,752  –
 on Others  776,162  –
Payment to auditor (refer details below)  93,599  –
Rates and Taxes  1,935,843  –
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges  64,880  –
Travelling and Conveyance  391,180  –
Transport and Courier Charges (net of recoveries)  161,321  –
Loading and unloading expenses  121,220  –
Telephone Charges  159,372  –
Insurance Charges  296,688  –
Rent  207,893  –
Miscellaneous Expenses  466,988 –

 20,654,669 –
Payment to auditor 
As auditor:
 Audit fee  50,000  –
Reimbursement of out of Pocket Expenses (including service tax)  6,180  –
In other capacity
 Company law matters  37,419  –

 93,599 –

22. Deprecation and amortization expenses
Deprecation of tangible assets  766,003  –
Amortization of intangible assets  1,283,025  –

 2,049,028  – 

23. Finance Costs
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs  35,240 3,440
Interest  1,798,991  –
Bank Charges  6,441  –

 1,840,672 3,440
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24. Earnings per share (EPS)

(All amounts in `)
Particulars For the year ended 

 31-March-2012 
For the year ended 

 31-March-2011 
Net profit for the year (for calculation of basic and diluted EPS) (10,511,408) (3,440)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating
- Basic earnings per share 1,00,000 10,000
Add:- Equity shares arising on grant of stock options under ESOP 0 0
- Diluted earnings per share 1,00,000 10,000
Earnings per share – Basic (105.11) (0.34)

   – Diluted (105.11) (0.34)
Face Value Per Share 10.00 10.00

25.  Leases

 Operating Lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken on lease the premises (land and building) from Macmillan Publishers India Limited. The lease is for a period of 
7 years and lease rental is ` 25000 per month (all inclusive). Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement 
of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

26.  Accounting for Slump Sale  

Macmillan Publisher India Limited (The Seller) has sold its printing unit at Chennai, Tamil Nadu to Repro Innovative Digiprint Ltd. as a 
slump sale with effect from 16th August, 2011. Pursuant to the slump sale the following assets and liabilities were takenover by Repro 
Innovative Digiprint Limited. Repro Innovative Digiprint Limited shall discharge the Purchase Consideration for acquisition through bank 
payments from time to time. The company has accounted for the transfer under the Purchase Method and recognized assets and 
liabilities acquired at fair value. The excess of Purchase Consideration paid by the Company over the aggregate value of the Net Assets 
acquired has been treated as Goodwill and other intangibles being business process, know-how, business related information and trade 
practices prevalent in the undertaking, etc., to be amortised over a period of 10 years from the date of transfer.
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Particulars `
Assets
Plant & Machinery  98,977,109 
Furniture & Fixtures  759,862 
Types and mono metals  3,115,601 
 Vehicles  1,456,988 
Depreciation Reserve

Total Assets  22,083,158 
Liabilities
Total Liabilities –
Net Assets  22,083,158 
Purchase Consideration  42,500,000 
Goodwill and other intangibles  20,416,842 

27. Segment information

Business segment

The Company operates in a single business segment of Value Added Print Solutions and hence, there are no separate reportable segments 
of the Company.

28. Related party disclosures under Accounting Standard 18

a. The following are the names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not:

Name of the Related party Nature of Relationship
Holding
Repro India Limited Holding Company
Repro Enterprises Private Limited Ultimate Holding Company

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Vinod Vohra Chairman
Mr. Sanjeev Vohra Managing Director
Mr. Rajeev Vohra Director
Mr. Mukesh Dhruve Director
Mr. Pramod Khera Director

Name Year Ended Sale of 
Goods

Sales of 
services

Purchase of 
traded goods 

Amount owed 
by related 

parties

 Amount owed 
by related 

parties
Sales
Repro India Limited 31.03.2012 52,454,476  – – 4,653,633  – 

31.03.2011  – – – –  – 

Name Year Ended  Loans 
taken 

Repayment Interest
accrued

Tds deducted 
on interest 

Amount owed 
by related 

parties
Loans taken and repayment 
thereof
Repro India Limited 31.03.2012 98,049,251  47,327,746 1,798,991 179,899 52,340,597

31.03.2011  – – –  –  – 

29. Expenditure in foreign Currency (Accrual Basis)

NIL
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30.  Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts consumed

% of total 
consumption

 31-March-2012 

Value (` )
For the year ended  
 31-March-2012 

% of total 
consumption

 31-March-2011 

Value (` )
For the year ended  
 31-March-2011 

Raw Material 
Imported – – – –
Indigenously obtained 100% 24,449,463 100% –

100% 24,449,463 100% –
Spare Parts
Imported – – – –
Indigenously obtained 100% 5,027,711 100% –

Total 100% 29,477,174 100% –

31.  Details of Dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

(All amounts in `)
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at end 
of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

268,802 –

Total 268,802 –

32.  Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

(All amounts in `)
 31-March-2012  31-March-2011 

Raw Materials

Components and spare parts

Capital Goods

N.A.

–

–

N.A.

–

–
Total – –

33.  Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)
 NIL
34.  Previous year figures

Till the year ended 31 March, 2011, the Company was using pre-revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act 1956, for preparation and 
presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended 31 March, 2012, the Revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 
1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Company has reclassified previous year figures to confirm to this year’s classification. 
The adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial 
statements. However, it significantly impacts presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements, particularly presentation of 
balance sheet.
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